
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
City Council Chambers, 33 East Broadway Avenue Meridian, Idaho 

Thursday, April 15, 2021 at 6:00 PM 

All materials presented at public meetings become property of the City of Meridian. Anyone desiring accommodation 
for disabilities should contact the City Clerk's Office at 208-888-4433 at least 48 hours prior to the public meeting. 

Agenda 
Scan the QR Code to 

sign up in advance to 
provide testimony. 

Public Hearing process: Land use development applications begin with 
presentation of the project and analysis of the application by Planning Staff. 
The applicant is then allowed up to 15 minutes to present the project. Then, 
members of the public are allowed up to 3 minutes each to address 
Commissioners regarding the application. Any citizen acting as a 
representative of a Homeowner’s Association may be allowed up to 10 
minutes to speak on behalf of represented homeowners consenting to yield 
their time to speak. After all public testimony, the applicant is allowed up 
to 10 minutes to respond to questions and comments. Commissioners may 
ask questions throughout the public hearing process. The public hearing is 
then closed, and no further public comment is heard. 

 

VIRTUAL MEETING INSTRUCTIONS 

Limited seating is available at City Hall. Consider joining the meeting virtually: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88338413079 

Or join by phone: 1-669-900-6833 
Webinar ID: 883 3841 3079 

ROLL-CALL ATTENDANCE 

____ Lisa Holland                ____ Steven Yearsley                        ____ Andrew Seal 

____ Nick Grove                ____ Maria Lorcher                ____ Bill Cassinelli 

____ Rhonda McCarvel, Chairperson 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 

1. Approve Minutes of the April 1, 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 

ITEMS MOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 

ACTION ITEMS 

1



2. Public Hearing Continued from April 1, 2021 for Jaker's Drive-Through Addition 
(H-2021-0012) by BRS Architects, Located at 3268 E. Pine Ave. 

A. Request: Conditional Use Permit for a drive-through in the C-G zoning 
district at an existing restaurant. 

3. Public Hearing for Pine 43 Apartments (MCU-2021-0002) by Pivot North Design, 
Located South of E. Fairview Ave., on the East Side of N. Webb Way and North of E. 
Pine Ave. 

A. Request: Modification to the Conditional Use Permit (H-2018-0001) to 
revise the site layout to include consolidation of common open space into 
more usable areas with a clubhouse, and a change to the mix of units/types. 

4. Public Hearing for Artemisia Subdivision (H-2021-0014) by Engineering 
Solutions, LLP, Located at 1690 W. Overland Rd. 

A. Request: Annexation of 25.67-acres of land with a C-G (General Retail and 
Service Commercial) zoning district. 

B. Request: Preliminary Plat consisting of 9 commercial buildable lots on 
19.26-acres of land in the C-G zoning district. 

5. Public Hearing for Roberts Annexation (H-2021-0013) by Rodney Evans + 
Partners, PLLC, Located at 1630 E. Paradise Ln. 

A. Request: Annexation of 2.15 acres of land with the R-2 zoning district. 

6. Public Hearing for UDC Text Amendment (H-2021-0001) by City of Meridian 
Planning Division, Located at 33 E. Broadway Ave. 

A. Request: UDC Text Amendment to update certain sections of the City’s 
Unified Development Code (UDC) pertaining to Standards in the Old Town 
District in Chapter 2; Ditches, Laterals, Canals or Drainage Courses in Chapter 
3; Comprehensive Plan Amendments in Chapter 5; and Common Driveways 
Standards in Chapter 6. 

ADJOURNMENT 

2



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Approve Minutes of the April 1, 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission 
Meeting

3Item 1.



Meridian Planning and Zoning Meeting                                                    April 1, 2021. 

     

Meeting of the Meridian Planning and Zoning Commission of  April 1, 2021, was called to 

order at 6:01 p.m. by Vice-Chairman Andrew Seal. 

 

Members Present:  Commissioner Lisa Holland, Commissioner Andrew Seal, 

Commissioner Nick Grove, Commissioner Steven Yearsley and Commissioner Maria 

Lorcher. 

 

Members Absent:  Chairman Rhonda McCarvel, Commissioner Bill Cassinelli. 

 

Others Present:  Adrienne Weatherly, Ted Baird, Bill Parsons, Sonya Allen, Joe Dodson, 

Alan Tiefenbach, Joe Bongiorno and Dean Willis. 

 

ROLL-CALL ATTENDANCE  

  

 __X___ Lisa Holland            ___X___ Maria Lorcher  

 __X___ Andrew Seal         ___X___ Nick Grove  

 __X___ Steven Yearsley    _______ Bill Cassinelli        

     ________ Rhonda McCarvel - Chairman 
 
Seal:  Good evening.  Welcome to the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting for April 
1st, 2021.  At this time I would like to call the meeting to order.  The Commissioners who 
are present at this evening's meeting are at City Hall and on Zoom.  We also have staff 
from the city attorney and clerk's offices, as well as the city planning department.  If you 
are joining us on Zoom this evening we can see that you are here.  You may observe the 
meeting.  However, your ability to be -- to be seen on screen and talk will be muted.  
During the public testimony portion of the meeting you will be unmuted and, then, be able 
to comment.  Please note that we cannot take questions until the public testimony portion.  
If you have a process question during the meeting, please, e-mail cityclerk@meridiancity. 
org and they will reply as quickly as possible.  If you simply want to watch the meeting we 
encourage you to watch the streaming on the city's YouTube channel.  You can access it 
by going to meridiancity.org/live.  With that let's begin with the roll call.   
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
Seal:  Okay.  First item on the agenda is the adoption of the agenda.  Tonight Jaker's 
Drive Through Addition, H-2021-0012, will only be opened for the sole purpose of 
continuing the item to the regularly scheduled meeting of April 15th, 2021.  It will open 
only for that purpose.  So, if there is anybody here tonight to testify on that particular 
application, we will not be taking testimony this evening.  Can I get a motion to adopt the 
agenda?   
 
Holland:  So moved.   

4Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 2 of 63 

 

Grove:  Second. 
 
Seal:  It has been moved and seconded to adopt the agenda.  All in favor say aye.  
Opposed?  All right.  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item]  
 
 1.  Approve Minutes of the March 18, 2021 Planning and Zoning   
  Commission Meeting 
 
 2.  Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Sadie Creek Drive-Through  
  (H-2021-0006) by The Land Group, Generally Located South of E.  
  Ustick Rd. on the West Side of N. Eagle Rd. 
 
Seal:  Next item on the agenda is the Consent Agenda and we have two items on the 
Consent Agenda.  Approval of the minutes from the previous Planning and Zoning 
meeting.  Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Sadie Creek Drive -- Drive Through, 
H-2021-0006.  Can I get a motion to accept the Consent Agenda as presented?   
 
Grove:  So moved.   
 
Yearsley:  Second.   
 
Seal:  It has been moved and seconded to adopt the Consent Agenda.  All in favor say 
aye.  Any opposed?  Okay.  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
ITEMS MOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
 3.  Fire Department: Introduction of Meridian Fire Chief Kris Blume and  
  Department Update 
 
Seal:  Now we have a Department Report from the Fire Department.  So, Chief Bongiorno, 
if you want to jump in, please, feel free.   
 
Bongiorno:  Mr. Commissioner, this one is actually going to be the fire chief.  He's here 
tonight.  He will be taking care of that one.  There he is right there.   
 
Blume:  Yes, sir.  Okay.  Well, Commissioners and those in attendance, by way of 
introduction my name is Kris Blume and I'm the new fire chief for the City of Meridian Fire 
Department.  I am originally a native of Idaho and I have spent the past 21, 22 years in 

5Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 3 of 63 

 

the fire service and couldn't be more thrilled to be up here in Meridian.  One of the things 
that I would just like to talk about really briefly is noticing that Meridian is expanding.  It's 
expanding horizontally, it's expanding vertically, and myself and my team are very 
focused on ensuring a sustainable service delivery model for the community of Meridian.  
Truth be told, we are struggling with our response to liability time.  The adopted five 
minutes we are nowhere near.  We are in the six and a half to seven minute response to 
emergencies to the community of Meridian.  Even with the addition of Station 6 last year 
we have three stations that are continuing to trend down about three percent in that 
response -- response reliability.  We are lucky to have an 80 percent response reliability  
and I'm hoping that we are going to be able to improve that, bring that into the mid 80s  
for the city.  We have noticed call volumes increasing, as well as the density of population 
coming into Meridian increasing and so we are looking to improve and meet those needs  
and to that end this week on -- I'm sorry this upcoming week on Tuesday I'm looking 
forward to -- I anticipate a robust discussion on the construction of, hopefully, Stations 7 
and 8, one or the other, and my hope and intention is that we will move forward with both 
of those.  That will also lend itself to an increase in improved ISV rating for the city, 
reducing commercial, as well as residential insurance costs.  So, again, I'm very excited 
to be here and really looking forward to watching the growth of this community move 
forward and hopefully -- and it's my intent with my team that we are going to be able to 
meet the expanding community of Meridian.  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Thank you, Chief Blume.  Is there any comments or questions that other 
Commissioners have?   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chairman?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Yearsley.   
 
Yearsley:  Just a quick question.  You talked about the response times being down.  Is 
that just because the city is growing outward and it's harder to get to the far reaches?   
 
Blume:  You know, it's interesting, because we have some empiric, as well as anecdotal 
information to that.  COVID was a bubble; right?  I mean it's a snapshot in time.  But 
what's very interesting about that is we had our in-service times, meaning our fire 
apparatus were not out of service doing training, adopted schools, station tours, we were 
not going to nursing homes for fall injuries or -- or non-life threatening emergencies and 
so even with the reduction in those calls, as well as an increase in service time, we were 
still seeing an increase in responses.  Now, I would -- I will go back to the statement that 
I made that the city is expanding -- the horizon has been defeated.  The horizon of 
Meridian -- we know the expansive boundaries of the City of Meridian, but what we are 
starting to see are those high density populations, mid rise three and four story apartment 
complexes, creating higher density of population, not on a vertical plane, but -- I'm sorry 
-- not on a horizontal plane, but in a vertical plane and so some of the areas have started 
to generate higher and higher call volumes and increasing out-of-service times and delays 
in responses in that regard as well.  Certainly there are areas within Meridian that are 
very difficult to reach and certainly -- they are not within a five minute response time on a 

6Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 4 of 63 

 

-- in a best case scenario and just a bit further on that, I drilled down on that, I wanted to 
help far off the Meridian Fire Department was that five minute adopted rule.  We are at 
six minutes and 17 seconds and that's response time.  Built in on the front side of that is 
a 90 second -- what's called chute time.  So, from the time the 911 call comes in to the 
time we have wheels rolling, we are given 90 seconds.  That's not built into the six 
minutes.  So, we are approaching closer to eight minutes in a response time, which is 
quite impressive.  From the time of the 911 call dispatch to having emergency services at 
somebody's door.   
 
Yearsley:  That's impressive. 
 
Seal:  Any other questions from other Commissioners?   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Yes, Commissioner Grove.  Go ahead.   
 
Grove:  Sir, is there -- you mentioned the vertical aspects of what's happening.  Is there 
the ability to service higher development as -- as the city continues to grow?   
 
Blume:  Well, certainly -- certainly -- thank you for the question, Commissioner Grove.  
The -- certainly with looking at developing and getting approval for Stations 7 and 8, part 
of that is bringing a second ladder truck to -- to the community and that's certainly going 
to help out.  I mean it's exponential how much assistance to call volume and being able 
to meet the needs of the community that that's going to bring.  As you probably are aware, 
the City of Meridian only has one ladder truck and so if that ladder truck is on a medical 
emergency and there is a call to a multi-level occupancy, we are waiting for Nampa or we 
are waiting for Boise to show up to handle the emergency in Meridian.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.  Commissioners, anymore questions?   
 
Holland:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Holland, go ahead.   
 
Holland:  I don't really have a question.  I just wanted to say welcome and thanks for what 
you do.  We appreciate you.   
 
Blume:  Thank you, ma'am.  I appreciate being here.  Thank you.   
 
Lorcher:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Yes, Commissioner Lorcher.   
 

7Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 5 of 63 

 

Lorcher:  Is there any possibility with the COVID money coming through that we can 
allocate any of that to get another ladder truck for the City of Meridian or is that considered 
a different type of funding?   
 
Blume:  Commissioner Lorcher, that's an excellent question.  As far as that money goes, 
it is -- a ladder truck is impact fee eligible and that's sort of what we are looking to do at 
this point and, in fact, what we are -- what we are hoping and the intent of my office, as 
well as my team, is to utilize the ladder truck that's in -- in place right now and put it into 
a secondary position when we get a new ladder truck, which has already been purchased  
and it will be here in late fall, but instead of decommissioning that second ladder truck 
that would be decommissioned, we are going to keep it in -- in response status at Station 
6, so that it can -- it can meet that -- that -- that growing need and demand.  That's the 
intent right now.   
 
Seal:  Anything else from the other Commissioners?  All right.  Thank -- thank you, Chief 
Blume.  We appreciate you coming in, meeting with us and speaking with us while you 
have our undivided attention.  If there is anything else that you want to share with the 
Commission -- no?  You're good?   
 
Blume:  No, sir.  I love this community.  It's fantastic.  My family -- we couldn't be happier.  
I'm still pinching myself.  So, I feel blessed beyond measure.   
 
Seal:  Excellent.  Welcome -- welcome and we look forward to speaking to you more.  
Appreciate that.   
 
Blume:  All right.  Thank you for your time this evening.   
 
Seal:  All right.  At this point I will go ahead and explain the public hearing process.  We 
will open each item individually and began with the staff report.  Staff will report their 
findings on how the item adheres to the Comprehensive Plan and Unified Development 
Code.  After staff has made their presentation the application will -- the applicant will come 
forward to present their case and respond to staff comments.  They will have 15 minutes 
to do so.  After the applicant has finished we will open the floor to public testimony.  Each 
person will be called on only once during the public testimony.  The clerk will call the 
names individually and those who have signed up on our website in advance to testify.  
You will, then, be unmuted in Zoom or you can come to the microphones in chambers.  
Please state your name and address for the record and you will have three minutes to 
address the Commission.  If you have previously sent pictures or presentation for the 
meeting it will be displayed on the screen and our Clerk will run the presentation.  If you 
establish that you are speaking on behalf of a larger group, like an HOA, where others 
from that group will allow you to speak on their behalf, you will have up to ten minutes.  
After all those who have signed up in advance have spoken we will invite any others who 
may wish to testify.  If you would wish to speak on a topic you may come forward in 
chambers or if on Zoom press the raise hand button in the Zoom app or if you are only 
listening on a phone, please, press star nine and wait for your name to be called.  If you 
are listening on multiple -- multiple devices, a computer or a phone, for example, please, 

8Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 6 of 63 

 

be sure to mute those extra devices so we do not experience feedback and we can hear 
you clearly.  When you are finished, if the Commission does not have questions for you, 
you will return to your seat in chambers or be muted on Zoom and no longer have the 
ability to speak and, please, remember we will not call on you a second time.  After all 
testimony has been heard the applicant will be given another ten minutes to come back 
and respond.  When the applicant has finished responding to questions and concerns,  
we will close the public hearing and Commissioners will have the opportunity to discuss 
and, hopefully, be able to make a final decision or recommendation to Council -- to City 
Council as needed.   
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
 4.  Public Hearing for Jaker's Drive-Through Addition (H-2021-0012) by  
  BRS Architects, Located at 3268 E. Pine Ave. 
 
  A.  Request: Conditional Use Permit for a drive-through in the C-G  
   zoning district at an existing restaurant. 
 
Seal:  At this time I would like to -- I would like to open the public.  Oh, sorry.  I would like 
to continue -- or I don't know how to -- would like to open Jaker's Drive Through Addition,  
H-2021-0012, for continuous and I will take a motion on that.   
 
Holland:  Mr. Chair, do we have a date to move that to?   
 
Seal:  I believe it was April -- April 15th.   
 
Holland:  Mr. Chair, I move we continue Jaker's Drive Through Addition, H-2021-0012, to 
the hearing date of April 15th to allow the applicant some additional time to meet 
requirements.   
 
Grove:  Second.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  It's been moved and seconded for the continuance.  All in favor, please, say 
aye.  Any opposed?  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
 5.  Public Hearing Continued from March 18, 2021 for Skybreak   
  Neighborhood (H-2020-0127) by Laren Bailey of Conger Group,  
  Located at 3487 E. Adler Hoff Ln. and 7020 S. Eagle Rd. 
 
  A.  Request: Annexation of 80.46 acres of land with an R-8 and R-15  
   zoning districts.  
 
  B. Request: A Preliminary Plat consisting of 329 building lots, 40  
   common lots  and 14 other lots (i.e. 12 common driveway lots, 1  

9Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 7 of 63 

 

   private street lot and 1 lot for the existing home) on 79.69 acres of  
   land in the R-8 and R-15 zoning districts. 
 
Seal:  Okay.  Now we will go on to Skybreak Neighborhood, H-2020-0127, continued from 
March 18th, 2021, and we will begin with the staff report.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Good evening, Commissioners.  If you can see my presentation and hear 
me loud and clear, can you give me a thumbs up?  Great.  You never really know on this 
end.  Okay.  So, this is an annexation of 80.5 acres of land with an R-8 and R-15 zoning 
district.  It's a preliminary plat consisting of 328 buildable lots, with 40 common lots and 
14 other lots and one of these lots in an existing house that will remain.  It's a request for 
private streets in the gated portion of the development serving 112 residential units with 
two gates and, then, two more escape gates, so four total.  As a request for alternative 
compliance, which prohibited common driveways off private streets, to allow such in three 
different locations within the gated area, which -- and also there was a limit on the number 
of lots that could be served by gated, which the UDC says only 50 and, again, this would 
be 112.  So, here is the zoning, the future land use map, and the aerial.  The site consists 
of, as I said, 80 acres of land.  It's zoned RUT in the county right now.  It's located at 7020 
South Eagle Road and 3487 East Alder Hoff, which is east of South Eagle Road south of 
East Lake Hazel Road.  So, it's mostly within unincorporated Ada county, except that 
there is a subdivision to west called The Keep, which is being developed to the west and, 
then, right to the north you probably remember Pura Vida is being developed.  The Boise 
Ranch Golf Course is to the east, but the majority of this, as you can see, is within 
unincorporated Ada county, although these maps are somewhat dated, because, again, 
there is one to the north now, northeast corner that you can't see, what's Pura Vida, which 
has now been annexed.  So, a little history on this project.  The applicant submitted a 
previous proposal in June of 2020.  This proposal consisted of 353 building lots, all single 
family detached.  It was scheduled for the October 15th Planning Commission meeting.  
Staff mentioned to the applicant at the pre-app that there was issues and, then, when this 
went in -- when the staff report was released for the October 15th Planning Commission 
staff recommended denial.  Based on that the applicant withdrew the application.  Then 
they resubmitted this one in January of 2021.  So, a few months -- few months later.  This 
proposal is virtually the same with the exception that there is 24 or less lots.  There is 
some slightly enlarged open space in several areas and there is 30 single family attached 
units at the northwest corner of the project.  As I mentioned, staff does -- staff has had 
two pre-apps, multiple discussions, and in the staff report that we didn't support this 
project as proposed.  The Comprehensive Plan recommends six acres to the south and 
west for a low density residential.  The remaining 74 acres is recommended as medium 
density residential.  At the time of the first -- at the time of the staff report when it first went 
out only one comment had been received.  Since that time we have 11 more letters that 
have been received.  The issues expressed are transition -- or a lack of transition in 
density.  The R-15 zoning being inappropriate.  Lack of sidewalks and -- and the -- the 
reasoning from the citizens of lack of sidewalks to be able to fit more houses.  Inadequate 
green space.  This being fringe development there were some concerns listed about 
school capacity, road design, and proposed usage of Vantage Point Road, which I will 
get into shortly.  So, here is the proposed zoning for this project.  The applicant proposes 

10Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 8 of 63 

 

R-8 on the western portion of the site.  So, over here this will be residential eight.  On the 
eastern part, which will be over here, this is proposed as R-15.  R-8 requires 4,000 square 
foot lots in a 40 foot lot frontage.  R-15 allows 20 -- or 2,000 square foot lots and it does 
not have a lot frontage requirement.  This is important, because the applicant has 
requested R-15 zoning, so that they can do private streets that would not be allowed 
under R-8 or R-4 zoning.  All of the development is proposed -- all of these lots would 
meet the minimum requirements of R-8 -- it's unnecessary, again, except for the reason 
of wanting the private streets.  As proposed this zoning would zone the denser portions 
of the property to the less dense zoning -- so, this is the denser area, detached.  These 
would be zoned to the less -- less dense -- or sorry.  This would be zoned -- the denser 
area would be zoned to a lesser zone district -- less dense zone district and the lesser 
dense portion of the site over here would be zoned to the higher density zoned district.  
Staff has also mentioned to the applicant that we have a -- we have some issues with the 
transmission of lots.  To the southwest the development proposed lot sizes of 6,000 to 
eight -- or sorry -- 6,000 and 6,500 square feet.  That's in here.  The applicant has noted 
in a response letter that future development in the unincorporated land directly adjacent 
-- that would be down here and vacant now -- would likely develop into density of 8,000 
to 9,000 square foot lots and a density of three units per acre.  However, the future land 
use map actually recommends this area for less than three dwelling units per acre.  So, 
staff is not convinced that that would be the case.  At the middle south, which is here,  
here, and around in here, the development does include prior roads and it includes 
common open space as a buffer between the 80 feet and 120 feet, between the smaller 
lots of the subject property, which are here and the larger lots, which is in Vantage Point 
Subdivision here.  These are one acre lots.  At the southeast, like I said, the larger lots 
are proposed at approximately half acre.  So, here these lots are bigger.  Again they are 
about a half acre.  However, if you notice the way that they are turned, they are turned 
long wise, so even though these are half acre lots, this particular house is going to be 
looking at three houses.  So, that the density we believe does not transition very well.  I 
mentioned that in the staff report.  I incorrectly mentioned that this whole area was phase 
nine, when it's actually three different areas.  Phase nine, phase four, and phase seven.  
Staff does appreciate that the applicant proposes to limit many of the houses in this 
subdivision for one -- to one story, including many of them that are in here.  At the time 
that the staff report went out the applicant had submitted drawings proposing additional 
screening and buffering in this area.  The Planning Commission is to determine whether 
the applicant has provided an appropriate transition in lots to the Vantage Point 
Subdivision.  Everybody hear me and see me okay?  Okay.  The fire department has 
noted that this development can be serviced by the fire district, but has noted that there 
are concerns with this.  Here is some of the concerns.  The major one is that there is a 
large subdivision, 329 lots, that's only going to have one access.  Now, it has multiple 
points -- or it has two points of access to Eagle Road, one to here and there could be an 
emergency access here, but what's important to mention is that only Eagle Road is the 
only point of access.  If Eagle Road was blocked for any reason, then, the fire would have 
to go all the way around.  This would really slow down the time.  Fire has mentioned that 
they prefer a connection to Lake Hazel to the north.  They had mentioned that they think 
the preservation of the southern rim would prevent such an access.  Planning isn't 
convinced.  We know that maybe there could be some discussions about the properties 

11Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 9 of 63 

 

to the north to get a northern access in here, but we do have concerns with only one road 
in, one road out.  The west end, which is in here, does fall within the five minute response 
time, but the majority of the subdivision is outside of that five minute response time as 
you heard this evening.  The nearest station right now has a low reliability rating.  This 
would improve if and when the new southern station were built, which, in fact, you are 
going to hear that case next tonight.  Fire has also noted that the gates would cause 
delays.  Staff would prefer, as I said, that the applicant work with one or some of the 
property owners to the north to achieve access to Lake Hazel to give a second point of 
access out of the subdivision.  The applicant has noted in their March 17th response letter 
that Pura Vida, Pinnacle and Lavender Heights Subdivisions -- Subdivisions are all at the 
same distance or further and have the same reliability as Skybreak and they were 
approved.  However, staff notes that these other subdivisions have access from multiple 
streets, not just one street, and although Pura Vida has only one access from East Lake 
Hazel, it has a development agreement that limits the number of lots that can be built until 
there is a bridge built to the east.  So, it's really not apples to apples.  Pura Vida is also 
less than half the size of this development.  The applicant has submitted a fire phasing 
plan, which includes 59 lots in phase one, only phase nine -- only phase nine proposes 
access from anywhere other than Eagle Road -- or, sorry, phase eight, would be the one 
up here.  Phase nine here only has emergency access and I'm going to talk a little bit 
about that shortly.  So, here is access.  As already -- as already mentioned, all lots, except 
for 15 in phase eight, which would be the phase that is over here.  All of these lots utilize 
Eagle Road as the only point of access.  Phase eight cannot be built until Pura Vida builds 
out.  So, unless this happens this phase here isn't going to happen.  Phase nine does not 
have any improvement access.  There is an emergency access only easement that's 
allowed here, which makes appropriate access for this particular phase, but this -- all 23 
lots here cannot be served at present unless the applicant gets legal access to do that.  
Staff has concerns with supporting a project where we do not know if we have legal 
access and the developer at this point does not seem to have control over that.  This 
applicant -- this application proposes 112 lots to be served by a private road and two 
gates.  I have outlined in the red outline here -- this is the area that would be served by 
the private roads.  The private roads proposed as narrow as 27 feet and you have no 
sidewalk or landscaping.  The applicant's comment in their letter that 27 feet is a minimum 
width for ACHD, but it does not meet the ACHD template, because there is no sidewalks 
here.  These roads -- because these roads aren't built to the minimum ACHD standards, 
they pass the maintenance costs onto the homeowners in perpetuity or the homeowners 
association, as -- because they don't meet ACHD standards, if there were financial 
constraints or anything else in the future, ACHD would not accept these roads.  Staff does 
not understand how narrow roads and sidewalks is innovative or preferable to streets 
without sidewalks.  Staff has asked the applicant to explain why this is preferable, other 
than the ability to increase lots or reduce building costs and the only explanation we have 
gotten is that it provides an intimate setting and that there is a demographic that prefers 
a gated community.  Staff has concerns with supporting this feature without sufficient 
justification and what precedent you have set for future requests to build roads that don't 
meet minimum templates.  The applicant has requested alternative compliance to allow 
112 lots to be served by two gates and two emergency gates, three common driveways 
off of a common lot.  The planning director -- there is the -- the planning director has 

12Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 10 of 63 

 

denied this request for alternative compliance, believing that none of the conditions for 
alternative compliance was met.  One thing I do want to mention -- in their most recent 
response letter the applicant noted that the reason why the private streets are built as 
such is they are intentionally designed without sidewalks to prioritize using streets for 
walking, biking, and communing with neighbors and the cars are supposed to be a 
secondary use.  However, staff is skeptical, because given the location of this subdivision 
we have on the periphery of the -- of the city, every resident is going to have to drive 
through this subdivision to get in and out.  So, maybe -- they may be able to walk around 
within the subdivision, but they are still going to get in their cars and drive anywhere.  
Parks, amenities, and open space.  The applicant states that 14.99 acres or 18.8 percent 
of open space is provided and these parks and amenities include a three-quarter acre tot 
lot with play structure, climbing rock -- climbing rock and outdoor seating, which you can 
see here.  A one acre open sports park, which you can see here.  Pathways along the 
Farr Lateral, which you see here.  And there is also a pathway coming along this slope 
here.  There is a golf cart pathway here.  So, this would provide golf cart access into the 
Boise Ranch Golf Course.  There are several dog parks.  There was one shown here.  
There is one shown there.  And there is an entry park, which you can see here.  Staff 
does believe that some of these amenities would be valuable amenities, such as the 
sports park and the tot lot.  However, aside from much of what -- aside from that, much 
of what they are crediting as open space -- and I will show you here.  Much of what they 
are crediting as qualified open space is buffers along roads, endcaps, open space that 
could not have been used anyway, like the slopes or the area within the Farr Lateral, and 
not all of it is landscaped per the UDC requirements.  You have to have a one tree -- if 
there is a pathway you have to have one tree per hundred linear feet.  In addition to that 
for common open space you have to have one tree per 8,000 square feet.  We don't see 
that within the area of the Farr Lateral or around the slope area.  It's important to note that 
although the applicant has submitted a chart showing which open space meets the 
minimum dimensional requirements of the UDC -- so it meets our minimum requirements.  
For example, 50 by 100 feet and/or an open area on both ends -- the applicant is 
requesting that the city annex this property.  There are no present entitlements.  So, the 
Planning Commission and the City Council get to decide if this project is a quality of such 
that it is in the best interest of the city to annex.  Staff thinks a development of this size, 
80 acres, should have more quality usable open space and more of it compiled together 
and oriented in more convenient locations.  The applicant has submitted a pedestrian 
circulation plan with this proposal.  All the private streets that are shown without sidewalks 
are being reflected as pedestrian connections.  The Planning Commission should decide 
if those really are pedestrian connections and whether this is appropriate open space and 
amenities.  Here is the proposed pedestrian plan.  Again, you will see that all -- that the 
roads that do not have sidewalks or pathways here -- many of them there are shown as 
a pedestrian connection.  Here is just a picture of the elevations and overall we believe 
that the elevations are quality and we support what they are doing with that.  You can see 
the single family residential, as well as a duplex style elevation.  Staff recommends denial 
of this project.  Staff does not believe this project substantially complies with the 
Comprehensive Plan and is in the best interest of the city.  This is why.  There is only one 
access road for all but 15 lots and the applicant has not demonstrated legal access for 23 
of the lots in phase nine.  We believe that there is an inadequate transition of lots to the 

13Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 11 of 63 

 

lots in the Vantage Point Subdivision.  We are struggling with the higher density zoning 
for the lower density area and the lower density zoning for the higher density zoning area.  
We really think it's just for the purpose of allowing the private roads.  We don't support it, 
because we believe it's located on the fringe.  There is only a few places where it's 
adjacent to the city limits.  We don't believe it's an in-fill development.  We don't support 
it because of the narrow private streets with no sidewalks.  It does not meet the 
Comprehensive Plan for a walkable community.  Although fire says they can serve it, they 
have expressed concerns with this development.  There is some quality open space, but 
much of the open space being credited as not usable, even if it meets the minimum 
dimensional requirements.  The applicant has noted school capacity will not be an issue, 
because it's age targeted.  But unless it's deed restricted there is no way we can enforce 
whether or not it's going to be above 50.  So, it may be sold -- it may be marketed as over 
50, but, again, we can't enforce that unless there is some sort of deed restriction.  With 
that I will stand for your questions or comments if the Planning Commission has any.   
 
Seal:  Thank you, Alan.  And tonight I think we are going to do things just a little bit 
differently where we are going to go ahead and let the applicant come up and speak and, 
then, we will ask our questions of staff and the applicant and, then, we will go forward 
with the public portion of it.  So, at this point would the applicant like to come forward?   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, I just need some clarification.  Deb Nelson, if you are on the line 
can you, please, raise your hand.  I see two accounts that could be you, but I'm just not 
quite sure which one you are.  Thank you.  One moment.  Sorry, Deb, I lost you.  Raise 
your hand again, please.  Thank you.  One moment.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  If you would -- if you would like to state your name and address for the 
record and you will have your 15 minutes.   
 
Nelson:  Before I get started may I have access to share my screen, please?   
 
Weatherly:  There you go, Deb.  You should be able to share now.   
 
Nelson:  Thank you.  Well, good evening, Commissioners.  Can you see my screen?   
 
Seal:  Not yet.   
 
Nelson:  Okay.  Let me try again.  Okay.   
 
Seal:  There we go.   
 
Nelson:  It's working now.  Good evening, Commissioners.  My name is Deborah Nelson.  
My address is 601 West Bannock Street.  I'm here on behalf of the applicant and also 
members of the development team are here with me as well and available to answer any 
questions.  I'm going to start with a brief fly through of the development.  Thank you.  And 
with that I'm going to begin a PowerPoint here as well.  Skybreak is a premier golf 
community targeted to empty nesters.  We are super excited to bring this project to you 

14Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 12 of 63 

 

this evening.  We are disappointed that we have not been able to come to terms with 
staff.  As you can tell from staff's presentation that after a year of working with staff we 
don't see eye to eye on how to best use this unique property that has its own challenges 
and opportunities for this great development and so we will try to address all of the 
concerns that have come up.  We did provide a detailed written response to the staff to 
address each and every one of these concerns, because there just isn't enough time 
during a hearing to try to cover all of them.  So, I hope you have had an opportunity to 
review that and certainly we would be available to answer any questions you have about 
those, but -- but in some -- we meet the city code requirements that are appropriate for 
this site.  We certainly fulfill the goals of your Comprehensive Plan and we are ready to 
bring forth this great development and -- and describe it for you this evening.  It provides 
a unique living opportunity for Meridian residents that are looking for an exclusive 
community with exceptional rim view lots and designed for that active adult living.  It's 
integrated into the adjacent Boise Ranch Golf Course with a cart path for easy access.  
Over a mile of pathways wind through the neighborhood.  Generously landscaped 
boulevards and endcaps welcome residents home and create a sense of place.  Homes 
with premiere architectural finishes, inside and out, match the quality of this exceptional 
property.  The property is designated as medium density residential in Meridian's recently 
adopted comp plan, which requires three to eight homes per acre and Skybreak's 
proposed density is squarely within that 4.1.  Skybreak provides the necessary transition 
and density between the medium high residential designation to the north, which requires 
eight to 12 homes per acre, and the low density designation to the south with three homes 
or less per acre.  Additional roof tops in this quickly developing area of Meridian helps 
support the future commercial and retail uses along Eagle Road, Lake Hazel and Meridian 
Road, including the recently approved Pinnacle project, which has neighborhood 
commercial at Lake Hazel and Locust Grove.  The 77 acre Discovery Park and the new 
South Meridian Fire Station site are just a half mile to our west.  Pura Vida was just 
approved to our northeast.  So, we are close to shopping, healthcare services, 
employment opportunities and regional transportation arteries.  The Skybreak site plan 
embraces the property's challenges and opportunities.  The southern rim with a 50 to 60 
foot drop along our east end provides exceptional view lots, along with an opportunity to 
protect that natural hillside with open space and a pathway.  The lack of road access 
along our northeast and east and southeast due to these existing developments makes 
this site ideal for a gated community, because it doesn't block any road's connectivity.  
The golf course on our east side, of course, provides its own great opportunity to connect 
with pedestrian pathways and a cart path.  A large existing home will remain, so we will 
surround it with other large custom homes.  Attached housing in our northwest transitions 
to high density development planned to our north.  Larger custom home sites, along with 
open space and landscape buffers, transition to existing low density homes to our 
southeast.  Smaller lots and homes on the west along east Eagle Road transition to larger 
lots and homes in the east along the rim.  All of these will meet the R-8 dimensional 
standards in your code.  A portion of the Skybreak community is gated and utilizes private 
streets to create a more intimate neighborhood setting within the larger Skybreak 
community.  The development team has done extensive marketing and polling of past 
and future homeowners and has found that a demographic of senior homebuyers prefers 
the security that a gated community provides.  The gates do not create any pedestrian 

15Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 13 of 63 

 

barrier.  The sidewalks and pathways are not needed.  The gates slow cars and the 
narrower private streets are intentionally designed without sidewalks in many locations to 
provide a pedestrian lifestyle where residents walk and convene in the streets and engage 
with each other.  The development team has done other communities with the same 
private street design and customers pay a premium to be in these gated communities.  
Everyone views the street as walking paths that cars are allowed to drive on.  We have a 
video to illustrate this that we will show at the end if we have time.  The Skybreak property 
is ideally suited for a gated community because of several factors.  The steep natural 
hillside of the southern rim.  The lack of road connectivity on our eastern end above the 
rim due to the golf course to our east, the Vantage Point Subdivision on the southeast, 
and Pura Vida recently approved on our northeast, which does not include any road below 
the rim and down to connect to Lake Hazel.  Where we can connect to surrounding 
properties we do.  Below the rim in the northeast corner.  Three additional places on the 
north.  Our western entrance and two places on the south.  Skybreak includes premier 
open space and amenities.  The developer has researched and interviewed past 
homeowners and used the city code to plan the most productive amenities for this new 
neighborhood.  Skybridge's planned open space amenities far exceed city code 
requirements, providing 15 acres and 18.8 percent qualified open space and providing 14 
amenities where only four are required.  Skybreak's open spaces and amenities include 
-- in our three-quarter acre park we have a play structure, seating benches, shade 
structure and climbing rocks.  We have two dog parks, because they are in such high 
demand by residents, each with open vision fencing, dual boot system, and seating 
benches.  Our one acre open sports area with pathways, seating areas, and landscaping 
includes a large grassy central space to accommodate sports activities.  Our natural 
hillside area is 2.82 acres, including native grasses and a natural hillside path with open 
views that everybody will enjoy.  Here you can also see the golf cart access to the Boise 
Ranch Golf Course and one of the two ten foot regional pathway segments this 
development will provide.  Our entry park makes an attractive statement upon arrival and 
also caps the tree line collector where residents walk, with seating areas and specialty 
tree plantings and landscaping along the central collector and endcaps adds aesthetic 
beauty and passive open space areas throughout the development.  This slide in 
particular illustrates the value of that endcap landscaping to create a beautiful 
neighborhood, add privacy, and enhance walkways.  Skybreak has over a mile of 
constructed sidewalks and pathways, including a half mile of multi-use regional pathways 
and a unique natural hillside path similar to neighborhoods in the Boise foothills, plus a 
loop around the entire development and none of those include the walking paths that we 
consider paths within our private street network.  That is over and above that description.  
In addition, Skybreak is a half mile walk to the city's 77 acre regional Discovery Park.  
Skybreak provides great transition to surrounding developments.  This overview slide I 
think really shows the efforts that have been made to create that smooth transition to the 
high density development to our northeast and the low density development to our 
southeast.  Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan we transition through buffering, 
screening, and transitional densities and our northeast Skybreak transitions to the higher 
density Pura Vida development with smaller lots, continuous open space along the rim, 
and street connectivity above and below the rim.  And our southeast has a great transition 
to Vantage Point with buffering, screening, and transitional density.  Here you can see 

16Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 14 of 63 

 

that southeast area in more detail.  On the west end we provide separation with a 50 foot 
wide landscape buffer around a local street, a one acre park, plus berming, landscape 
screening and concrete walls to ensure no headlights disturb the neighbors.  We originally 
had planned to continue this open space buffer with a pathway along the southeast border 
as well, but the neighbor said they preferred backyards to a pathway, we adjusted our 
plan and moved the pathway to the north of those lots.  Instead where we directly abut 
the county lots in the southeast we have provided larger half acre lots with increased 
setbacks.  This cross-section shows the transition areas of the road, plus the 60 feet of 
landscaping and also the cross-section of the park that provides over 108 feet of 
separation to the property line.  Those areas have berming and heavy landscaping 
screening.  Along the road where there -- where there are two T intersections in response 
to neighbor concerns with headlights, the developer has added six foot concrete walls on 
berms with heavy landscaping to block all light.  This slide illustrates the wall placement, 
along with the heavy landscaping and the significant open space buffering that is provided 
here.  You can really see the difference.  In the limited area where we directly abut existing 
homes in the southeast corner, we provide half acre lots, doubled the rear setback to 30 
feet, and tripled the side setback of the corner lot to 15 feet.  The orientation of these lots 
is ideal for creating a bigger open space, larger setback between the house and our 
neighbors.  We also agreed on that corner lot to pull back the building footprint from the 
rear 45 feet on the north side and angling down to 110 feet on the south side as an 
accommodation to the adjacent land owner.  In addition to all of these accommodations 
on our property to create transition, when considering compatibility to surrounding uses 
it's appropriate for the Commission to look at the facts of those uses.  Here the adjoining 
homes are setback 50 to 75 feet from the property line.  So, for all of these reasons 
Skybreak provides more than sufficient transition to surrounding developments.  Water, 
sewer and all other infrastructure is adjacent to and ready to serve this site.  The 
developer has had several meetings with Joe Bongiorno in the fire department over the 
last year.  Joe's March 3rd comment letter, his final letter in the record, clearly states this 
project can be serviced by the Meridian Fire Department.  Joe requests opticom devices 
on gates and a wildland safety plan for the natural hillside and the applicant agrees.  The 
site entrance is within the emergency response time goals for the fire department and 
other first responders and, most importantly, it is within a half mile of the planned fire 
station near Discovery Park.  Skybreak is anticipated to have a low impact to schools 
based on the empty nester target demographic, but, regardless, the school serving 
Skybreak has capacity.  Hillsdale Elementary and Lake Hazel Middle School are within 
planned capacities and Meridian -- or, excuse me, Mountain View High School just -- was 
just expanded and is within the capacity range the city determined was acceptable in 
considering the Pura Vida development in the same area just two months ago.  ACHD 
has reviewed and approved the proposed development with conditions of approval that 
are all acceptable to the developer.  The already underway improvement and widening of 
Eagle Road and Lake Hazel road provide ample capacity for -- for the trips that are 
generated by this development.  ACHD has conditioned phase nine in the southwest on 
having access to a public road.  So, staff's concerns will be addressed by that condition 
already.  The Skybreak neighborhood includes 328 attached and detached single family 
homes in varying sizes and price points, ranging from the low four hundreds to over a 
million dollars.  Most of the homes are single story to appeal to empty nesters.  Homes 

17Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 15 of 63 

 

are all near your walking paths and open spaces and have walking and golf cart access 
to the Boise Ranch Golf Course.  Large rim view lots accommodate custom homes and 
provide the executive housing that we have heard city leaders requesting during the 
Comprehensive Plan hearing.  We are really excited to bring this premier golf community 
to Meridian and if we have time, as the chairman allows, we would show a short video 
about a successful gated community that has been developed in Boise by the same 
developer with the same street design that's proposed here.   
 
Seal:  Unfortunately, the 15 minutes is up.   
 
Nelson:  Okay.  That's fine.  It's in the record if anybody has the opportunity to review it.  
Thank you for your -- for your attention and be happy to stand for any questions.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  At this time are there any questions from the Commissioners to the applicant 
or staff?   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Grove, go ahead.   
 
Grove:  I thought with the development that had happened to the northeast of this project 
that there was conversations about having road connectivity when this was to come 
before us.  Was that -- was I misunderstanding that or did that get planned out?   
 
Nelson:  Chairman.  I would be happy to address that question if it was to me.   
 
Seal:  Go ahead.   
 
Nelson:  Commissioner, Mr. Grove, the Pura Vida development to the north didn't -- was 
not approved by the city requiring any access down the rim.  I think that they looked at 
the natural hillside and saw that it wasn't suitable for placing a road there.  The top portion 
of Pura Vida does -- above the rim does connect to Skybreak, but there is no connection 
between the top portion of Pura Vida down to the lower portion of Pura Vida creating that 
Lake Hazel connection and the city approved in that way.   
 
Seal:  I was going to say for clarity I was actually going to ask on the same question for 
the Pura Vida, because I remember that coming in and one of our main concerns was the 
fact that it had very limited connectivity to everything that was above the bluff.  So, that 
was a huge concern for -- you know, as far as connectivity and response time from the 
Fire Department and kind of hinged on what was going to be connected as far as their 
ability to build that out.   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Go ahead.   

18Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 16 of 63 

 

Yearsley:  So, I have been on the homeowners association board of a premier subdivision 
for the last 13 years and seeing the problems that have come through with developers 
leaving the association with the design of the development.  How do you address the 
gated community with no sidewalks and no parking and very -- you have got the rim lots, 
but you have got a lot of high density areas for parking on both sides of the street, getting 
access through the streets and, then, actually providing walkability.  I -- I struggle to see 
how that's going to work.   
 
Nelson:  Chairman, Commissioner, it actually is just medium density, it's not high density 
in there, and the -- the layout and design is very intentional based on prior developments 
that the developer has done successfully and demand from residents that want to live in 
exactly that type of development and the streets are purposefully narrow.  They are still 
wider than the city requirements for a private street and they match the size for a public 
street for ACHD, but they are purposely designed at that size to slow cars down.  So, it is 
designed to be more of a pedestrian area behind the gate than it is designed to be a 
vehicular speedway and -- and so that that design is intentional desired by our 
homeowners and successful in other locations.   
 
Holland:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Commissioner Holland.   
 
Holland:  Hi, Deb.  We -- we have seen a few of these gated communities that have -- the 
gates come down more for ornamental reasons than actually functional reasons.  Are 
these going to be ornamental or are they actually going to be functional gates that close 
where they there is a keypad that they have to enter to come into the subdivision?   
 
Nelson:  Chairman, Commissioner Holland, it -- it will be functional.  They will be functional 
gates and that's why they will have the opticom devices as requested by Fire, so that they 
can have quick fire access.  But it is exactly that functional security that the homeowners 
are looking for in this type of community.   
 
Holland:  One more follow-up question.  So, I know staff had some concerns about the 
way open space was configured, because a lot of it's on a lateral and some of its in areas 
that are not usable for open space.  It certainly looks like there is -- there is a good amenity 
package and a number of different types of amenities, but do you have any comments to 
try and -- were there conversations with staff where there was any go between that would 
have made them a little bit happier?  Would you be willing to still consider doing a larger 
open space, a more central open space amenity moving forward with the project?   
 
Nelson:  Chairman, Commissioner Holland, there -- there was a lot of discussion with staff 
over a long period of time about -- about the open space.  There were some adjustments 
that were made with the new application with that larger park on the south, but the -- the 
open space is very intentionally designed and it's -- it's spread throughout -- it's a very 
large property and so it's spread intentionally throughout the property to serve a large 
number of residents without having one central large location that everybody has to walk 

19Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 17 of 63 

 

a long distance to.  We have got connections from -- to each of these smaller areas 
through our landscape pathways and so it creates a network.  We don't need that central 
large part here either, because we are right next to the 77 acre Discovery Park of the city  
and I know that the city always looks to where your regional parks are when you are 
deciding how large an amenity open space package needs to be.  Here we far exceed 
what the code requires.  We are just presenting something that we think our homeowners 
want and desire that works well for this site and the type of demographic that we are 
catering to that isn't what staff prefers.   
 
Holland:  Thank you.   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chair, follow up on this question.   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Commissioner Yearsley.   
 
Yearsley:  The emergency access for the -- that you showed us to the south of your 
property, that's a private lane.  Do you have an agreement with the owner to access that 
private lane?   
 
Nelson:  Chairman, Commissioner Yearsley, yes, we do.  And it's been recorded.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Do we have any other questions from our Commissioners?  All right.  
Hearing none, we will go ahead and take public testimony.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair --  
 
Seal:  Yes.   
 
Weatherly:  -- we had several people sign in, none of which indicated a wish to testify.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  If anybody else would like to testify, go ahead and raise your hand within 
Zoom or if you are in chambers please raise your hand.  Gentleman in chambers, go 
ahead and come up and state your name and address for the record.   
 
Rankin:  Hello.  Thank you for having me.  My name is Stephen Rankin and I live at 3062 
North Firelight Place.  This is not my neighborhood, but I would just like to say as a 
resident of a community that does have a lot of empty nesters, as he said, I would say 
the importance of the sidewalk is absolutely vital.  You're going to have elderly people 
living in a neighborhood with other people who drive in that neighborhood,  you are going 
to need sidewalks.  I walk my dogs every day.  I'm sure a lot of empty nesters have dogs 
every day and I think, again, the importance of sidewalks should not be overlooked.  
That's all I got to say. 
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you very much.  Do we have anybody else in the audience who would 
like to come up and testifying?  Anybody else on Zoom?  I was going to say, it looks like 
Chief Bongiorno -- oh, we got one person raising their hand right now.   

20Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 18 of 63 

 

Bongiorno:  It can wait.   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Chief Bongiorno, you can go ahead and talk now and we will bring the 
other person in if you would like.   
 
Bongiorno:  Okay.  Mr. Chairman and Commissioners, I just wanted to address the 
comments that Alan had earlier on the project.  So, yes, excuse me, I can -- the Fire 
Department can service the project.  The Fire Department can service any project that is 
built within the city boundaries.  The concern that I have is what -- what's it going to look 
like and so as it stands with this particular project, Station 4 is down the road.  The chief, 
as he alluded to earlier, our response times are extended and we are -- we are kind of 
stretched at the moment.  So, with that, if Station 4, with the low reliability rating that they 
have, if they are not available, the next fire station that's closest is going to be Engine 14, 
which I checked the reliability rating as of last week and their rating actually has come up 
a little bit.  They are sitting at about 81 percent, whereas before they were at 78 percent 
where Station 4 was.  So, with the two stations with lower reliability ratings, my concern 
was that fire station is ten minutes away, you know, just using Google Maps, that's not 
using -- you know, going ten over or whatever Boise fire department allows for their fire 
engines and, then, after that the next closest station would be Boise Station 17, which is 
11 minutes away and, then, I believe you come back to Meridian for the next closest, 
which would be 12 minutes away.  So, again, I believe Chief Blume likes to use the term 
time is tissue.  So, if it's not a structure fire and let's say grandma is having a heart attack, 
that time that it takes for us to get there or for the Ada County Paramedics to get there, 
that tissue is dying and so that's what we are looking at is if Station 4 is out of their 
quarters, it's going to be a very long response time out to this project and, then, as Alan 
alluded to, if you use the GIS map that our GIS people have built for us, the front third 
falls within that five minutes, but once we get back into the subdivision and we get deeper 
into these streets, it's going to take more time.  So, for us this project would look a lot 
better once station -- the south station, if it gets approved by Council, it would look a lot 
better.  So, that's kind of what the cause -- the concerns were with the Fire Department.  
You can build any -- you can approve -- approve any project anywhere, we will be there.  
It's kind of like the Field of Dreams, build it and we will come.  Build it and we will be there.  
It's just a matter of what's it going to look like and -- and that's where this project falls.  So, 
for us that's kind of our biggest concern or my biggest concern with the project and, again, 
if the station -- if the south station right around the corner was built, man, it's a no brainer 
then, because the fire station is right there and it's -- it would look a lot better.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.  Appreciate the comments and thanks for -- 
 
Bongiorno:  Thanks for your time tonight.   
 
Seal:  Uh-huh.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, I see one person raising their hand.  Kathy White, I see you.  One 
moment.   
 

21Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 19 of 63 

 

Seal:  Okay.  Kathy, if you want to unmute yourself.  Do you have anything -- anything 
else going?  Please unmute.   
 
White:  My -- my name is Kathy White.  I live at 3804 East Vantage Point Lane.  The three 
concerns I will mention are the following:  Sidewalks are lacking.  Sidewalks offer -- offer 
safety for pedestrians.  Our subdivision, it was built 20 years ago, it does not have 
sidewalks.  Twenty years ago our subdivision was rural.  Also it only has 16 homes, which 
sub -- substantially decreases the safety issue.  Skybreak has 20 times the homes of our 
subdivision.  How safe will it be for all those individuals in that subdivision without 
sidewalks?  And to me it seems the lack of sidewalks only benefits the developer's bottom 
line.  My second concern is Skybreak markets this no sidewalk subdivision as ideal for 
senior citizens.  I do not see a senior citizen center, a swimming pool, or any real 
amenities.  Flashy videos in my opinion and marketing a subdivision as unique and 
special does not make that a reality.  My third concern that I will mention is the lack of a 
fair transition from our subdivision to the proposed subdivision.  Our subdivision consists 
of larger lots.  Our home sits on an acre and a quarter and it is feasible and reasonable 
that the developer, especially with such a large development, could work with five 
adjacent homeowners by putting one single story home behind each of us.  That is also 
respectful to these five homeowners who have view lots.  As the lady just mentioned for 
Skybreak in her presentation that view lots are important.  So, please, respect our view 
lots in regards to transitions and the city planning staff has rejected this plan twice and 
we are also asking you to deny it as well.  We would like to work with the developers to 
improve the transition between our rural -- you know, our acreage subdivision and hope 
the Commissioners will require a division of -- or subdivision of substance and less 
verbiage.  Thank you for your time.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.  Okay.  Is there anybody else online that would like to testify?  If so, 
please, hit the raise your hand button within Zoom.  We are not seeing anybody pop up 
there and nobody else in chambers.  Okay.  Would the applicant like to come back?   
 
Nelson:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Members of the Commission.  Well, we can keep 
these points brief, then, and stand for anymore questions you have.  Just a few things I 
want to highlight just in case it's not clear.  We do meet the definition of private streets in 
your code and meet the width requirements in your code.  In fact, we exceed them.  The 
streets need to be 24 feet wide in your code and we are 27 feet wide and your code does 
not require private streets to have sidewalks.  So, we are not asking for any change to 
your code in that regard.  We -- we believe that this is a level of preference.  Not every 
homeowner will choose this.  In fact, our homes that are outside of our gates do have 
sidewalks, are not gated, and so there will be a choice that's available to consumers that 
they can make a selection based on what they desire.  Turning to a few comments about 
fire.  We appreciate Joe's comments that really when that new station is built there is no 
concern and that new fire station is going to be coming on line about the same time we 
have homes coming online here.  But in the meantime with Station No. 4 and the 
comments about reliability and accessibility to our site, we are in no worse position -- in 
fact, a much better position than developments that have been approved by the city in 
recent months in the same area -- with Pura Vida that is immediately to our northeast that 

22Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 20 of 63 

 

was approved to use the same Station No. 4, as well as further back the Brighton Pinnacle 
project and they are over three miles to the -- to Station No. 4.  Much further distance.  
And so the -- the expectation has been as the city has considered all of these 
developments, that the new station would be coming online to aid and shortening that 
time frame.  As far as accessibility, this slide that's in front of you now I think illustrates 
very well how if there is a disaster on Eagle Road and somehow a truck has got to go 
around, well, there is roads that have been developed through The Keep and that is the 
point of these interim collector road networks that are developed off of the arterial, that 
there are places fire trucks can go around.  If some -- if a truck did have to go a longer 
distance and we are in no different position than any other development, including 
Pinnacle to our north were that to happen.  So, we appreciate that the Fire Department is 
always balancing these concerns and safety.  We appreciate that they did carefully review 
our development, meet with us many times about how it could be serviced and we ask 
for your approval consistent with how the city has approved other developments in our 
area.  And, finally, just, again, to touch on open space, you know, in -- in addition to what 
is around us, which is so important, not just a regional park that we talked about before, 
but let's not forget that we are next to a golf course.  It is -- it is like having an -- that large 
amenity within our development, because our development is designed to take advantage 
of that golf course and so every resident in our neighborhood will have pathway and golf 
cart access to get down to that golf -- that golf course.  We don't need to add a larger 
central amenity when you have those two off-site larger resources.  And -- and, again, 
this is a matter of preference, like the sidewalk.  The developer has carefully considered 
what their target home buyer desires through extensive interviews and charetting 
processes they are not interested in providing a community center, because that's not 
what's in demand for this type of development and that's not what they want to provide 
here.  They have really carefully thought about what that open space is going to look like, 
how it's going to live, how it's going to provide that aesthetic beauty.  The landscaping 
impacts are critical to how this development feels when you enter it.  We don't want to 
take all those off and put them in a central park.  We are -- we are not targeting the type 
of homeowner that desires that central amenity.  And it's certainly in the developer's 
interest to succeed in this regard and because we meet your city code, we would ask the 
Commission to follow your city code and give us a recommendation for approval based 
on that and let the developer have some creativity and discretion in how they meet 
demand.  So, with that I would stand for anymore questions you may have.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.  Commissioners, do we have any other further questions?   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chairman?   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Commissioner Yearsley.   
 
Yearsley:  So, with regard to the golf course community, is it just because you have a 
pathway to the golf course?  Is that the only amenity?  I'm -- I'm trying to figure out how 
you tie the golf course to this subdivision besides just the pathway to golf course.  I just 
don't see it.  Is there anything else that I have missed from the golf course?  Is there any 
like putting greens, any of that that's associated with the subdivision?   

23Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 21 of 63 

 

Nelson:  Chair and Commissioner, actually, there is quite a bit here and primarily it is 
access, but to the -- to develop a residential development immediately adjacent to a golf 
course is the amenity.  That's how a lot of residential golfing communities are developed 
is proximity.  It's being able to get into a golf cart in your -- in your driveway and head 
down to the course.  That is what makes that amenity.  We also have had to negotiate 
that pathway to get out onto the golf course.  We didn't just happenstance get to add that 
and so that was worked out with the developer and I think that the -- the putting is 
something that could happen in that large grassy area where we have got room for sports.  
I think that's a nice idea.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Do we have any other questions from our Commissioners?   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair? 
 
Holland:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Mr. Grove, I heard you first.  Go ahead.   
 
Grove:  All right.  I will ask a couple, but I will just ask one right now, just kind of following 
up on that last question.  So, with the northeast portion of this project where the golf path 
does go through, does that connect directly to the course or does that go through another 
subdivision for that connectivity to the golf course?   
 
Nelson:  Commissioner Grove, it goes directly.   
 
Seal:  Do you have a follow up, Commissioner Grove?   
 
Grove:  I will wait.  I will let Commissioner Holland go ahead.  I got to rethink my -- that 
was just a follow-up question that I didn't actually plan, so I will get back to the one in my 
head.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Commissioner Holland, go ahead.   
 
Holland:  Thanks, Mr. Chair.  Deb, so tonight we have a little bit -- always have a tough 
challenge when staff recommends denial of a project, because it -- it puts us in a specific 
spot where we can't recommend approval of a project if staff recommended denial, 
because we don't have conditions of approval to move forward on.  So, we get to a point 
where we either have to work to make some recommendations for -- for the applicant to 
come back to us with some of those changes and do a continuance where we can look 
at seeing if there is ways we can find some middle ground on some of the concerns that 
are raised by staff and see if we can find that middle ground or we have the option of 
recommending denial, so it just moves forward to Council so they can deliberate.  I always 
hate this recommend denial and have something go forward to Council.  Certainly they 
have the ability to request staff to create conditions of approval, but what is your -- your 
hope tonight?  Are you hoping that the Commission can give you some recommendations 
and we can continue this to a future date where we can discuss and maybe negotiate 

24Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 22 of 63 

 

some of these challenges or would you prefer to see us move forward with a 
recommendation of denial?   
 
Nelson:  Commissioner Holland, that's a great question.  It's -- it's not a great position for 
us to be in where we have worked really hard with staff to try to get here, but that's exactly 
why we did propose -- in our written response proposed conditions of approval.  We tried 
to address each and every detailed concern that was raised and so I just apologize in 
advance for the ten page letter, but that's what it took to -- to go through each and every 
item, so that you knew that we had thoughtfully considered each of the items raised by 
staff and at the end of our letter we propose conditions of approval that we think would 
be appropriate for your consideration.  If -- if the Commission had an opportunity to review 
those or would like to discuss them, we would be happy to engage with that.  Of course, 
if you are ready to approve us and need time to craft conditions of approval, we would 
certainly support that.  If -- if the -- if the notion, though, is that you think we are still too 
far apart from staff and -- and you want us to go back and work again I guess we want to 
communicate to you that we -- we have exhausted that effort and it -- I think it's obvious 
from the presentations tonight that we just have a different opinion about these same 
items, so -- I mean Alan describes his -- his point of view on each of the same items we 
have addressed and so you have gotten to hear that and now at this point if you are 
inclined to agree with us, we would welcome and appreciate your support as you look to 
your code and the comp plan to base that decision.  But if you are not there, then, I guess 
we would prefer a denial to an indefinite deferral.   
 
Holland:  So, I guess I could follow that question up, Mr. Chair, if I can.   
 
Seal:  Yeah.  Go ahead, Ms. -- Ms. Holland.   
 
Holland:  To see if staff had comments on the proposed conditions that the applicant put 
forward.  I'm assuming that staff would ask for more time to review those if that's the 
direction the Commission goes and I'm not saying that -- we certainly have a lot of things 
to deliberate on this evening and we will -- we will talk through all those items, but I'm just 
curious where staff is at before we decide to keep this open for deliberation with the -- 
with the hearing open or -- or go to deliberation closing it.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Yes, Ma'am, Ms. Commissioner, I -- I'm assuming you want me to speak 
directly.   
 
Holland:  Thanks, Alan. 
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Alan.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Leaving aside other comments that I had on some of the stuff that's been 
discussed, purely just talking about the conditions that you speak to, I guess it depends 
on what your issues are going to be.  There is -- there is some pretty significant -- I mean 
in regards to, for instance, private roads, if they had to widen the roads and they add 
sidewalks, that could be a significant amount of redesign.  There could be some significant 

25Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 23 of 63 

 

redesign in regard to whether or not the infrastructure fit.  So, if we are talking simple, like 
tweaking some open space, I think that's easy.  If we are talking about there is some 
issues with the road, there is issues with the access, you know, you have to -- they -- they 
only have emergency access from the south.  They don't have full access.  We are talking 
much bigger issues and I don't think we could just craft conditions of approval, it almost 
might be a withdrawal and resubmittal of a new application.   
 
Seal:  Do you have any follow up, Commissioner Holland?   
 
Holland:  No follow up for now.  I think I will just be interested to hear what the other  
Commissioners have to say and we can talk through that, whether we do that open or 
closed on the hearing.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Do we have any other questions from our Commissioners?   
 
Lorcher:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Commissioner Lorcher.   
 
Lorcher:  For -- this is for staff.  I know one of the huge concerns was emergency access 
and only one access point on Eagle Road because of the proximity of the current fire 
station.  But we are also -- if it's not tonight, it's soon that we are looking at a new fire 
station.  If we postponed a decision tonight until the new fire station was approved or not 
approved, would that change staff's recommendation for this project?   
 
Tiefenbach:  Thank you, Commissioner.  I guess the -- the issue is not just one thing.  It's 
a -- it's a number of things.  I think that if the fire station was approved and Mr. Bongiorno 
said it was funded and capped, then, sure, that would eliminate our concerns with fire 
access.  We would still have issues with the parks.  We still have issues with the density, 
with the narrow roads and those sidewalks.  So -- so, yes, it would remove one of the 
seven issues that we have.   
 
Lorcher:  Okay.  But there is more than one, so --  
 
Tiefenbach:  Yeah.  Usually if there is -- you know, we will usually do what we can to try 
to make recommendations with conditions and in this case there was a number of things 
to the point that we just thought we were either going to be conditioning a whole lot of 
things or we were just going to have to say we can't support it as it is.   
 
Holland:  Thank you.   
 
Bongiorno:  Mr. Chairman?   
 
Seal:  Was that Commissioner Yearsley?   
 
Bongiorno:  Chief Bongiorno.   

26Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 24 of 63 

 

Seal:  Oh, Chief Bongiorno.  Go ahead.   
 
Bongiorno:  Thank you, sir.  Mr. Chairman and Commissioners, I just wanted to reiterate 
that south station has not been approved yet.  We are going through design and you are 
going to have the zoning in front of you tonight, but the -- it has not been budgeted for to 
construct it and it has not been budgeted for staffing.  So I want to make sure that that's 
clear, that it has not been approved, it's not -- it is not moving forward.  We are only doing 
design at this point.   
 
Seal:  And, Joe, do you have a ballpark timeline on how long that generally takes before 
you would be able to service from that location?   
 
Bongiorno:  I believe if both fire stations move forward, I believe -- trying to remember 
Chief Butterfield's timeline.  I believe the south station would open in July of 2023 and, 
then, the north station would open like three months after that.  And I don't know if Kris is 
still on the line, if that's correct or not.  I don't see him, so -- but it was -- it was roughly 
July of 2023.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.  We appreciate that input.   
 
Bongiorno:  Yes.   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Commissioner Grove.   
 
Grove:  Yeah.  I have a question for you in regards to how -- how this is laid out a little bit.  
You have a fairly blank canvas and there are several shared driveways that have been 
laid out.  Is there a purpose behind so many shared driveways on this project?   
 
Nelson:  Yes.  So, there are -- there are a number of common driveways in the 
development that creates efficiency and access and -- but everything is designed in 
accordance with your code for that.  Within the gated community we have a request for 
alternative compliance only because your code requires that for a private street to access 
a common driveway, but that -- that issue has now been appealed to the -- and that will 
be decided by the Council.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Any other questions by the Commissioners?   
 
Parsons:  Mr. Chair?  This is Bill.   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Bill.   
 
Parsons:  I just wanted to just provide some context on this -- this application and just 
because, you know, the applicant is correct, we have been -- probably spent over two 
years discussing development of this site and we are definitely -- I appreciate all the 

27Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 25 of 63 

 

meetings that we have had with the applicant on this, because I think it's been -- it's 
worthwhile, it's definitely eye opening to sit down and talk about 40 acres in an area that's 
rapidly developing and how to get all of these pieces to align.  Just from -- from staff's 
perspective this really comes down to a timing issue.  Is this really the right time and that's 
what the purpose of annexation is.  You know, one of the findings is is this in the best 
interest of the city and you as that body has to make that recommendation.  The other 
piece of it -- it's not as simple as just continuing this and working with staff, coming up 
with appropriate conditions.  In our mind, at least from our perspective, we -- the director 
or staff has acted on the applicant's alternative compliance request and the private street 
application and we got denied both and that is the director's decision to do that.  Now, the 
Council -- the Commission doesn't have the ability to overturn the director's decision, but 
the Council does.  So, that's something that the Council will have to take under 
consideration based on your recommendation tonight.  But to me if you were to continue 
this and have staff work with the applicant, your motion would almost have to say you 
need to incorporate public streets within the entire development, because that's really 
where we are at.  In order for staff to support an alternative compliance request there is 
certain findings we have to make and certain criteria that has to be met in order to be 
eligible for alternative compliance, as Alan alluded in his presentation.  He did not -- it 
was his professional opinion that they did not provide that justification of why this is equal 
to or better than code, the requirements of complying with code, meaning why should we 
allow 112 lots when the code says you're allowed up to 50 as an example.  So, that's kind 
of where we are at -- on that portion of this development.  So, it does get a little bit dicey 
in tonight's deliberation, where you guys are trying to find that balance of us all the time 
collaborating working together, but as the applicant alluded, you know, sometimes we are 
kind of to the point where we kind of agree to disagree.  Staff is of the opinion that there 
could be consolidated open space.  We talked about if we were to support this project 
that we will put some restrictions in a development agreement that would limit the number 
of phases that come on throughout -- within a certain time frame.  There is a lot of moving 
parts here to try to get this to align with trying to meet the goals of the Comprehensive 
Plan and the requirements of the code.  If -- we have denied the project -- the application, 
essentially, they are not meeting the code.  That's how it works.  We don't feel private 
streets are appropriate in this development and -- and that has been discussed with the 
applicant and, again, they wanted to move forward and get some input.  Of course, you 
guys have an option to weigh in on whether you think private streets are appropriate.  But, 
again, you don't have the ability to overturn that.  And Alan and I shared with the applicant 
a list of concerns, we shared with them some ideas and, again, we are to the point where 
we kind of agree to disagree and that's -- that's really why we are here tonight.  It really 
is if it's at the point -- it's at the public forum and all sides -- views are looked at and you 
guys deliberate on it.  So, I will turn it back over to you, but I just -- I just wanted to at least 
give you some context that, you know, it really comes down to, again, kind of my closing 
remarks, just timing.  Is this the right time for this development.  I think the one thing that 
has occurred from the previous applications to this one is that we have annexed additional 
properties in the north -- northeast of this site or to the north of this boundary of this 
project.  So, we have annexed more property than -- we realize the constraint out there.  
We are trying to address of those.  But, again, we are talking about a fairly large 
development, 323 lots, and that's why we have kind of been cautious and been trying to 

28Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 26 of 63 

 

work with the applicant to get an appropriate fit for that area.  Hopefully I'm not too long 
winded, but I just wanted to share some of that insight with you.  It's not as simple as just 
continuing it and negotiating out conditions.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank -- thank you, Bill.  Appreciate the perspective on that.  
Commissioners, do we have anymore questions for the applicant or staff?  Okay.  Hearing 
none, need a motion to close the public hearing.   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Grove.   
 
Grove:  I move to close the public hearing for Skybreak Neighborhood, H-2020-0127.   
 
Holland:  Second.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  It has been moved and seconded to close the public hearing for hearing 
item number H-2020-0127, Skybreak Neighborhood.  All those in favor say aye.  Any 
opposed?  Okay.  The motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
Seal:  All right.  Who wants to start us off?   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Yearsley, go ahead.   
 
Yearsley:  I don't mean to be -- but anytime you hear a -- an honest something -- it's 
usually not the case.  I have to admit the premier community is in the eye of the beholder  
and at this point I don't view this a premier community.  I think I -- I look at it as a -- trying 
to pack as many homes on 80 acres as they can, in my opinion.  In this area we are on a 
rim lot.  If you look at the homes around this, they are either a half acre all the way around 
or acres or larger.  I would refer to see this as an R-4 at minimum with all private -- with 
all ACHD streets.  We have -- we have private streets within our community and -- and 
we have to devote significant amount of our HOA dues to maintaining those private roads 
and they have got a lot of private streets, no sidewalks, to me this does not fit this area 
and I think I -- I just -- I can't -- you know, with the amount of common driveways they 
have with the number of homes on this, it just feels like they are just trying to stuff as 
many homes in this subdivision -- or the subdivision as possible.  So, I don't see it as a 
premier community and I don't think it fits this area and I can't recommend it even going 
forward.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you, Commissioner Yearsley.  Anybody else want to jump in?   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?   

29Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 27 of 63 

 

Seal:  Commissioner Grove, go ahead.   
 
Grove:  I will keep it somewhat short.  I have a lot of issues with this as it's presented to 
us.  From the amenities, to the shared drive, to the gated community as -- as it's laid out  
and I have no doubt that if they were to build this that they could sell those homes.   
 
Seal:  Okay.   
 
Grove:  I don't know how fast, maybe 20 years from now, and so I have concerns there.  
But I don't -- I could probably list ten different things that I have concerns with, but I would 
be in favor of denial on this one.   
 
Seal:  Thank you, Commissioner Grove.  Commissioner Lorcher or Commissioner 
Holland?   
 
Lorcher:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Lorcher, go ahead.   
 
Lorcher:  Being the new kid on the block here and in my short term with the committee, 
we haven't denied I think anything that -- during my time, but Chief Bongiorno makes a 
compelling argument and when the police chief doesn't see that this is the best use at 
this point in time, I would be hard pressed to say yes.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.   
 
Holland:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Holland, go ahead.   
 
Holland:  I would agree with my fellow Commissioners.  While I think there is certainly 
some nice components to what they tried to do here and I -- I always appreciate the 
aerials, it's nice to see the marketing, but I really want to focus more on the plat than what 
the marketing shows.  A couple of the bigger concerns I have.  The transition to the south, 
transition to the east, while they provide some lots that gives that transition, they could 
have provided more that -- that gave a better transition and a -- in a lower density area to 
that kind of R-4, not the -- and I know that they -- they proposed R-15 just for the reason 
of trying to get the private streets, but it -- it comes across misleading.  It's -- it's almost 
that they are -- they are trying to just get it in there as tightly as possible.  So, I -- I'm not 
a huge fan of private streets in general.  I would much rather see them be public streets.  
I like sidewalks.  I have been in neighborhood that don't have sidewalks and it certainly 
can work, but typically what ends up happening is you have guest parking along the side 
of the road and you end up having people not walking along the curb area, they are 
walking right down the middle of the street and in the nighttime, especially if you have 
senior citizens and it's a targeted community, I would have concerns about having senior 
citizens walking down the middle of the road even though I can understand the intent of 

30Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 28 of 63 

 

what they are suggesting, I just don't think it's -- I don't think it's going to work as well as 
suggested.  I also don't really love age restricted communities, because while there might 
be a market for it right now, it actually will lower the value of those homes in the future, 
because they are restricted to a certain age demographic if they really do have a restricted 
community and while there might be need for that right now, our community -- those 
change over time and I hate to see a subdivision that can't have -- won't say what was 
promised or would need to change or adapt in the future and so I -- I'm not a big fan of 
age restricted communities.  I would rather see a community that has targeted maybe 
towards seniors, but I don't like the age restricted necessarily either.  There is certainly a 
lot of challenges and I -- it's always hard for me to recommend approval of a project when 
staff has a lot of concerns as well and it's not just one or two small things.  So, I think our 
hands are a little bit tied tonight.   
 
Seal:  Yeah.  I tend to agree with you on that.  I mean there is -- I had concerns outside 
of just what the staff had in there.  I mean the no sidewalks and private streets are a big 
one for me as well.  As I look at it and as I have said before, I mean developers -- and 
although there is cost associated with it and I don't want to discount that, they have an 
infinite number of chances to get it right.  We get one.  So, this just doesn't feel right and 
until it does and there is more agreement on what's been done or what can be done, then, 
I definitely would side with staff with it, but I don't get to vote in this one, so that said I'm 
more than willing to take a motion at this point.   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Yearsley, go ahead.   
 
Yearsley:  After considering all staff, applicant, and public testimony, I move to 
recommend denial to the City Council of file number H-2020-0127 as presented during 
the hearing -- as presented during the hearing date on April 1st, 2021, for the following 
reasons:  So, a higher density zone for the lower density area.  The lower density zoning 
versus higher density zoning.  R-15 to R-8 located on the fringe of the city limits and not 
an in-fill development.  Narrow private streets with no sidewalk does not meet 
Comprehensive Plan policy for a walkable community.  Some of the qualified open space 
that might be credited, is not usable, even though it meets minimum requirements.  And 
I just don't think it fits the area.  It's not -- the surrounding element is -- is more of a lower 
density community and this to me feels like a very high density community.   
 
Seal:  Do I have a second on that?   
 
Holland:  I will second.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  It has been moved and seconded to recommend denial of Item No. H-2020- 
0127, Skybreak Neighborhood with the aforementioned reasons.  All those in favor say 
aye.  Any opposed?  Okay.  Motion carries as recommended for denial.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 

31Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 29 of 63 

 

 6.  Public Hearing for Meridian South Fire Station & Police Substation (H-
  2021-0008) by City of Meridian, Located at 2385 E. Lake Hazel 
 
  A.  Request: Annexation of 4 acres of land with the R-8 zoning district to 
   develop the property with a fire station and police station. 
 
Seal:  Okay.  That one out of the way.  We will go ahead and move on to H-2021-0008,  
Meridian South Fire Station and Police Substation.  We will begin with the staff report.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Yes.  Hang on.  Can you hear me okay?   
 
Seal:  Yes, we can.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Let me get to my share screen here.  All right.  There we go.  All right.  
Commissioners, this is an annexation and rezoning.  It is four acres of land with an R-8 
zoning district to develop an 11,650 square foot fire station and an 11,000 square foot 
police substation building.  The property is zoned RUT in Ada county, surrounded by R-
4, R-15 and R-14.  It's located at 2035 Lake Hazel Road, which is the south side of Lake 
Hazel Road between South Locust Grove and South Eagle Road.  The Comprehensive 
Plan recommends this for medium density residential.  However, in the Comprehensive 
Plan it does show this general area for being recommended for an emergency services 
type building.  Again this is a request for annexation and zoning of 40 acres of land with 
the R-8 zoned district, but although much of the land surrounding the site was annexed 
in 2015 as the South Meridian Annexation, the subject property was not included as part 
of this annexation.  This site is directly adjacent to the new Discovery Park.  You can 
basically see it right here.  It's directly west of this property.  The plans are to develop the 
fire station and the police substation separately.  It may or may not be at the same time.  
My understanding is they may start as early as next year.  I believe that certainly they do 
have a duty to clarify.  Following annexation a conditional use permit will be required for 
this, so it would come back to you, Planning Commission, and you would be the approval 
or denial body on that.  That is because it is a public or quasi-public use and that is 
required to go through conditional use approval.  The applicant has proposed to construct 
two driveways from the site to the new collector.  So, here is Lake Hazel Road.  Eventually  
-- so, there is existing access here and over here there is existing access to Discovery 
Park.  ACHD eventually wants to turn off that access.  In fact, our regulations say that you 
should be moving accesses off of arterials.  There will eventually be a collector that's 
going to be built here.  The applicant will be required to build this collector down to the 
south side of the property.  They will also be required to build a ten foot wide pathway 
along the north and ten foot wide pathway along the east that is required for our master 
pathways plan.  Again, the applicant will be required to close this access and they will 
open up two new accesses.  One access will be for the fire department, one larger access 
will be -- or sorry.  One access here will be for the police department.  One larger access 
will be here for the fire department.  Eventually this -- this area is planned for signalization.  
The applicant has submitted colored elevations for both buildings as you can see here.  
Architecture consists of sloped roof buildings with CMU and wood grade metal panel as 
the primary fill materials.  Exposed timber frame and metal soffit accents would be 

32Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 30 of 63 

 

included with that.  This proposed architecture will be reviewed in detail if the -- the 
annexation is approved and the conditional use is approved, they would have to do a 
certificate of zoning compliance, which is administrative, which would be reviewed by staff 
and we will look at the architecture against the architectural standards manual and with 
that I will entertain any questions if there are any.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  At this point we will go ahead and have the applicant come forward.  I'm not 
sure who is speaking on behalf of this for the city tonight.   
 
Redman:  Mr. Chair, Gunnar Gladics from RFM, Rice Fergus Miller, is going to be the 
lead on this and he is on the meeting.   
 
Gladics:  Hello.  Can everybody hear me?   
 
Seal:  Yes, we can.  Go ahead and state your name and address for the record and go 
ahead.   
 
Gladics:  My name is Gunnar Gladics, architect.  I'm with Rice Fergus Miller.  Address is 
1422 56th Avenue Northwest, Gig Harbor, Washington.  And thank you, Mr. Chairman 
and Commissioners.  I would like to start with thanking Chief Blume for the introduction 
into why this project is needed.  Certainly the response time and the public service that 
this particular site would provide the city is of utmost importance.  Also one of the items 
that we have found is of significant importance -- importance is the shared use of the -- 
of the property.  The ability of the city to provide both of these services on one site is a 
significant impact, being able to utilize common utilities and resources, public parking, et 
cetera, for an economic use of city dollars.  In terms of the phasing, I just wanted to cover 
a couple of things that were brought up.  We do have -- currently the fire station is pending 
start -- pending a budget approval.  We are looking at starting construction in early 2022.  
The police substation component, we don't have a solid fix on -- on what funding they 
would get and when and so we would -- we are proposing that we in phase one at 
minimum build the fire station, as well as provide all of the amenities, all of the required 
landscaping, setback, buffers, et cetera, and creates a pad where the police station or 
police substation will be able to land when funding is available if it is not funded during 
the immediate construction.  As far as the building, we -- working with the Fire Department 
on the current -- or the recently completed Station 6 we have started with the fire station 
plan prototype, which is meant to help increase turnout times or as Chief Blume 
mentioned chute times, so it's all going towards getting firefighters and first responders to 
the scene faster and what we have done versus Station 6 is to try to respond to the more 
residential context and provide some slope roofs and more residential materials to the 
area.  And, then, the next point I wanted to make was about access is that our intent is 
that the first entry to the site to the north is very -- a very easily signed and very visually 
appealing place for the public to enter and would have access to the front door of both 
stations.  The access drive to the south in front of the fire station would be emergency 
vehicles and fire department staff only and it would be heavily signed as such.  Police 
access would be from the main drive just in the north of the -- the fire apparatus entrance.  
The other and final point that I wanted to bring up was that staff had several comments 

33Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 31 of 63 

 

about landscaping within the parking providing the minimum amounts in addition to 
providing a ten foot pathway to connect East Lake Hazel path, as well as the new collector 
pathway -- template path and we -- we agree with the comments that staff provided and 
will plan to provide those elements, as well as the eight foot security fence will be 
concurrently applied for with CZC applications.  So, we agree with every -- with all the 
comments that staff had.  And with that I think that is all that I have to share with -- with 
everybody today and thank you, Mr. Chairman and Commissioners.   
 
Seal:  Thank you, Gunnar.  Appreciate that.  Are there any questions for the applicant or 
staff?  Okay.  Hearing none, is there any public testimony?   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, we did have one person sign in online wishing to testify.  Dean 
Kidd, if you are on the line can you, please, raise your hand in Zoom.  Mr. Chair, I don't 
see anybody raising their hand at this time.   
 
Seal:  I don't either.  Okay.  Is there anybody in chambers that wants to come up and 
testify?  No?  Seeing none, just one more check here.   
 
Weatherly:  If anybody is joining us via phone on Zoom and you would like to raise your 
hand, please, press star nine on your phone.   
 
Seal:  No problem.  Okay.  Still not seeing anybody raise their hand in there, so, Gunnar, 
if there is anything else that you would like to add?   
 
Gladics:  No.  I think that was all that we had.  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Last call for questions from Commissioners?   
 
Holland:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Holland, go ahead.   
 
Holland:  I'm going to make a motion that we close the public hearing for H-2021-0008 for 
Meridian South Fire Station and to move to deliberation.   
 
Grove:  Second.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  It's been moved and seconded to close the public hearing for Meridian South 
Fire Station and Police Substation, H-2021-0008.  All in favor say aye.  Any opposed?  
Okay.  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
Seal:  All right.  Who wants to start off?   
 
Holland:  Mr. Chair, I'm still unmuted, so --  

34Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 32 of 63 

 

Seal:  Go ahead, Commissioner Holland.   
 
Holland:  I would just say this one seems like a fairly straightforward application.  Anytime 
you can get a police and a fire station in the same spot I actually think it's a great -- great 
compatible use and I appreciate that their architectural design is complementing the 
neighborhood style.  So, I am in favor.   
 
Lorcher:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Lorcher, go ahead.   
 
Lorcher:  I only had two comments.  When the Fire Commissioner made the comment 
about how seconds matter when it comes to response time, I'm kind of surprised to see 
the police station first, and, then, the fire station further south, which takes them, I don't 
know, two or three more seconds to get to the intersection to be able to turn.  So, I would 
think that the fire station would be closer to the road and the police station behind, but I'm 
sure they have their reasons for it.  The only thing that kind of bothered me about this 
project is that there is a 1940s farmhouse on the site, which will be they said removed, 
which I think means taken down and destroyed and I'm very sad to see another Meridian 
farmhouse being removed from our community.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.  Commissioner Grove, Commissioner Yearsley?   
 
Yearsley:  Commissioner -- or chairman.  Having a fire station and police, I am fully 
supportive of both.  I do understand Commissioner Lorcher's comments.  I think a lot of it 
is just for the fire station to the back it's easier for them to turn onto the main street -- to 
Locust Grove.  I think it's more of a pathway.  It would be a pretty sharp turn right at the 
intersection to get onto Locust Grove, so that would be my thought.  But I'm in favor of 
this project.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.  Commissioner Grove?   
 
Grover:  Yeah.  I agree with everybody.  So, we will just go ahead and move forward with 
it.  After considering all staff, applicant, and public testimony, I move to recommend 
approval to the City Council of file number H-2021-0008 as presented in the staff report 
for the hearing date of April 1st, 2021.   
 
Holland:  Second.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  It has been moved and seconded to recommend approval for Item No. H-
2021-0008, Meridian South Fire Station and Police Substation.  All those in favor say aye.  
Any opposed?  Okay.  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 

35Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 33 of 63 

 

 7.  Public Hearing for 3175 N. Ten Mile (H-2020-0122) by Mason &   
  Associates, Located at 3175 N. Ten Mile Rd. 
 
  A.  Request: Rezone of a 1.16-acre property from R-4 to the L-O zoning 
   district commensurate with a provision within the Meridian   
   Comprehensive Plan for the purpose of constructing an approximate 
   10,000 square-foot office building in lieu of residential development. 
 
Seal:  All right.  Go ahead and move on to item number H-2020-0122 for 3175 North Ten 
Mile and we will begin with the staff report.   
 
Dodson:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  Just pulling up the PowerPoint for you all.  Can everyone 
hear me all right?   
 
Seal:  Yeah, we can, Joe.   
 
Dodson:  Okay.  Good.  Can everybody see the screen now as well?   
 
Seal:  Yes.   
 
Dodson:  Awesome.  Thank you.  Sorry, just scarfed down dinner, so -- excuse me.  As 
noted this is for 3175 North Ten Mile.  It is for -- the request is to rezone a 1.16 acre 
property from R-4 to the L-O zoning district, which is in line with a provision within the 
Meridian Comprehensive Plan for the purpose of constructing an approximately 10,000 
square foot single story office building with 42 parking spaces, in lieu of a residential 
development.  That 10,000 square foot office building would require 20 parking spaces, 
so they are in excess of that with the proposed site plan.  The subject site is somewhat 
of a residentially zoned outparcel, due to the fact that it is located on a hard corner of two 
arterial streets.  It is in the southwest corner of the Ten Mile and Ustick intersection and 
it also has no local street access points.  The Meridian Comprehensive Plan has provision 
to allow properties like this that are less than two acres and have site constraints, 
particularly constraints made by arterial streets, they are allowed to request a rezone from 
residential district to the limited office district.  The existing site constraints and this 
provision of the Comprehensive Plan are why the rezone request is being listed before 
you tonight.  The proposed use is for a dental office, which is a principally permitted use 
within the requested L-O zoning district.  The applicant has submitted a site plan that 
showed compliance with all dimensional standards for a commercial development.  With 
the proposed site plan and proposed use, staff finds the proposed rezone and use to be 
generally consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  The subject site was annexed in the 
city in 2010 and does has an existing development.  As staff analyzed the application and 
the existing DA, staff realized that a DA modification was also required, since the original 
DA contemplated a residential development and not a commercial development.  
Therefore, the proposed rezone and office use are not generally consistent with the DA.  
These modifications only required Council action, so following this hearing, should they 
receive a recommendation of approval, staff recommends the applicant submit a DA 
modification application to run concurrently with this rezone for the purpose of entering 

36Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 34 of 63 

 

into in a new DA subject to the proposed development plan, which is the site plan and the 
new DA provisions noted within the staff report.  The existing DA provisions -- there is a 
-- I should say there is one existing DA provision that requires a 20 foot landscape buffer 
adjacent to the three existing residents to the south and west.  The submitted site plan 
shows this buffer with adequate -- adequate landscaping and, therefore, in compliance 
with that existing provision.  In hindsight, the 20 foot buffer is also a minimum buffer 
requirement for the requested L-O adjacent to any residential use.  A number of the 
parking spaces are facing directly towards one of the residential -- or one of the 
residences, which would be these here I'm referring to and there is an existing wood fence 
located along all of the shared property lines to these homes.  Because the proposed use 
would have more vehicular traffic than residential, staff finds that the proposed 
landscaping and existing wood fencing may not be enough screening to mitigate light and 
light pollution from the proposed dental office and parking lot.  Therefore, staff has 
recommended the landscape buffer be widened to 30 feet adjacent to this home.  So, this 
buffer here and this buffer here be widened to 30 feet in the southwest corner of the site.  
This change would not compromise any other required dimensional standards, as the 
proposed drive aisles are more than 15 feet wider than they are required to be.  The wider 
buffer with additional landscaping would pull the parking spaces even further away from 
the existing homes.  Staff did make a mistake -- or I should say I didn't edit my staff report 
enough before I sent it out and l noted that the applicant should work with adjacent 
homeowners to replace the wood fence, but that should have been deleted from the 
report.  I do apologize for that if that's caused any confusion.  There is no subsequent 
condition of approval for that, because I should have deleted that in the report.  Staff does 
not believe that replacing the fence is the best option.  Instead, staff believes the 
conditional approval to require the wider landscape buffer adjacent to the home in the 
southwest corner of the site is a more appropriate solution.  In addition to the landscape 
buffer, access to the site is an issue and is proposed to be two connections to the adjacent 
arterial.  One right-in only access is proposed -- is proposed to Ustick -- or from Ustick I 
should say and one right-in, right-out access is proposed along Ten Mile.  The proposed 
access to Ustick does not meet ACHD policy, but was a negotiated access at the time the 
property was sold from ACHD to the current owner.  The proposed access to Ten Mile 
does meet ACHD policy as a limited access right-in, right-out only and is recommended 
for approval by ACHD.  Staff supports the proposed access on Ten Mile commensurate 
with the approval by ACHD.  In addition to the access to Ustick not meeting ACHD policy, 
the city could further restrict access points for the development despite ACHD's previously 
granting the access with the sale of the property.  The proposed access to Ustick is 
proposed as an entrance only access, but there would be no true way to restrict the 
vehicles from utilizing it as an exit.  I would if I was in that situation, which is unfortunate, 
but there is no real way to restrict that.  Therefore -- sorry.  In addition, this access point 
is directly within a right-hand turn lane on Ustick to head south on North Ten Mile Road, 
which intensifies the safety issues associated with this proposed access point.  Therefore, 
through the UDC staff recommends the proposed Ustick access not be approved and, 
instead, utilize it as an emergency only access barricaded with knock down bollards to 
prevent people from utilizing it as an entrance.  There was one piece of written testimony 
submitted by -- I believe it's the homeowner that is on the southwest corner.  I couldn't 
verify that.  But it's one of the three homes associated.  His concerns with the existing 

37Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 35 of 63 

 

fence remaining and the possibility of future cars jumping the curb and going through the 
landscape buffer and through their fence.  They noted a request for an eight foot tall block 
wall to replace the existing fence.  In the requested zone eight foot fencing is not allowed 
of any kind.  In addition, making an applicant work with the homeowner could be very 
tricky and there could be no guarantee that staff would be able to verify that that was ever 
accomplished, which is why staff recommended the wider buffer instead.  As Commission 
sees fit, you can further that requirement of the landscape buffer and require a berm with 
denser landscaping on top if you would like to make that even safer.  Therefore, staff 
does recommend approval of this application with a requirement that the applicant apply 
for a concurrent DA modification to be heard at a future City Council meeting.  After that 
I will stand for questions.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  At this point I would like to ask the applicant to come forward.  State your 
name and address for the record.   
 
Mason:  My name is William Mason with Mason and Associates here on behalf of Dr.  
Rigby and the Design Group.  Tonight we are asking for the rezone for a piece of property 
that ACHD sold to our client.  ACHD entered into that development agreement in 2010.   
 
Seal:  Sir, did you give your -- state your address for the record?   
 
Mason:  I'm sorry if I didn't.  It's 924 3rd Street South, Nampa.  83651.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Mason:  So, in 2010 ACHD entered into a development agreement with the city and 
thereafter our client purchased this property.  Prior to purchasing the property our client 
talked to ACHD and city planners to verify that he would have access off of Ustick and 
Ten Mile.  ACHD and city staff at the time agreed that a right-in only off of Ustick would 
be acceptable and a right-in, right-out on Ten Mile would be acceptable.  ACHD is 
honoring that request in their staff report and we would ask that the Commission honor 
that request if they can feel comfortable with the -- the same comfort level as ACHD.  We 
had one other item that is of concern to us and that's the widening of the landscaping 
along the south and west side.  That 45 foot road access is actually acting as fire access 
also and so we want to make sure we have turning movements for the fire trucks to be 
able to get through there.  We are not completely opposed to the extra widening of the 
landscaping strip as long as we can get traffic movements for the fire trucks through the 
site.  And with that I would stand for any questions.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.  Commissioners, do we have questions for the applicant or staff?  
Don't see anybody coming off mute here, so -- okay.  With that we will go ahead and take 
public testimony.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, we have no one additional signed up besides the applicant to 
testify.   
 

38Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 36 of 63 

 

Seal:  Okay.  If anybody -- I have one gentleman that would like to come up and testify.  
Go ahead and come on up, please, sir.  And please state your name and address for the 
record and go ahead.   
 
Rankin:   My name is Stephen Rankin.  I'm one of the neighbors of this property.  I live at 
3062 North Firelight Place.  I share a fence with this property line.  I'm not opposed to the 
building.  I'm not opposed to, you know, a dentist office.  I have met the dentist and he's 
a great guy.  Him and I have had conversations.  I didn't know the size of the building, 
anything like that.  What I would say is in terms of the location of the out, he has the one 
coming in from Ustick and, then, the one going out from Ten Mile.  I would like to suggest 
on behalf of the residents who, again, I have neighbors with and myself and my wife and, 
you know, other people who eventually I'm sure will one time or another occupy my home 
to have the exit from that parking lot be closer to the building itself.  Personally my 
bedroom literally is right there.  So, whether it's first thing in the morning or it's late in the 
evening or late at night, if someone is coming into there -- believe me, when you hear 
trucks coming up and down the street at the stoplight you hear it in your -- in your living 
room.  You hear in your kitchen.  You hear it upstairs in the bedroom.  I would like to 
politely request that if you are going to have an exit, the only exit for that matter, that you 
have it be closer to that yellow building, as opposed to right next to my -- my fence.  That 
would be the one thing I would like to suggest.  Again, not sure going into this what it was 
going to be.  I'm not opposed to a -- to a dentist office whatsoever.  The only thing I would 
like to politely request is the exit be closer to the building itself and not right next to my 
fence and thank you.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.  Appreciate that.  Okay.  Would anybody else in chambers like to come 
up?  I don't see anybody out there.  Anybody on Zoom, if you raise your hand.  Don't see 
anybody.  Or it's star -- star nine if you are on a phone.  Seeing none, if the applicant 
would like to come back up and close.   
 
Mason:  Again William Mason with Mason and Associates.  Again, I would just like to say 
thank you to the staff and thank you for the Commission for having time for us to present 
this.  I believe it's a good project.  I believe it will enhance the area and allow people to 
get services closer to their homes.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chair, can I ask a question of the applicant?   
 
Seal:  You bet, Commissioner Yearsley, you go ahead.   
 
Yearsley:  So, can you address the gentleman's comment why you can't move the 
approach farther up towards the building on Ten Mile?   
 
Mason:  Commissioner, yes, I can.  ACHD, during their negotiations, wanted that right-in, 
right-out to be as far to the south as we can get it in order to not impact the intersection.   
 

39Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 37 of 63 

 

Yearsley:  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Do we have any other questions from our Commissioners for staff or the 
applicant?  Okay.  Hearing none, I will take a motion to close the public hearing.  Thank 
you, sir.   
 
Yearsley:  Before we do that -- and the applicant had the question about fire access 
around -- in making those turns, you know, for the fire access in and out of the facility 
there.  How do we want to address or talk about that with regards to making the landscape 
buffer bigger?  Do we want to do that now or -- I would kind of like to have staff chime in 
on that as well.   
 
Seal:  Sure.  I think that would be a question for Joe and he can respond to that.  I think 
that he did initially respond to that, saying that the drive aisles are 15 feet wider right now 
than code requires, so --  
 
Yearsley:  But the applicant said that they were concerned about the turning radius for 
the fire trucks to get in and out of that facility if you make those drive aisles small.   
 
Seal:  Right.   
 
Yearsley:  So, I'm not quite sure how we want to address that or -- 
 
Dodson:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Joe.   
 
Dodson:  Thank you.  Great question, Commissioner Yearsley and the applicant.  I do 
understand that concern.  I have -- would do protect reviews for these and this came up 
as a potential with -- with Fire and they -- they said that everything should still be fine.  
Like I said, they -- this could be built with 25 foot drive aisles and they should still be able 
to make those radiuses work and with a ten foot reduction they are going to be over 30 
feet wide, so they should be able to make all those radii work.  If not, if by some chance 
they cannot, there -- there is some malleability in the site plan and we might be able to 
move the landscape -- one of the planter islands over, for instance, this one here, if that 
needs to move in for the Fire radius here, if they lose one parking space that's fine, they 
are well over.  They have twice the amount of parking they need.  So, they are -- there 
are easy ways to make this work.   
 
Yearsley:  Okay.  That's what I wanted to make sure before -- so that doesn't become an 
issue, so thank you.   
 
Dodson:  Absolutely.  And, then, to reiterate what the applicant also said about the access 
point, regardless of what was negotiated with the applicant, that ACHD is going to want 
the accesses far from the intersection as they can get it.  I don't know if ACHD would be 
willing to change that.  I believe the minimum distance may not even be met with this.  It 

40Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 38 of 63 

 

has to be at least -- I believe because Ten Mile Road is at least a 45 there -- or 40 mile 
an hour.  It should be 400 plus feet and I don't know if this is even 400 feet.  It just is the 
furthest away it can get, while also meeting the landscape buffer requirements.   
 
Yearsley:  Yeah.  I figured that as well, but I wanted to make sure the -- or the -- the public 
knew that, so --  
 
Dodson:  Absolutely.   
 
Holland:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Commissioner Holland. 
 
Holland:  One more quick question.  Is the dentist's office taking up the entire square 
footage of the site?  I don't know if we asked that question.   
 
Dodson:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Joe.   
 
Dodson:  Is it my understanding that there is potential that he will not operate the entire 
building?  Ten thousand square feet is rather large for a dentist office from my 
understanding, but they will be limited to office uses, which, thankfully, with the L-O zone 
is pretty limited.  You are not going to have a restaurant in here, you are not going to get 
any of those types of things.  It will all be less intensive uses and the L-O zone being 
adjacent to the -- being adjacent to residential zoning and uses, will have unlimited hours 
of operation period within the -- out of our code, from 6:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. and should 
there be a conditional use permit come forward the Commission would, obviously, have 
a chance to discuss that further.  But like I noted they do have twice the amount of parking 
that we need as well.  So, there are options for additional use to come in, but it would 
probably be something adjacent or similar to the dental office.   
 
Holland:  Thanks.  That helps.  Confirming that we can't have a restaurant use in there I 
think is what I was concerned about.   
 
Dodson:  Yes, ma'am.   
 
Seal:  And, Joe, quick question for me on the -- as far as increasing the berms and all 
that and just to address the applicant's concerns, which I think has partially been 
addressed, but I mean would you be in agreement to maybe -- instead of going ten foot 
in additional with those, maybe five feet and build up a two foot berm on there and have, 
you know, trees -- mature trees touching -- you know.  Or trees touching when they mature 
type of landscaping in there to have, you know, basically the same kind of effect?  Looking 
for a happy medium here.   
 

41Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 39 of 63 

 

Dodson:  Understood, Mr. Chair.  And I think that's amenable.  I do.  I don't think that -- 
that -- I didn't initially think about the berming and maybe more dense landscaping to help.  
I mean it's, obviously, a lot harder for a car, in the worst case scenario, to go through a 
bunch of trees.  That is very difficult.  Maybe one or two, but not a whole bunch.  So, I 
understand that and if that is a happy medium that the Commission wants, I'm amenable 
to that, yes.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Anymore questions?  All right.  I will gladly take a motion to close the public 
meeting.   
 
Holland:  So moved.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  It is -- oh, do I have a second for that?   
 
Yearsley:  Second.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  It's been moved and seconded to close the public hearing on item number  
H-2020-0122, 3175 North Ten Mile Road.  All those in favor say aye.  Any opposed?  
Okay.  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
Seal:  All right.  Who wants to go first?   
 
Lorcher:  Chairman, I will go first.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Commissioner Lorcher, go ahead.   
 
Lorcher:  I live down -- I live down the street from this and if I was to go to the dentist here 
I would most certainly take a right-hand turn from Ustick into this lot versus a left-hand 
turn over Ten Mile.  So, I don't know what the conversation was, how they wanted the 
access, but they were trying to make it in and out only type of thing.  But I would rather 
take a right than the left.  But this is -- this is just an example of a little bit off setting, 
because it makes it look really big, but this is really small.  I mean it shows like on the Ten 
Mile where the south entrance is seems like it's really far away, but it's right there at the 
intersection.  So, I understand the homeowner's concern.  But with a dentist office they 
are really going to work Monday through Friday, maybe 7:00 to 5:00, maybe 8:00 to 5:00 
type of thing.  And so the impact of noise to the adjacent homes should be relatively 
minimal, especially on weekends and evenings.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.   
 
Dodson:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Holland:  Mr. -- 
 

42Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 40 of 63 

 

Seal:  Oh.  I think that was Joe.  Go ahead.   
 
Dodson:  Sorry.  Commissioner Holland.  We are fighting for -- I'm sorry.  I just wanted to 
clarify the access for the Commission to -- the right-in, right-out access would be on Ten 
Mile.  So, you would not be able to be heading north on Ten Mile and, then, make a left.  
You would make a U-turn and, then, come through.  Part of the ACHD condition of 
approval is to work with -- for the applicant to have ACHD do some type of medium block 
-- like a curbing I think is what they suggested -- or requiring.  And, then, staff is 
recommending to only have the Ustick access be emergency only, just to avoid people 
trying to exit, because it would be one of them I'm sure to try and exit out and cut across 
three lanes of traffic and the right-hand turn lane to head east on Ustick.  It would just be 
the easiest thing for someone to do.  So, we just want to avoid those issues and the 
potential increase in accidents by that, even if it would be shown as a one way.   
 
Holland:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Holland, go ahead.   
 
Holland:  I was going to echo the same thing that -- that Joe just said, but that's -- the only 
access in and out of here is a right-in, right-out, so they can't turn left off of Ten Mile into 
it, they can only turn right.  So, if you were coming from Ustick you would have to turn 
right on Ten Mile and, then, right into the development.  I can see staff's concerns, too, 
because if -- if the Ustick access was open and you see a stack up of people at the 
intersection trying to turn right and you wanted to cut through traffic, I could see people 
cutting through the parking lot to get out on Ten Mile quickly, too.  So, I -- I think I'm in 
favor of the recommendation there to make only one access point and where there is a 
dental office use, you are not going to have lots of traffic needs flowing in and out of there,  
so it might be a little inconvenient for patrons of the dentist's office or other office users,  
but I think they will figure out a flow that -- that works for them.  Especially since we don't 
have a restaurant use in there I'm not as concerned.  The only real object I think we need 
to discuss is vision screening, because that's kind of the only obstacle that came up.  
Rather than seeing an enhanced buffer, I probably would rather just see some sort of no 
vision screening that we could put up against the fence line, whether that's brick wall or 
whether that's an extra vinyl fence or something like that that could help with some of the 
vision screening, if that's the only concern.  But, otherwise, I think it's a nice in-fill for a 
strange lot.  I have driven by this frequently and just always wonder what could fit there  
and I think this is a decent fit for what -- what could be on that awkward lot.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.  Who would like to jump in next?   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Yearsley, go ahead.   
 
Yearsley:  I like this.  I think it's a great in-fill project.  I think it's a nice fit.  A very I guess 
low density type versus impact, you know, during -- during the day.  Not a huge amount 

43Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 41 of 63 

 

of turnover.  I'm, actually, I think in favor of increased buffers.  They got more asphalt than 
they need and it's actually less expensive for them to -- to do less to pave.  So, it just 
gives a little bit more landscaping along the edge and makes it look -- look prettier.  So, 
I'm in favor of the increased buffer area.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Commissioner Grove, do you want to jump in?   
 
Grove:  I concur with everything that's been said.  I'm open to whatever the decision that 
everybody is for the buffer, but I would be in favor of doing what staff has recommended 
in terms of closing the drive aisle on Ustick and utilizing it only as emergency access.   
 
Seal:  Yeah.  I -- I struggle with that one a little bit.  When you -- you get a piece of property 
and you have things negotiated that you think are going to be available and, then, they 
are suddenly not, that might change some things.  So, I'm -- I'm a little bit on the fence 
about that one.  As far as the -- you know, expanding the berms and everything, I think 
an expansion should happen.  Honestly, I think if the -- if that berming were built up a 
couple feet that would help with not only noise, but also the light, because I mean after a 
couple feet most cars are going to -- their lights aren't going to shine through that anyway.  
Not for all cars, but for quite a bit of them.  I don't know that a second fence would -- it 
seems like that might complicate things.  To me if -- you know, fencing would be 
something that we wouldn't want to do.  I think we would just ask the applicant to work 
with the neighbors to replace the fencing that's there.  That said I don't think it's going to 
do much for sound and even vinyl fences have cracks in them, so hard to -- hard to say 
what would happen in there.  But the rest of it looks good.  I'm glad to see that a project 
is coming to fill this corner in at this point in time.  With that I would gladly entertain a 
motion.  All right.  Who is going to jump in?  Is that Commissioner Yearsley?   
 
Yearsley:  I just -- I guess for the consensus, I know we have some differing of opinions.  
I would be curious to know -- I know Commissioner Holland, you -- you didn't want the 
increased buffers.  Are you okay with the increased buffer?   
 
Holland:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Yearsley, I'm okay with the enhanced buffer.  I -- I just 
thought it -- you know, the applicant seemed like they didn't really care for that idea and I 
-- I don't know that it's necessarily needed, because I don't think it's going to save them 
all that much traffic noise.  I guess I'm open to either way.  Whatever the Commission 
feels like I will go along with.   
 
Dodson:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Joe.   
 
Dodson:  Just real quick to clarify with any motion.  I do not have any berming or mention 
of denser landscape within my conditions of approval.  So, if you want that you will have 
to add that into the modification I should say -- just to the -- the maker of the motion, sorry, 
is the word I was looking for.   
 

44Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 42 of 63 

 

Seal:  Okay.  Thanks for that clarification.  Anybody want to take a stab at a motion?   
 
Yearsley:  I will go for it.  Mr. Chairman, after considering all staff, applicant and public 
testimony I move to recommend approval to City Council of file number H-2020-0122 as 
presented in the staff report for the hearing date of April 1st, 2021, with no modifications.   
 
Grove:  Second.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  It has been moved and seconded to recommend approval of item number 
H-2020-0122, 3175 North Ten Mile, with no modifications.  All those in favor?   
 
Holland:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Oh, go ahead.  Commissioner Holland. 
 
Holland:  One -- one clarification question to the motion maker.  Did you not want to have 
any enhanced screening or buffering or anything?  Because I know -- I don't think what     
-- what Joe just said was that they don't have that in the staff report.   
 
Yearsley:  I know and I -- I'm okay not having increased buffering or a berm in that.  So, 
if you are wanting to deny this and do a different motion I'm -- I'm okay with that.   
 
Seal:  Yeah.  At this point if -- if we are going -- if that's going to divide the vote, then, I 
would almost rather than Commissioner Yearsley repeal his and if you want to jump in, 
Commissioner Holland, we can do that, but --  
 
Yearsley:  I guess I would be interested in what other people are wanting to say on that.   
 
Holland:  Well, I think one more clarification question if I may.   
 
Seal:  Go ahead.   
 
Holland:  So, staff, we did require having some landscaping there as the buffer.  Your 
recommendation earlier this evening was to do an enhanced buffer zone and that's what's 
not in the staff report?  Can I just clarify that real quick?   
 
Dodson:  Mr. Chair, Commission Holland, that is correct.  Yes.  My staff report only states 
a wider buffer.  There was no mention of a berm or a mention of more dense landscaping.  
If the Commission sees those options as needed, then, that would be -- you would have 
to put them in the motion.  Yes.  If not, then, you -- then no modifications are necessary.   
 
Seal:  So, we have the -- we have the ten foot increase in -- in buffer size, but nothing 
else, basically, what the motion is at hand?   
 
Yearsley:  Yeah.   
 

45Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 43 of 63 

 

Holland:  You know, I think with the -- sorry, I'm -- Mr. Chair.  I think with the enhancement 
of what we have talked about and having the shrubs and stuff there, I don't think there is 
going to be a lot of light coming through and especially because if -- if it is a dentist use 
or office use you are probably not going to have a lot of people coming in before the 8:00 
to 5:00 hours typically either.  If you do have some dental patients they are going to park 
as close to the building as they can if they are coming in before hours would be my guess, 
because that's what I try to do.   
 
Yearsley:  And that would be my thought as well.  That it would be mostly during the day.  
Even if the other areas are being some other type of facility, like a -- you know, 
orthodontist or some other business more than likely will be during the day.   
 
Holland:  Okay.  I'm okay with it then.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  We will go ahead and proceed with a vote then.  All those in favor say aye.  
Any opposed?  Okay.  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
  
Seal:  It's 8:25.  Does anybody want to request a bio break or anything or do we want to 
go ahead and get through this last one?   
 
Yearsley:  I think a five minute break would be good.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  We will break for five minutes and we will be back.   
 
(Recess:  8:25 p.m. to 8:31 p.m.) 
 
 8.  Public Hearing for Seasons at Meridian/Winco Wells Subdivision (H- 
  2021-0007) by The Land Group, Located at 2600 and 2700 E. Overland 
  Rd. 
 
  A.  Request: Conditional Use Permit for a multi-family development  
   consisting of 360 dwelling units on 15.89 acres of land in the C-G  
   zoning district, located at 2700 E. Overland Rd 
 
  B.  Request: Preliminary Plat consisting of 3 buildable lots on 34.62  
   acres of land in the C-G zoning district located at 2600 and 2700 E. 
   Overland Rd. 
 
Seal:  Okay.  I think we are ready to get started again.  So, we will start in -- or we will 
start back with file number H-2021-0007, Seasons at Meridian/Winco Wells Subdivision 
and we will start with the staff report.   
 
Allen:  Thank you, Mr. Chair, Members of the Commission.  The next applications before 
you tonight are a request for a preliminary plat and a conditional use permit.  There is 

46Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 44 of 63 

 

also an accompanying development agreement modification application, but this does not 
require Commission action, only City Council.  This site consists of 34.62 acres of land.  
It's zoned C-G and is located at 2600 and 2700 East Overland Road.  Adjacent land use 
and zoning.  To the north is the I-84 off ramp.  To the west is commercial, retail, restaurant 
and animal care uses, zoned C-G.  To the south is Overland Road and a school, 
restaurant, and office uses zoned C-G and to the east are single family rural residential 
properties, zoned R-1 in the county.  This property was annexed back in 1994 and a 
development agreement was approved in 2016.  The Comprehensive Plan future land 
use map designation is mixed use regional.  A modification to the existing development 
agreement is proposed to exclude the east parcel from the development.  A new 
development agreement is proposed for the east parcel, which will accommodate the 
change in ownership of the east parcel if the conditional use permit is approved for the 
multi-family development.  The existing development agreement includes a conceptual 
development plan for the west parcel, which depicts an 85,000 square foot single story 
Winco grocery store with associated parking on the north side of the future extension of 
East Cinema Drive and vacant land with no development plan on the south side.  At the 
time the original development agreement was approved a use and development plan was 
not known for the east parcel.  Therefore, provision was included in the development 
agreement that requires the agreement to be amended to include a conceptual 
development plan that demonstrates consistency with the mixed use regional future land 
use map designation in the Comprehensive Plan prior to any development occurring on 
the site.  The proposed development plan for the east parcel is a 360 unit multi-family 
residential development as shown.  Staff believes the proposed plan contributes to the 
mix of uses desired in the mixed use regional designation and provides a transition and 
buffer between commercial uses to the west and low density residential development to 
the east.  Overland Way Subdivision.  The addition of more residential uses in this area 
will provide more patrons for surrounding commercial, retail, and restaurant and office 
uses and businesses, as well as offer employment options in close proximity to the 
residents.  A conditional use permit is proposed for the 15.89 acre, 360 unit multi-family 
residential development as required by code in the C-G zoning district.  A total of 180 
studio and one bedroom units, 152 bedroom units and 33 bedroom units are proposed in 
ten structures with 36 units per structure.  This development is proposed to be constructed 
in one phase.  A total of 3.8 acres of outdoor common open space is proposed, which 
exceeds the minimum 2.1 acres required.  Based on 360 units, a minimum of five 
amenities are required, but the decision making body is authorized to consider additional 
similar amenities if they believe the proposed amenities aren't adequate for the size of 
the development.  Amenities are proposed consisting of a clubhouse with a swimming 
pool, bike maintenance room, fitness facilities, partial lockers, remote work classroom 
stations and a coffee bar.  An outdoor fireplace with the seating and a barbecue, public 
art, half mile pedestrian loop with a ten foot wide pathway and internal pathways, 18 
grassy areas of at least 50 by 50 feet in size, including a dog park, multiple courtyards, 
park areas with seating, a plaza and pocket libraries, community garden and a children's 
play structure.  Because residential uses are proposed adjacent to I-84 along the project's 
north boundary, noise abatement is required in the form of a berm or a berm and wall 
combination parallel to the freeway.  The applicant has requested and received director 
approval of alternative compliance to this standard to provide double pane storm windows 

47Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 45 of 63 

 

on all structures within the development since the buildings are proposed to be set back 
at least 250 feet from the freeway and will be two and three stories in height.  Parking is 
proposed in excess of UDC standards.  A minimum of 646 spaces are required with 270 
of those being in a covered carport or garage.  A total of 655 spaces are proposed with 
360 of those being in a covered carport, which is nine extra spaces over the minimum 
required for the overall site.  The Commission should determine if the proposed parking 
is adequate or if additional parking should be provided as a condition of approval of the 
conditional use permit.  Conceptual building elevations were submitted for the apartments 
and the clubhouse as shown.  The apartments consist of two and three story structures 
in a contemporary farmhouse theme with hip roofs and the steep gables.  Building 
materials consist of a combination of vertical board and batten siding, stucco and 
decorative balcony rails, along with varied color schemes.  Stairways are concealed from 
public view.  L-shaped buildings are proposed for variety.  The final design is required to 
comply with the design standards in the architectural standards manual.  A preliminary 
plat is proposed as shown, consisting of three buildable lots on 34.62 acres of land in the 
C-G zoning district, proposed to develop in two phases.  The first phase consists of the 
extension of South Wells Avenue from Overland to East Cinema Drive and includes the 
east parcel.  The second phase consists of the extension of East Cinema Drive from Wells 
to the west boundary of the site and includes the west parcel.  Right of way for the 
extension of South Wells Avenue and East Cinema Drive is proposed to be dedicated 
with the plat.  In order to provide interconnectivity between uses in a timelier manner and 
dispersed traffic, staff recommends the extension of East Cinema Drive from the west 
boundary of the site to South Wells Avenue occurs with the first phase of development.  
The traffic signal at Wells and Overland is also required to be installed prior to issuance 
of the first certificate of occupancy.  Written testimony has been received from Deb 
Nelson, Givens Pursley, and Ryan Morgan, Morgan Stonehill Partners Development 
Company, the applicant's representative.  They are in agreement with the staff report, 
except for staff's recommendation for Cinema Drive to be constructed with the first phase 
of development, rather than with the second phase as proposed.  Staff is recommending 
approval with the conditions in the staff report and staff will stand for any questions.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  With that we would like to ask the applicant to come forward.   
 
Nelson:  Good evening, Commissioners.  Long time no see.   
 
Seal:  Yes.  Go ahead and state your name and address for the record and go ahead and 
go.   
 
Nelson:  I would like to bring up a presentation if I could quickly and, then, I will get going.  
Okay.  My name is Deborah Nelson.  My address is 601 West Bannock and I'm here on 
behalf of the applicant.  There is also representatives of the applicant and our local 
development team here with me that are available to answer any questions that the 
commissioners may have and thank you to Sonya for her work on this project and her 
recommendation of approval and presentation this evening.  I'm going to touch on a 
couple of the same things Sonya did.  I will try to not repeat too much of what she said 
about the history, but there is some context there that's relevant to our application request  

48Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 46 of 63 

 

and even though the DA modification is a Council level decision, we think it helps for the 
Commission to have a feel for all three of the applications that are presented together.  
As Sonya mentioned, the Winco site is to the west here and our project site is in yellow 
on the east.  Both of these were annexed together in '94 and zoned C-C and, then, in 
2016 the city approved the development agreement for that Winco development and I 
want to focus in just on some of the conditions there.  Specifically the -- the Winco site is 
allowed to develop consistent with the concept plan which was attached to the 
development agreement and shows that a 5,000 square foot retail space with the -- the 
parking -- our site, on the other hand, at 2700 East Overland Road required a 
development agreement modification simply for the purpose of coming back with that 
conceptual development plan when it was known that's consistent with the MUR 
designation and so that's what we are -- that's why we have the VA modifications in the 
city and this is an overlay of the concept plan that we would add to that development 
agreement.  And as Sonya describes in detail in her staff report, the proposed multi-family 
use and development plan that we have proposed is consistent with the MUR designation 
in your future land use map, because it contributes to the mix of uses that's desired in 
that area by adding needed higher density residential in an area that's already heavily 
developed with commercial and employment uses.  You can see from this slide that the 
MUR area in this location is very large, it's 650 acres, and -- and it calls for a mix of uses, 
employment retail and residential with residential densities ranging from six to 40 units 
per acre.  This particular large MUR area currently has extensive retail and office uses, 
but very little residential and is far below the six to 40 target with the current density of 
only 1.67 units per acre in this area and it's particularly -- has a similar residential district 
deficiency in that quadrant where we are in that northwest corner of Overland and Eagle 
where the current density is only .06 units per acre.  So, as the staff report notes, the 
higher density residential here will support the surrounding commercial and employment  
and it provides a great transition in between the smaller low density residential to our east 
and the more intensive commercial to our west.  In addition to a DA modification, of 
course, we have the preliminary plat, which is needed to create the lots.  The city and 
Winco Foods actually originally thought that the apartment site was a separate lot and 
that's why the DA modification was filed before the preliminary plat application.  There is 
a record of survey showing separate homes and driveways were permitted there off of 
Overland and it's possible there was a division done at one time when the city allowed 
one time splits or it could be something was unusual here because of the interchange 
location.  But in any case, the administrative records were not found within the city, so we 
are filing the preliminary plat to really clean this up and ensure that we have a separate 
legal lot for the apartments and if that's -- that's relevant to know that history as we look 
to the improvements that are expected and contemplated with this.  You know, we have 
proposed two phases for development of the preliminary plat.  Phase one is on the east, 
that's our Seasons at Meridian apartment site with the extension of Wells Avenue up from 
Overland and we will construct the signal at Wells and Overland, which signal was 
originally required as mitigation for the Winco and now will be built by the applicant for the 
apartment.  Phase two, the western site, those two lots that are there, will include 
development of those lots and the extension of Cinema Drive at the time that -- that 
development proceeds.  And that's -- that's the phasing that we outlined in our preliminary 
plat and that is the phasing that ACHD has approved as well.  In addition to the DA 

49Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 47 of 63 

 

modification and the preliminary plat, consistent with the existing C-C zoning, we are 
requesting approval of a conditional use permit for the multi-family units and the Seasons 
at Meridian proposes 360 apartments.  The site includes ten L-shaped building arranged 
around internal open space areas to create these smaller neighborhoods within each of 
those buildings.  Basically pocket parks for active and passive recreation and gathering.  
The idea is to create one large community and within that large community have micro 
communities where people can gather with their neighbors.  This is an aerial showing that 
arrangement.  This view highlights how well the building arrangement creates that urban 
life block pattern that's called for in your Comprehensive Plan for MUR areas.  Nicely 
framing those open space areas as interlaced with landscape pathways and the 
boulevard entrance that all connect and integrate the site to the adjacent commercial 
uses.  Here we have got the elevation perspective.  Each building has been designed to 
create a sense of scale by incorporating a blend of two and three story rooflines, softening 
that overall massing of the architect and you can see that on that west elevation.  More 
expensive construct than just taking it across -- that it creates that nice mix and those will 
be the exterior facing elevations property.  Pedestrian access is provided by several 
formalized enhancements entry gates for each building concealing the stairways away 
from public view.  Another view of the building perspective.  The apartments will include 
a mix of studios, one bedroom, two bedroom and three bedroom units, ranging from 480 
square feet to 1,328 square feet.  Each unit has been designed with expansive private 
patios and balconies.  A minimum of 80 square feet to create that indoor-outdoor 
experience for the outdoor lifestyle.  The interior of the units are designed to 
accommodate today's ever changing market with open space floor plans and an 
abundance of glass.  Informal living and dining areas have large island kitchens, ideal for 
entertaining for that casual lifestyle.  Other amenities include large bedrooms with walk-
in closets, dual vanities and master suites.  Large shower and amble storage space.  The 
architectural theme is contemporary farmhouse.  A combination of vertical board and 
batten siding, stucco, and decorative balcony rails along with various -- with varied color 
schemes creates a soft, well balanced exterior facade.  Seasons at Meridian will include 
4.15 acres of qualified open space.  That's 26 percent and nearly double the 2.1 acres 
that's required for this site.  Internal pathways and sidewalks are linked throughout the 
site, including a perimeter half mile walking path.  The site includes a dog park up in the 
northeast quadrant there.  A large centrally located clubhouse with pool and barbecue 
seating and courtyards within each building enclave.  They each have the Seasons theme 
and so hence the Seasons at Meridian name.  And, yes, there are five enclaves, and so 
there will be two summers, which everybody needs more summer in their life.  Significant 
landscape buffers will provide attractive screening, along with all perimeter borders, and 
the amenities are extensive and Sonya walked through some of these.  There will be 26 
qualified amenities, representing each of the three categories that are listed in the UDC.  
The clubhouse includes parcel lockers, a bike maintenance room, remote work classroom 
space and the coffee bar and outdoor fireplaces, seating, barbecue areas.  There is 
fitness facilities and public art.  The project includes 18 grassy areas that meet your 
criteria for the 50 by 100 feet and these include a variety of amenities within them 
including the dog parks, the multiple courtyard, park areas with seating, a pocket library, 
plazas that dot the trail that circumvents the property.  Community garden.  A pool.  
Walking trails and a children's play structure.  These slides provide some imagery for the 

50Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 48 of 63 

 

architecture and the quality of the design for the clubhouse and the amenities that will be 
available to the residents.  There are some interior images, again, to show the fitness 
room, work spaces, gathering spaces and some more imagery of the outdoor area and 
the pool.  The community also includes property management office, a maintenance 
storage area, central mailbox and parcel lockers, with the electronic parcel lockers, such 
as the example shown here, recipients don't need to worry about parcel theft or misplaced 
parcels.  The parcels could accept deliveries.  The resident receives a -- an electronic 
notification and with the code they receive can retrieve their parcel at their convenience.  
The site plan includes 655 parking spaces, including 360 covered parking spaces 
throughout the site.  This is 24 over the amount that's needed to service the residences.  
As Sonya pointed out, there is no requirement in the code for 16 spaces to serve the 
clubhouse as well, leaving nine extra over that.  Of course the spaces that are designed 
to serve the clubhouse are -- since those amenities are for our residents and their guests 
already, we feel that that has already been calculated in the base calculation for what's 
needed for each resident.  But in any case, that -- those spaces that are available to 
serve, whether it's the entire 24 or even if it's the breakout of the 16 and the nine, those 
are all going to be available to serve our extra space.  Our guests will have time, both 
during the day to access the -- the clubhouse when it's open from 9:00 to 6:00 and, then, 
there will still be plenty of space when that clubhouse facility is closed, providing all 24 
extra spaces throughout the property.  It's important to note, too, that this development 
does not include any enclosed garages and so I think the concern that the city has had in 
the past with needing to over park even beyond the amount that we are overparked is 
where you have got people storying things in their enclosed garages and that will not be 
an issue here.  So, there should be sufficient parking with the amount that we are 
overparked.  The Seasons at Meridian is designed to integrate with surrounding uses.  
Our treeline east-west driveway aligns with Cinema Drive, which will ultimately extend to 
the Winco site when it's developed to the west, creating this visual and physical 
integration to the commercial uses to our west.  On our east side there is a single family 
residential county subdivision that doesn't have vehicular connectivity, but we still provide 
pedestrian connectivity and welcome these residents to enjoy our walking paths.  We 
have also created a significant buffer between the proposed project and the existing 
homes to our east to ensure compatibility.  Our buildings are set back over a hundred feet 
from the property line and the average setback of our neighboring residences from the 
property line is at least 250 feet and it looks like -- more like 270 feet from Google Earth.   
This project will maximize and use existing city services by connecting to an adjacent 
utilities and by locating housing clusters, with the fire employed infrastructure.  ACHD has 
reviewed and approved the traffic study for the development and proposed access points.  
To mitigate impact to the apartments and the future Winco development, the applicant 
will extend Wells Avenue, install the new signal at Wells and Overland, along with a right 
turn lane on Overland onto Wells.  Cinema Drive will be extended through the Winco site 
with phase two.  No other mitigation was required by ACHD and all of those conditions of 
approval are acceptable.  The project will have minimal impact on school enrollment.  
Based on West Ada School District's calculations the project will only generate 36 
students.  As Sonya noted, we just have one change that we request to the conditions of 
approval.  Otherwise, we are in full agreement with the project report before you and that 
does relate to the timing of the extension of Cinema Drive.  As noted in this condition, 

51Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 49 of 63 

 

Sonya wants that to be done with phase one, but it's not needed to serve phase one.  The 
apartments have primary access from the extension of Wells Avenue and secondary 
emergency access from Overland Road.  The traffic impact study that was prepared for 
the Seasons at Meridian project did not assign any of our trips to Cinema Drive, to that 
extension.  Made no assumption that it would be there.  Instead assumes that all of the 
trips would be the Wells Avenue extension and with those assumptions the Wells- 
Overland intersection with the signal and the Overland Road segment between Wells and 
Eagle Road still met all adopted levels of service.  Cinema Drive has always been planned 
to be built when the Winco site is developed.  The exact placement of Cinema Drive may 
vary just slightly as Winco's development plans are finalized for phase two and so they 
don't support construction of it until they finalize those plans.  They did submit a letter into 
the record supporting the apartment use and application, but objecting to this particular 
recommended condition of approval.  We just ask that it be built as required with the 
phasing.  And with that we ask for your approval of the conditional use permit and 
preliminary plat, with that one change to the condition.  So, thanks for your time.  Stand 
for questions.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you very much.  Commissioners, do we have any questions for the 
applicant or for staff?   
 
Lorcher:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Lorcher, go ahead.   
 
Lorcher:  So, there is 316 units that are being proposed and you have 641 parking spaces 
to accommodate those 350 units.  On average there are probably 2.5 people living in all 
the units.  Some have one, some have three, so you are looking at a residential 
community of 900 people.  In my experience working with apartment complexes with our 
tow company, there is never enough parking spaces, especially of guests.  And it's also 
suggested that this 24 overflow, if even ten percent have a guest over at any particular 
weekend, that 24 is going to be exasperated quite quickly.  Do you have a parking 
agreement with Winco for overflow parking that would accommodate your Seasons 
project?   
 
Nelson:  Chairman, Commissioner Lorcher, no, we -- we don't.  We don't -- there is 
sufficient parking on site.  We planned it that way to have that parking on site.  Just one 
correction.  There is actually 655 parking spaces on site.  We just had a different number 
there.  And it does meet all of the city code requirements and, then, is in excess of that  
and so the -- but the city code requires -- as you know they have got a mix of what parking 
is required based on what bedroom type it is and meeting those requirements for each of 
the residential units and there is an assumption built in there about the number of 
residents and guests that would utilize the building at that time.  We meet all of that.  And, 
then, in addition to that, 24 spaces are available over the residential use, 16 attributed to 
the clubhouse and nine extra beyond that that are available for guests and our residents 
to use this clubhouse.  So, we do believe that will be sufficient.  It's far over what the city 
code requires.  In thinking about that we are also -- and this is an in-fill location and we 

52Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 50 of 63 

 

are near a transit line, so we hope that in this location with all of the nearby commercial 
and employment that a lot of people are actually going to choose to live in this location, 
so that they can walk.  I think that is the idea of your mixed use regional and why high 
density residential could be so beneficial here.  We may actually be able to support a less 
vehicular driven residential community here.   
 
Lorcher:  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Any other questions for -- from our Commissioners?  All right.  Hearing none, we 
will go ahead and move on to the public hearing portion of it.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, we have a few people signed in that I think I see online indicating 
a wish to testify.  Josh, one moment, please.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Josh, if you want to take yourself off mute and state your name and address 
for the record.  It looks like you are still on mute.  Oh, no.   
 
Cirelli:  No.  Am I there?   
 
Seal:  Yes, we can hear you.  Go ahead and state your --  
 
Cirelli:  Yes.  Josh Cirelli.  C-i-r-e-l-l-i.  1435 Loader Place, Meridian, Idaho.  83642.  I 
believe, actually, it's me and my wife.  My wife has got questions as well.  So, I can even 
leave myself unmuted if you wanted to speak directly to her afterwards.  One thing I would 
like to discuss real quick is I see on the application it discusses -- and something that was 
brought up in the neighborhood meeting is a fence between actually the apartment 
complex and the R-1 zone, which is my backyard.  As a matter of fact, just to bring it up 
while we are talking about it, is I have a large shop that is well within 250 feet or 270 feet, 
I believe what you mentioned, from that -- that property line is -- well, within about five to 
ten feet of my property line.  So, I believe in the neighborhood meeting they said that they 
were going to put up a fence and in the application it actually discusses that fence and 
you have details about what kind of fence that would be built between the apartment 
complex and the R-1 zone.  So, I would like to hear what those are, because we haven't 
been able to actually have those details listed out to us.  In the neighborhood meeting 
there was very limited details of what they were actually going to be giving and providing 
in that area.  Looking over the plat in the application as well it's like they conveniently 
placed all the trash enclosures up against the R-1 zone that's conveniently there.  We do 
have one acre lots.  I agree with -- there is a -- there is a buffer there, yes, but we buy 
one acre lots, because we like our room and our accessibility on our own lot.  I don't want 
to hear trash enclosures and dump truck banging those trash enclosures at 7:00 o'clock 
in the morning like they do over here at the hotel to the east of us.  Something else I would 
like to bring up is this is valuable commercial space, not residential space.  If you look on 
the north side of Overland everything is commercial space, including the new commercial 
development over there at the Norco, the Zamzow's and just released Top Golf.  I think 
we are losing out on having commercial space.  Where there is apartment complexes 
already on the south side of Overland next to Mountain View High School -- I guess to 

53Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 51 of 63 

 

the northwest of Mountain View High School there is another apartment complex that, I 
apologize, I missed out on the lady's name, but she excluded that from her density study.  
I noticed you kind of cut that off on the -- on her mapping right there.  So, there is another 
apartment complex right there already with available rooms already.  So, I think we are 
missing out on commercial real estate here not residential.  I don't think we need anymore 
apartment complexes, we need more commercial buildings.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Cirelli:  I also disagree, it's not -- it's not downtown Boise, there will be plenty of vehicles 
moving here.  That and another traffic light -- let's see.  We have Eagle Road and, then, 
we have one traffic light already at the Dutch Brothers and the entrance to Mountain View 
High School.  To add one in there, we already get heavy congestion through this area.  I 
think adding another -- another traffic light right there dang near makes it impossible for 
us to leave our own subdivision.  I know we are -- we are not the most congested, you 
know, neighborhood by any means, but just leaving here poses its own challenges.  Also 
want to bring up that noticing she did not speak about a right turn lane that was also in 
the adjusted road improvement.  I didn't hear anything about a right turn lane being added 
as well getting into Wells Avenue.  That's something we previously asked about as well 
and we have not been able to come to an agreement with Ryan, who we have previously 
spoken to.  I don't -- I don't see that he's present as well.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.  Appreciate that.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, Vanessa Cirelli would be next.   
 
Seal:  Okay.   
 
V.Cirelli:  The few questions I have -- there seems like there is a lot of concern about the 
public view.   
 
Seal:  Ma'am.   
 
V.Cirelli:  I don't think the public necessarily -- 
 
Seal:  Ma'am, if you could --   
 
V.Cirelli:  -- cares about the --   
 
Seal:  Ma'am, if you could state your name and address for the record.   
 
V.Cirelli:  Oh.  Sorry.  Vanessa Cirelli.  I'm also at 1435 Loader Place, Meridian, Idaho.  
83642.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 

54Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 52 of 63 

 

V.Cirelli:  Anyway, the public view -- I don't know that the public necessarily is concerned 
about the view of the apartments.  I feel like the residents are not being taken into account 
for this.  You know, they want to back up their clubhouse and their pool to our -- basically 
our backyard.  Their parking basically to our backyard.  I just -- I guess I'm wondering why 
everything's being backed up against our backyards.  There is actually four homes on this 
side of the street and the other side of the property, the Winco property, is more 
commercialized.  So, it's just -- I don't know.  We -- we definitely feel like we are not being 
taken into consideration.  The stoplight, he already brought that up, I think that's a valid 
concern.  You know, we are on Eagle Road basically.  It's already hard enough getting 
out of our neighborhood.  This is just going to make it even more difficult.  You know, 
adding another stoplight is just going to congest the traffic a lot more and that's -- that's 
basically -- I think we covered everything else.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you very much.  Appreciate that.   
 
V.Cirelli:  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Got anybody else?   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, that's all that we had indicating a wish to testify.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Do we have any -- a gentleman in chambers.  You want to come up and --
No?  Okay.  Anybody else online if you want to --  
 
Cirelli:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Sorry, Josh.  You already had your three minutes to speak, so we are going to 
move on to other attendees.  If anybody else would like to speak, please, raise your hand 
in Zoom.  All right.  Oh.  Sorry, Josh.  You and your wife both had your time to speak and 
that is over, so -- seeing nobody else, I would take a motion to close the public hearing, 
if we have no other questions.  Oh.  Sorry.  My bad.  The applicant would like to come 
back and address the concerns.   
 
Nelson:  Mr. Chairman, we can be brief.  Just a few points.  Mr. Cirelli noted that he has 
a -- a shop that's within that 250 buffer that we have created.  Yes, we did measure it to 
the residences, not to the accessory buildings there for that setback.  The setback to the 
residences, though, is extensive and he did raise a question about -- it's curious about 
the fence design.  Ryan Morgan is present, so he is available to answer any specific 
questions you may have and he has committed to work with the neighbors on that design 
for the privacy fence and there -- there was comments from both Josh and his wife about 
the trash enclosures, concern with that on the east side -- just in general things on the 
east side.  Certainly things are not just piled up on the east side, they are distributed 
throughout.  I think you can see on the site plan all the trash enclosures in particular are 
distributed with each of the buildings.  Of nine total there is only three along the east side 
and they will all be screened appropriately.  We thought that, actually, the open space on 
that side may work really well, being the clubhouse area, being the residential amenity, 

55Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 53 of 63 

 

doesn't create as much height.  A lot of more open space creates even more distance 
into the courtyard that's around there and, then, the pool will be screened.  The -- the 
signal that's not desired there, that is required by ACHD and was required already as part 
of the Winco development.  We are just bearing the cost of getting that infrastructure in 
and it will improve traffic conditions in this area.  So, I think that's it, unless the 
Commission has questions for -- for me or for Ryan.   
 
Seal:  Commissioners, do we have any other questions?  Okay.  Thank you very much  
and now I will take a motion to close the public hearing, please.   
 
Holland:  Mr. Chair, I move we closed the public hearing for Seasons at Meridian/Winco 
Wells Subdivision, H-2021-0007.   
 
Grove:  Second.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  It's been moved and seconded to close the public hearing for H-2021-0007.  
All those in favor say aye.  Any opposed?  Okay.  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
Seal:  All right.  Who wants to jump in first?  Everybody jumping in all at once here.   
 
Lorcher:  Mr. Chairman, I -- I will.   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Commissioner Lorcher.   
 
Lorcher:  I'm kind of surprised the placement of Winco kind of in the middle of the eastern 
portion of the parcel, I don't know if it will be better served closer to the main road, so that 
the -- the living area would be behind it or possibly closer to the freeway to act more as a 
buffer for noise.  I have lived on the freeway -- near the freeway before and you can put 
as many double pane storm windows as you want, the lights and the noise, the ambient 
noise from the freeway, especially when we have construction trucks with jake brakes is 
always present.  But I guess that's a personal choice if you choose an apartment that is 
along that area.  But it looks like they have got some wiggle room on where to place the 
buildings and I'm just kind of surprised that it is where it is.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.  Anybody else jump in here?  I see Commissioner Holland, you are off 
mute.   
 
Holland:  Oh.  I forgot to mute myself again.  Mr. Chair, I can go.  Commissioner Lorcher 
just to confirm, I -- the -- I think the Winco is proposed to be on the north side adjacent to 
the freeway at -- at some point when it does develop in the future.  Not on the east side.  
But looking at the -- the project, I think we always struggle with the number of parking 
stalls.  It's always a conversation when we look at multi-family development.  I actually 
don't have a concern with this project and the number of spaces.  I think that they -- they 
met the requirements.  They had the additional ones within the clubhouse and the nine 

56Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 54 of 63 

 

extra spots, but because it's located in an area that's got significant amount of 
commercial, if there was overflow needs, I don't know if they even really need to have an 
arrangement with Winco.  I think -- the way that they have arranged the parking I think 
works and flows better than most multi-family developments I have seen, because it's 
integrated around the sites and I appreciate that they have got the internal courtyard.  I 
think that's a nice style and something that we don't see very frequently.  So, I appreciate 
the -- the flow and the design and the intention of trying to create these pocket 
communities.  It's nice -- it's a lot nicer to look at than a typical four-plex or six-plex or 
eight-plex or whatever it would look like.  We see a lot of those that come through.  This 
one does give a little bit different variety than we have seen.  So, I -- I certainly appreciate 
your creativity there.  I like the farmhouse style.  I think it's -- it's a nice addition.  I always 
struggle whenever we lose commercial ground, but in this case I don't disagree that it 
would be a good spot for some multi-family to be tied in with the neighboring commercial.  
It's nice when we can have good mixed use projects and I'm not opposed to seeing this 
development be located there.  I appreciate that they have -- they have tried to do some 
additional buffering and would encourage them to work closely with the neighbors on the 
eastern boundary on whatever that fencing, screening material looks like.  The only other 
concern I would have is -- double pane windows are great, but I would agree that traffic 
noise from freeways typically still is fairly significant.  So, I don't know if we want to go 
back to considering some sort of a berm or fencing to screen the freeway noise, but 
always something in the back of my mind.  I'm not opposed to letting them be creative 
and -- and do some alternative compliance, but overall I think I'm okay with the way that 
this development has been presented.  That's my starting thoughts.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  And with that I -- I agree with everything that you just said.  The one thing 
that I will ask staff is the -- I believe that the double pane windows were already director 
approved?   
 
Allen:  Mr. Chair, Members of the Commission, yes, that was an alternative compliance 
application that was approved by the director and that was based on the letter from the 
sound engineer.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Is that something we would still be able to add a condition of approval to 
improve upon that or is that --  
 
Allen:  I would defer to the city attorney, but I believe you could ask for a berm and the 
landscape buffer.  That's not abnormal.   
 
Baird:  Mr. Chair, that's correct.  You are considering a conditional use permit.  So, if you 
deem an additional initial condition necessary, go right ahead.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.  Appreciate the clarification.   
 
Baird:  As long as I have got the mic, as the -- as the members deliberate, I haven't heard 
them talk about the requirement for the Cinema Drive extension and for the record it would 
probably be good to have that included with the deliberations.   

57Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 55 of 63 

 

Seal:  Understood.   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Yearsley, go ahead.   
 
Yearsley:  Just -- just for clarification, that's already a condition of the staff report; is that 
not correct?   
 
Seal:  I believe that is -- yes, that is a condition of the staff report as it stands right now.   
 
Yearsley:  Okay.   
 
Seal:  It is contested by the applicant however.   
 
Yearsley:  Okay.  Mr. Chair, I will go forward if you don't mind.   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Commissioner Yearsley.   
 
Yearsley:  You know, I like this -- this layout.  I think it's actually a nice looking 
development.  I do have my -- you know, it is unfortunate that, you know, the ruralness of 
the area is getting gobbled up into commercial and residential and apartments to the 
adjacent neighbors.  It's just kind of the nature of the beast.  I do, I think they need to 
construct the drive.  I think it provides a critical access to businesses, you know, eating 
establishments and stuff like that, so I do believe it's part of the condition and part of the 
development and that way they don't have to access Overland Road to get to that -- you 
know, carved off, so -- but I do believe that that could be done.  I do -- I do echo the 
concern.  You know, where we are -- we are eating up a lot of commercial space or 
industrial space that we could have there for -- for residential, but I don't know -- I don't 
know how to combat that.  I know that there is quite a bit of businesses and development 
all around it, so -- so, with that I'm in favor of this project.   
 
Seal:  Okay.   
 
Yearsley:  I also would be in favor of the berm if others wanted it as well.   
 
Seal:  Okay Thank you.  Commissioner Grove?   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair.   
 
Seal:  Go ahead.   
 
Grove:  I would pretty much echo a lot -- a lot of what has been said, but I guess in terms 
of how this is zoned for mixed use, I think that getting some residential component into 
this area is actually a really good thing.  Typically I wouldn't want to lose commercial 
space, but I think having that -- that residential component, especially a higher density 

58Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 56 of 63 

 

residential component, so actually going to help a lot of those businesses that are in that 
general area.  So, with that I'm in favor.  With the other pieces, I think this is one of the 
more unique layout pieces that we have seen in a little while and I like what they have 
done with that in providing the amenities and creating that sense of space within each 
unit's little bubble if you will.  With Commercial Drive, I would normally be in favor of having 
it built out in phase one with this project, but if it impacts how the Winco could develop, 
then, I -- I would be in favor of having that postponed.  Especially -- in fact, you know, with 
them building out Wells and putting in a traffic signal there, I think that can alleviate some 
of the traffic flow concerns with the initial phase.  With the sound piece, if their sound 
engineers, you know, are saying it's good, I'm okay with not doing anything additional.  
Be a great time for Joe to jump on this if he were still here, considering he lives in a similar 
place I believe and so I -- I'm in favor of what they have proposed here tonight.   
 
Seal:  Yeah.  I'm -- looking at it I like the -- I like the layout of it.  I think it -- it is kind of an 
original piece that's going in, especially with the farm -- farmhouse style.  I mean you are 
not going to replace a farmhouse with this, but, you know, some of that -- the relic of the 
past look is something that people might look on favorably.  It is hard to give up a piece 
of commercial property, but I think this one fits.  There is enough business around there 
that I think that, you know, I can definitely see somebody living, working, and playing here 
for sure.  So, as far as extending Cinema Drive there, I mean if I was one of the five or 
six hundred people that lived here and I wanted to go watch a movie, get a burger, buy a 
Harley, I'm going to want to do it on Cinema Drive, I don't want to have to go all the way 
around.  I think that's going to -- essentially I think that's going to add people jumping in 
their car where instead of, you know, I can walk 200 yards or I can walk 500 yards -- well, 
I'm going to go jump in my car if I have to go all the way around.  So, I just -- I understand 
that it could have an impact on there, but maybe we could condition something in there 
to -- you know, something that conditions completion of the road with -- before the first 
occupancy, that way building can at least commence and that gives them a little bit of 
time to work on putting a road in, but it doesn't have to be completed necessarily, it just 
has to be started and completed before occupancy.  So, I don't know if that would be a 
good compromise or not.  As far as the property line with the neighbors, that is a pretty 
good amount of space in there.  I mean, unfortunately, in Meridian -- I mean I live three 
miles away from the -- from the freeway and when I sit in my backyard I can hear it 
basically any time of the day or night.  So, the noise part is -- is tough.  As far as the close 
proximity of the neighbors -- it is a pretty good amount of distance.  I do like the fact that 
the clubhouse is where it's at, because I do agree that having that single story and -- and 
-- over there is going to help with -- you know, instead of them having to look at a whole 
bunch of the side of the three story buildings, that's going to limit their -- their sight line in 
there.  Hopefully they can work with any concentration of things, like the -- the trash 
receptacles and things like that.  If any of those can be moved I think they, you know, 
could probably work to move those around.  Definitely don't want to make it inconvenient 
or put one away from the pool house, because I think that's where there is going to be a 
lot of use on that.  Especially on weekends, so -- but I like the -- I like the layout.  I like 
what it is for what it is.  So, I think they have done a pretty good job on this one.  But I do 
think that the East Cinema Drive should be part of phase one.  With that I would entertain 
more -- more deliberation or a motion.  I see wheels spinning.   

59Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 57 of 63 

 

Grove:  Mr. Chair, I have a question for you.   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Commissioner Grove.   
 
Grove:  So, essentially, what we are trying to get at for access for Cinema Drive is more 
like pedestrian in nature.  Is that the initial or is it more vehicular?  Like for -- for the 
necessity to have it in phase one.   
 
Seal:  I think that could go either way personally.  I mean if I was coming home -- you 
know, unfortunately, the vehicular part of it would -- amounts to cut-through traffic.  I mean 
if I'm coming home and I can see that traffic's backed up all the way to Wells and I'm at      
-- you know, I can pull into Cinema, I'm going to pull into Cinema and take that way home.  
Not that that's a bad use of that road, I think it's acceptable for the people that live there,  
but I think that that would -- would provide that to some measure, but that's going to 
happen whether it's part of phase one or, you know, part of the complete phase.  But to 
me it's more the -- it's the pedestrian traffic.  If I know I can walk half the distance by going 
across that road, I'm going to walk, I'm not going to drive. 
 
Grove:  So, I think, you know, with -- maybe would another like way of looking at it be like 
a temporary pedestrian pathway?   
 
Seal:  Yeah.  Instead of a road?  I don't know if that's something that is feasible.   
 
Grove:  Okay.   
 
Seal:  I don't know if that opens a can of worms as to what's a public pathway and a 
roadway and how that fits in.  I don't know if that's -- Sonya, do you want to take a crack 
at how that might work if it was a public pathway in the beginning that became a roadway 
or -- I don't even know if there is even a provision for that.   
 
Allen:  Yeah.  I'm not sure.  I'm sorry, I didn't catch all of what you were saying.  The 
extension of Cinema Drive as a pathway connection?   
 
Seal:  Yeah.  As a -- as a -- initially a pathway connection somewhat temporary in nature,  
but I mean, obviously, that would have to meet some kind of code.   
 
Allen:  Well, the whole point of the recommendation from staff was vehicular 
interconnectivity and -- and to distribute traffic.  So, it just depends on what the 
Commission wants.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Appreciate that.   
 
Allen:  Pedestrian is better than nothing, though, I will say.   
 
Seal:  Right.   
 

60Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 58 of 63 

 

Lorcher:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Lorcher, go ahead.   
 
Lorcher:  I understand from the applicant they don't want to build the road right away.  It's 
probably a -- could be a funding issue.  You know, why spend the money when they really 
don't need it right away.  I will defer to whatever the Commission decides -- what the 
majority decides as far as the road is concerned.  If it's built at the beginning it would be 
helpful and useful, but I also understand from the applicant's point of view that if they don't 
have to spend the money on a road, which is probably expensive for them, they would 
probably want to defer.   
 
Seal:  Okay.   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chairman?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Yearsley.   
 
Yearsley:  You know, I -- if I had a guarantee that the Winco was going to develop within 
a year, I would say okay, but we don't have any guarantee when -- when that's going to 
develop and that that interconnectivity is very important for that for both pedestrians and 
vehicles.  If someone is coming home, wants to grab a bite to eat, it's a great shot to get    
-- get back to -- you know, back to the apartment instead of having to go back out to 
Overland, back to the light.  I just think it makes sense to have it part of the phase one 
the way it's conditioned.  It just makes it cleaner, makes it more open and just connectivity 
is -- I think is important.   
 
Holland:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Holland, go ahead.   
 
Holland:  As an alternative compromise would it be possible to condition that that Cinema 
Drive be extended within one year of the start of construction for this project?   
 
Seal:  I tend to think that might be where we are headed.  I mean at least, you know, put 
-- put some kind of condition in there, whether it's based on occupancy or, you know, start 
of construction or something along those lines.  I think that would be -- yeah.  Exactly.  I 
think that would be smart of us to put that in there.   
 
Yearsley:  The problem that I see with that condition is how do you enforce it and who is 
going to enforce that.  Is that put on the Planning and Zoning or code enforcement or 
someone to have that done?  And so it's easier to have it as part of certificate of  
occupancy, because it's an easy one to check.  With having it one year who is going to 
police that?   
 
Allen:  Mr. Chair, when --  

61Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 59 of 63 

 

Seal:  Go ahead, Sonya.   
 
Allen:  May I?  If -- if you go that route it needs to be platted as part of the first phase.  If 
you are going to do a timing on it like that.  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  So, in --  
 
Allen:  It needs to be dedicated and -- and platted.  Dedicated right of way with the first 
phase.  And it is -- it is a difficult thing to enforce.   
 
Seal:  Once it's --  
 
Allen:  Unless it's before occupancy.  But anything after that it is fairly problematic to 
enforce for staff. 
 
Seal:  Right.  Yeah.  So, I think we are probably hinging on before occupancy.  Once it's 
platted what are the ramifications of it needing to change?  I'm trying to be sensitive to 
the fact that we have got commercial going in there and we want to keep commercial 
going in there for Winco, so if they need to change that road and all of a sudden that's not 
going to work and -- it delays them.  So, you know, just trying to weigh those two things 
out.  I don't know what the -- not having ever built a subdivision or a commercial property 
myself, I don't know what happens once a road gets plotted in there and it needs to 
change.  I mean what are the -- what are the costs associated with that before it starts -- 
before they start building it, obviously.   
 
Allen:  Mr. Chair, Members of the Commission, if the road location needed to change after 
the final plat was approved, then, they would have to come in and amend the plat.  But 
between the preliminary plat and the final plat there would be time to nail that down 
hopefully.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  So, who wants to jump in and add more to this?  Or try and throw a motion 
out there on it?   
 
Holland: Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Yes, Commissioner Holland.  And I believe this is a CUP, so we are approval on 
this, am I correct?   
 
Holland:  There is three different components of it, Mr. Chair.  There is the conditional use 
permit for the multi-family development, but there is also the preliminary plat, which will 
go to Council.  So, it's a partial recommendation, partial approval.   
 
Seal:  Okay.   
 

62Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 60 of 63 

 

Allen:  Actually, Mr. Chair, no.  The -- when a conditional use permit has a concurrent 
preliminary plat with it, then, the decision making body for that application actually acts 
on the conditional use permit.  It is a little different in this case.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  We still recommend approval on this?   
 
Allen:  Yeah.  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.  So, we have both been corrected.   
 
Holland:  Yeah.  Learn something new.   
 
Seal:  Absolutely.   
 
Holland:  Mr. Chair, I think -- I like your suggestion of -- of saying that Cinema Road needs 
to be extended prior to occupancy being issued.  That gives them a little bit more time to 
maybe work with Winco on -- if they need to make any adjustments to it before they go to 
final plat on it.  I think that that's a fair recommendation.  The only other thing we have 
talked about -- I don't know -- we kind of got mixed reviews on whether or not we needed 
enhanced buffering.  If there is a sound engineer that has said that it will provide minimal 
noise, these probably aren't going to be long-term stay residents.  That's typical with most 
apartment complexes anyway, so if they live there for a couple years they may not care 
that they are next to the freeway noise and, hopefully, if it's mitigated that well with the 
design features of their -- their complex.  But I don't know if we want to talk about that 
anymore.  I'm open to adding a condition that asks for enhanced buffering from the 
freeway.  I'm also not sure if we need to make a specific condition about the neighbors to 
the east of the project with the lower density homes, if we need to have a specific type of 
screening they are requesting added in there or if we just say that they need to work with 
the neighbors on what that fencing and screening looks like.  Those are the two items I 
think still out there.   
 
Seal:  Yeah.  I agree that -- I mean a sound engineer has signed off on it.  The director 
has approved that.  So, I mean there is some validity to it for sure.  I mean as someone 
that used to live next to railroad tracks I can tell you that after you are there for a couple 
of weeks it's just background noise for the most part, which is hard to believe that trains 
would become background noise, but it truly does, so I -- you know, as far as who wants 
to recommend what on that, I think that the rest of the Commission would probably go 
along with whatever the recommendation is.   
 
Yearsley:  Well, I guess that that -- on the -- we don't need to make a change to the 
Cinema Way deal; correct?  We just talked about it.  It's part of occupancy.  That's kind 
of where staff has put it in; correct?   
 
Seal:  I think we would need to change the wording of it to -- if we wanted it to be based 
on occupancy.  Right now -- 
 

63Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 61 of 63 

 

Yearsley:  Okay.   
 
Seal:  -- it's just part of the recommendation no matter what.   
 
Yearsley:  Okay.  I will make a stab at this if everyone's ready.   
 
Allen:  Excuse me, Mr. Chair, if I could jump in again.  I'm sorry.  I -- question for the city 
attorney.  I'm not sure if -- if they make the extension of Cinema with the first phase final 
plat, if they can tie that to any other timing, like C of O.  I believe that would have to be 
done with completion of the plat for ACHD to sign off on it.  Mr. Baird?   
 
Baird:  Mr. Chair, Members of the Commission, having been in a position before where 
we have got apartments that are completed and you have got sales agents renting out 
rooms and there are conditions that need to be fulfilled, I have seen it work that tying it to 
a C of O gets their attention and it gets it done and any of the platting and the working 
with ACHD will just fall into line ahead of that through the planning process.  That's the 
way I'm seeing it.  Am I answering your questions, Sonya?   
 
Seal:  Yeah.  I tend to agree with that where if you tie it in there, whatever modifications 
that road needs to be made are going to be made when they need to be made before 
anybody commits to occupancy.   
 
Allen:  If the C of O -- I believe that the road improvements, if they are part of the plat 
would all have to be done before building permits are even issued.   
 
Seal:  And, personally, that's what I was trying to -- you know, come to some kind of 
agreement on that to where they can still start to build, they just can't occupy beforehand.  
But if there is precedence before that that don't allow it, then, you can be stuck.   
 
Parsons:  Well, Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Bill.   
 
Parsons:  ACHD has a process, just like the city.  If the improvements aren't done the 
applicant can bond for those improvements and get their plat recorded, so that they are 
eligible for a building permit.  So, more than likely this -- looking at the application 
submittals, it is their intent to do the apartment complex under one phase.  So, that's a lot 
of buildings going up at one time.  So, I kind of like your suggestion of where, you know, 
even if the road has been constructed they have the opportunity to bond for it and, then, 
prior to them getting occupancy, like you said at the first building, then, that road should 
be done.  So, that may be the mechanism to go.  I -- I'm kind of leaning towards the city 
attorney's interpretation that there is a mechanism there for them to move forward, get 
under construction and still have that road constructed prior to occupancy.  I think we can 
change that condition to read that way.   
 

64Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 62 of 63 

 

Seal:  And -- I mean with us doing a recommendation to City Council can we work towards 
putting that -- you know, solidifying that so that when it goes to City Council they have all 
the information as far as what it can and cannot be?  I mean we can't -- we can't -- we 
can't provision something in here that's --  
 
Parsons:  You can make a recommendation on the DA to modify that provision.  Right 
now the way that staff has the conditions -- or the DA provision crafted is with the first 
phase, which we are -- when we are talking phases we were talking about the subdivision 
phase.  So, if it's your intent to modify that, you can have -- make a recommendation to 
modify that that road be constructed prior to the first occupancy of the first structure.  So, 
you just have to make that clear in your motion and Sonya will make that happen.  I would 
imagine that the -- again, the applicant has another bite at the apple, because they are 
going to be in front of City Council and if they can convince the Council to overturn your 
decision or staff's recommendation then -- then maybe they have that ability to do that.  
Because Sonya -- as Sonya mentioned to you they are the decision maker on it -- on all 
of it, so it really comes down to what you guys feel comfortable with moving forward on 
your recommendation and, again, the applicant will have their chance in front of Council.   
 
Seal:  Okay.   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chairman?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Yearsley, go ahead. 
 
Yearsley:  After considering all staff, applicant, and public testimony I move to recommend 
approval to the City Council of file number H-2021-0007 as presented in the staff report 
for the hearing date of April 1st, 2021, with the following modification:  That the 
construction of Cinema Way be conditioned upon approval of certificate of occupancy.  
That it be construction as part of the certificate of occupancy and that the developer work 
with the property owners to the east on developing an agreeable fence configuration.   
 
Allen:  Mr. Chair, excuse me.  Clarification of the motion.  Is -- is the motion to include 
Cinema Drive with the first phase subdivision plat, but have it constructed prior to the first 
occupancy permit?   
 
Yearsley:  That is correct.   
 
Allen:  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Do I have a second?   
 
Grove:  Second.   
 
Seal:  All right.  It has been moved and seconded to recommend approval of file number 
H-2021-0007, Seasons at Meridian/Winco Wells Subdivision with the aforementioned 
modifications.  All those in favor say aye.  Any opposed?  Okay.  Motion carries.   

65Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 1, 2021 
Page 63 of 63 

 

MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
Seal:  All right.  I will take one more motion.   
 
Holland:  I move we adjourn for the hearing date of April 1st, 2021.   
 
Seal:  Do I have a second?   
 
Yearsley:  I will second that.   
 
Seal:  It has been moved and -- motioned and seconded to adjourn.  All those in favor 
say aye.  Any opposed?  All right.  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
Seal:  Thanks, everyone.   
 
MEETING ADJOURNED AT 9:37 P.M. 
 
(AUDIO RECORDING ON FILE OF THESE PROCEEDINGS.) 
 
APPROVED 
 
_____________________________________   _____|_____|_____ 
ANDREW SEAL - VICE-CHAIRMAN   DATE APPROVED 
 
ATTEST:   
 
_____________________________________ 
CHRIS JOHNSON - CITY CLERK 

66Item 1.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Public Hearing Continued from April 1, 2021 for Jaker's Drive-Through 
Addition (H-2021-0012) by BRS Architects, Located at 3268 E. Pine Ave.
A. Request: Conditional Use Permit for a drive-through in the C-G zoning district at an existing 

restaurant.

67Item 2.



 

PUBLIC HEARING INFORMATION  
 

Staff Contact: Sonya Allen Meeting Date: April 15, 2021 

Topic: Public Hearing Continued from April 1, 2021 for Jaker's Drive-Through Addition 
(H-2021-0012) by BRS Architects, Located at 3268 E. Pine Ave. 

A. Request: Conditional Use Permit for a drive-through in the C-G zoning district 
at an existing restaurant. 

 

Information Resources: 

Click Here for Application Materials 

 

Click Here to Sign Up to Testify at the Planning and Zoning Commission Public Hearing 

68Item 2.

http://bit.ly/H-2021-0012
https://apps.meridiancity.org/SIGNINPZ/


 

 
Page 1 

 
  

HEARING 

DATE: 

4/15/2021 

Continued from: 4/1/2021 

 

 

TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

FROM: Sonya Allen, Associate Planner 

208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: H-2021-0012 

Jakers Drive-Through – CUP, DES 

LOCATION: 3268 E. Pine Ave., in the NW ¼ of 

Section 9, Township 3N., Range 1E. 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Conditional use permit for a drive-through establishment within 300-feet of a residential use and 

zoning district on 1.37-acres of land in the C-G zoning district. Administrative design review of 

proposed structures. 

II. SUMMARY OF REPORT 

A. Project Summary 

 

  

STAFF REPORT  

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT  

Description Details Page 

Acreage 1.37-acres  

Future Land Use Designation Commercial  

Existing Land Use Restaurant  

Proposed Land Use(s) Drive-through establishment (order pick-up)  

Current Zoning General Retail and Service Commercial District (C-G)  

Physical Features (waterways, 

hazards, flood plain, hillside) 

None  

Neighborhood meeting date; # of 

attendees:  

10/16/20; 2 attendees   

History (previous approvals) CZC-06-102 (5,300 square foot restaurant); CZC-14-

029/DES-14-026 (600 square foot sun room addition) 

 

69Item 2.



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

 

A. Project Area Maps 

III. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant: 

Mark Anderson – 1010 S. Allante Pl., Ste. 100, Eagle, ID 83709 

B. Owner:  

Adam Crane, Vintage Properties, LLLP – 3755 N. Hill Rd., King Hill, ID 83633 

Future Land Use Map 

 

Aerial Map 

 
 

 

 

Zoning Map 

 

Planned Development Map 

 

70Item 2.



 

 
Page 3 

 
  

C. Representative: 

Same as Applicant 

IV. NOTICING 

 Planning & Zoning 

Posting Date 

Newspaper Notification 3/12/2021 

Radius notification mailed to 

properties within 300 feet 
3/9/2021 

Site Posting Date 3/26/2021 

Next Door posting 3/9/2021 

V. STAFF ANALYSIS 

Two (2) 25-square foot (5’ x 5’) structures are proposed for a drive-through menu handout and order 

placement and pick-up along the south side of the existing Jakers restaurant. Because the drive-

through is within 300-feet of a residential use and zoning district, a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is 

required per UDC Table 11-2B-2 and 11-4-3-11A. Residential uses abut the east boundary of this site 

in Crossroads Subdivision, zoned R-4.  

Specific Use Standards: The proposed drive-through establishment is subject to the specific use 

standards listed in UDC 11-4-3-11, Drive-Through Establishment. A site plan is required to be 

submitted that demonstrates safe pedestrian and vehicular access and circulation on the site and 

between adjacent properties. At a minimum, the plan is required to demonstrate compliance with the 

following standards: Staff’s analysis is in italics. 

1) Stacking lanes have sufficient capacity to prevent obstruction of driveways, drive aisles and 

the public right-of-way by patrons;  

At 87’+/-, the drive-through should have sufficient capacity to prevent obstruction of driveways 

and drive aisles; there is no public right-of-way that abuts this site. 

2) The stacking lane shall be a separate lane from the circulation lanes needed for access and 

parking, except stacking lanes may provide access to designed employee parking.  

The stacking lane is a separate lane from the circulation lanes needed for access and parking; a 

one-way drive-aisle abuts the drive-through lane for vehicles to pass through to the east. 

3) The stacking lane shall not be located within ten (10) feet of any residential district or existing 

residence;  

The stacking lane is located approximately 82-feet away from abutting residences to the east and 

residential zoning. A 4-foot tall berm with a 6-foot tall block CMU wall on top exists along the 

east boundary of this site to buffer existing residential properties. 

4) Any stacking lane greater than one hundred (100) feet in length shall provide for an escape 

lane; and  

The stacking lane is approximately 87-feet long; therefore, an escape lane is not required.  

5) The site should be designed so that the drive-through is visible from a public street for 

71Item 2.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-11DRROES


 

 
Page 4 

 
  

surveillance purposes.   

The drive-through is visible from a driveway that provides a connection between E. Presidential 

Dr. and E. Pine Ave. and from the adjacent property to the south for surveillance purposes; a 

public street does not abut this site. 

There are no menu boards or speakers proposed; window locations are depicted on the elevations 

in accord with UDC 11-4-3-11B. 

Based on the above analysis, Staff deems the proposed drive-through in compliance with the 

specific use standards as required. 

Parking: The row of parking directly south of the proposed drive-through is proposed to be re-striped 

to accommodate a one-way drive-aisle to allow space for the drive-through, which will reduce the 

number of parking spaces in this area by three (3).  

A minimum of one (1) parking space is required for every 250 square feet of gross floor area per the 

specific use standards for restaurants in UDC 11-4-3-49. Based on 5,900 square feet, a minimum of 

23 vehicle parking spaces are required; a total of 87 spaces are provided. 

Landscaping: No landscaping is proposed or required with this application. 

Building Elevations: Conceptual building elevations were submitted as shown in Section VII.B that 

consist of stucco panels with 2” wide recessed gold colored metal flashing accents and asphalt 

roofing; the materials and colors coincide with that of the existing restaurant building.  

Design Review: Administrative Design Review of the proposed structures is required because they’re 

visible from the north/south private street/driveway to the west per UDC 11-5B-8B. The proposed 

materials and design are consistent with the design standards listed in the Architectural Standards 

Manual and are approved. 

Certificate of Zoning Compliance: A Certificate of Zoning Compliance application is required to be 

submitted for the proposed use prior to submittal of a building permit application to ensure 

consistency with the conditions in Section VII and UDC standards. 

VI. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed conditional use permit with the conditions included 

in Section VIII per the Findings in Section IX. 

  

72Item 2.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-49RE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH5AD_ARTBSPPR_11-5B-8ADDERE
https://meridiancity.org/planning/files/Architectural%20Standards%20160802.pdf
https://meridiancity.org/planning/files/Architectural%20Standards%20160802.pdf


 

 
Page 5 

 
  

VII. EXHIBITS  

A. Site/Landscape Plan (dated: 2/5/2021)  

 

 

  

73Item 2.



 

 
Page 6 

 
  

B. Building Elevations (dated: 2/5/21) & Photos 

 

74Item 2.



 

 
Page 7 

 
  

 

 

 

 

  

75Item 2.



 

 
Page 8 

 
  

VIII. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

A. PLANNING 

1. The site/landscape plan submitted with the Certificate of Zoning Compliance application 

shall demonstrate compliance with the specific use standards listed in UDC 11-4-3-11 Drive-

Through Establishments consistent with the plan in Section VII.A. 

2. Compliance with the standards listed in UDC 11-4-3-11 – Drive-Through Establishment is 

required. 

3. The future structures shall be consistent with the elevations in Section VII.B as approved with 

the Administrative Design Review application. 

4. A Certificate of Zoning Compliance application shall be submitted and approved for the 

proposed use prior to submittal of a building permit application.  

5. The conditional use permit is valid for a maximum period of two (2) years unless otherwise 

approved by the City. During this time, the Applicant shall commence the use as permitted in 

accord with the conditions of approval, satisfy the requirements set forth in the conditions of 

approval, and acquire building permits and commence construction of permanent footings or 

structures on or in the ground as set forth in UDC 11-5B-6. A time extension may be requested 

as set forth in UDC 11-5B-6F. 

B. ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT (ACHD) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223674&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity  

C. NAMPA & MERIDIAN IRRIGATION DISTRICT (NMID) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224330&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity  

D. DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (DEQ) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223529&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity  

IX. FINDINGS 

Conditional Use (UDC 11-5B-6) 

Findings: The commission shall base its determination on the conditional use permit request upon the 

following: 

1. That the site is large enough to accommodate the proposed use and meet all the dimensional and 

development regulations in the district in which the use is located. 

Staff finds the site is large enough to accommodate the proposed drive-through and meet all 

dimensional and development regulations of the C-G zoning district. 

2. That the proposed use will be harmonious with the Meridian comprehensive plan and in accord 

with the requirements of this title. 

Staff finds the proposed drive-through will be harmonious with the Comprehensive Plan and is 

consistent with applicable UDC standards with the conditions noted in Section VIII of this report. 

76Item 2.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-11DRROES
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-11DRROES
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH5AD_ARTBSPPR_11-5B-6COUS
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223674&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223674&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224330&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224330&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223529&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223529&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


 

 
Page 9 

 
  

3. That the design, construction, operation and maintenance will be compatible with other uses in 

the general neighborhood and with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and 

that such use will not adversely change the essential character of the same area. 

Staff finds the design, construction, operation and maintenance of the proposed use will be 

compatible with other uses in the general neighborhood, with the existing and intended character 

of the vicinity and will not adversely change the essential character of the area. 

4. That the proposed use, if it complies with all conditions of the approval imposed, will not 

adversely affect other property in the vicinity. 

Staff finds the proposed use will not adversely affect other properties in the vicinity if it complies 

with the conditions in Section VIII of this report. 

5. That the proposed use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services such as 

highways, streets, schools, parks, police and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, 

water, and sewer. 

Staff finds the proposed use will be served by essential public facilities and services as required. 

6. That the proposed use will not create excessive additional costs for public facilities and services 

and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

Staff finds the proposed use will not create additional costs for public facilities and services and 

will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

7. That the proposed use will not involve activities or processes, materials, equipment and 

conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare by 

reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

Staff finds the proposed use will not be detrimental to any persons, property or the general 

welfare by the reasons noted above. 

8. That the proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural, scenic or 

historic feature considered to be of major importance. (Ord. 05-1170, 8-30-2005, eff. 9-15-2005) 

 Staff finds the proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of any such features. 

9.  Additional findings for the alteration or extension of a nonconforming use: 

a.  That the proposed nonconforming use does not encourage or set a precedent for additional 

nonconforming uses within the area; and, 

 This finding is not applicable. 

b.  That the proposed nonconforming use is developed to a similar or greater level of conformity 

with the development standards as set forth in this title as compared to the level of 

development of the surrounding properties. 

 ` This finding is not applicable. 

77Item 2.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Public Hearing for Pine 43 Apartments (MCU-2021-0002) by Pivot North 
Design, Located South of E. Fairview Ave., on the East Side of N. Webb Way and North of E. Pine 
Ave.
A. Request: Modification to the Conditional Use Permit (H-2018-0001) to revise the site layout to

include consolidation of common open space into more usable areas with a clubhouse, and a 

change to the mix of units/types.

78Item 3.



 

PUBLIC HEARING INFORMATION  
 

Staff Contact: Sonya Allen Meeting Date: April 15, 2021 

Topic: Public Hearing for Pine 43 Apartments (MCU-2021-0002) by Pivot North Design, 
Located South of E. Fairview Ave., on the East Side of N. Webb Way and North of E. 
Pine Ave. 

A. Request: Modification to the Conditional Use Permit (H-2018-0001) to revise 
the site layout to include consolidation of common open space into more 
usable areas with a clubhouse, and a change to the mix of units/types. 

 

Information Resources: 

Click Here for Application Materials 

 

Click Here to Sign Up to Testify at the Planning and Zoning Commission Public Hearing 

79Item 3.

http://bit.ly/MCU-2021-0002
https://apps.meridiancity.org/SIGNINPZ/


 

 
Page 1 

 
  

HEARING 

DATE: 

4/15/2021 

 

 

TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

FROM: Sonya Allen, Associate Planner 

208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: MCU-2021-0002 

Pine 43 Apartments – MCU 

LOCATION: 2255 E. Fairview Ave., in the NW ¼ of 

Section 8, T.3N., R.1E. 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Modification to the previously approved Conditional Use Permit (H-2018-0001) to revise the site 

layout for the northeast 11.22-acre portion of the development to include a consolidation of common 

open space into more usable areas, the addition of a clubhouse and other amenities, and a change to 

the mix of unit types within the development. 

II. SUMMARY OF REPORT 

A. Project Summary 

STAFF REPORT  

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT  

Description Details Page 

Acreage 11.22 (site); 26.17 acres (overall)  

Future Land Use Designation Mixed Use – Community (MU-C)  

Existing Land Use Multi-family development in the development process 

(apartments) 

 

Proposed Land Use(s) Multi-family residential  

Current Zoning R-40 High-Density Residential  

Physical Features (waterways, 

hazards, flood plain, hillside) 

The Jackson Drain runs along the southern boundary and 

the Settler’s Canal bisects this site 

 

Neighborhood meeting date; # of 

attendees:  

2/8/21; 1 attendee  

History (previous approvals) H-2017-0058 (Pine 43 DA Inst. #2018-000751); H-2018-

0001 (Pine 43 Apartments – CUP); A-2018-0054 (Property 

Boundary Adjustment); A-2020-0143 (CZC, DES for 1st 

phase); FP-2021-0006 

 

80Item 3.

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=140263&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=141950&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=145053&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=145053&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


 

 
Page 2 

 
  

A. Project Area Maps 

III. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant: 

Brian Wenzel, Pivot North Design – 1101 W. Grove St., Boise, ID 83702 

B. Owner:  

The Burrell Group – 602 E. Cooper Ave., Aspen, CO 81611 

Future Land Use Map 

 

Aerial Map 

 
 

 

 

Zoning Map 

 

Planned Development Map 

 

81Item 3.



 

 
Page 3 

 
  

C. Representative: 

Patrick Boel, Roundhouse – 1109 W. Main St., Ste. 390, Boise, ID 83702 

IV. NOTICING 

 Planning & Zoning 

Posting Date 

Newspaper Notification 3/26/2021 

Radius notification mailed to 

properties within 300 feet 
3/24/2021 

Site Posting Date 4/1/2021 

Next Door posting 3/24/2021 

V. STAFF ANALYSIS 

The existing Conditional Use Permit (H-2018-0001) approved for the overall site is for a 480-unit 

multi-family development on 27.48-acres of land in the R-40 zoning district. This application 

proposes to update the site layout on the northeast 11.22-acres to include a consolidation of common 

open space into more usable areas, the addition of a 1-story 7,047 square foot (s.f.) clubhouse and 

other amenities, and a change to the mix of unit types within the development. No changes are 

proposed to the number of residential units or structures. 

Unit Types: The approved plan was for 240-units in ten (10) structures consisting of (60) 1-bedroom 

units, (120) 2-bedroom units and (60) 3-bedroom units. The proposed plan is also for 240-units 

consisting of (80) 1-bedroom units, (110) 2-bedroom units and (50) 3-bedroom units, which provides 

a better mix of unit types available for rent. 

Common Open Space: The approved plan required 66,800 square feet (s.f.) of common open space 

and proposed 87,224 s.f. The proposed plan requires 65,000 s.f. based on 190-units containing 

between 500-1,200 s.f. of living area and 50-units in excess of 1,200 s.f. and proposes 118,363 s.f., in 

excess of UDC standards. The proposed change results in an increase in common open space of 

31,139 s.f. (or 0.71-acre) and consolidated common areas for better use. 

Amenities: Site amenities approved for this phase consisted of a fitness building and/or sports 

court/play equipment and plaza, and community grill areas with park style charcoal grills with an 

optional shade structure or cover dispersed throughout the development. Proposed amenities consist 

of a clubhouse, swimming pool with recreation deck and two (2) spas, BBQ deck, covered outdoor 

seating and beach volleyball court in the common area along Webb Way; and a dog run & dog wash, 

playground structure and community garden on the eastern portion of the development. Details of the 

proposed amenities should be submitted with the Certificate of Zoning Compliance application. 

The proposed changes result in more and a higher quality of amenities for the development. 

Off-Street Vehicle & Bicycle Parking: The approved plan required 450 vehicle spaces (210 

covered) and provided 462 spaces (245 in covered carports and garages) for the residential units. The 

proposed plan requires 440 vehicle spaces (200 covered) for the residential units and 14 spaces for the 

clubhouse for a total of 454 spaces; and provides 462 spaces (248 in covered carports) in excess of 

UDC standards.  

Garages were originally proposed along the east boundary of the site which provided a buffer 

between the residential structures and the adjacent industrial uses to the east but have now 

82Item 3.



 

 
Page 4 

 
  

been changed to carports. This change should ultimately provide more needed parking for the 

development since some garages are typically used for storage and not parking; however, it will 

not provide a needed buffer between the different uses. The interface between the proposed 

residential uses and existing industrial uses was a topic of discussion and concern at the public 

hearing for the original conditional use permit. Therefore, Staff recommends a 6-foot tall closed 

vision/solid fence is installed along the east boundary with a fairly dense landscape buffer, as 

proposed. 

The approved plan required and proposed 20 bicycle parking spaces. The proposed plan requires 19 

and provides 20 spaces in excess of UDC standards. Bicycle parking is required to comply with the 

standards listed in UDC 11-3C-5C. 

Specific Use Standards: The proposed multi-family development is subject to the specific use 

standards listed in UDC 11-4-3-27, Multi-Family Development. Plans submitted with the Certificate 

of Zoning Compliance application should demonstrate compliance with these standards and those in 

the development agreement [H-2017-0058 (Pine 43 DA Inst. #2018-000751)]. 

Landscaping: Landscaping proposed for the site is depicted on the landscape plan in Section VII.D. 

Street buffers and parkways are required to be landscaped in accord with the standards listed in UDC 

11-3B-7C. Internal common open space areas are required to be landscaped in accord with the 

standards listed in UDC 11-3G-3E. Parking lot and perimeter landscaping is required per the 

standards listed in UDC 11-3B-8C. Landscaping is required along all pathways in accord with the 

standards listed in UDC 11-3B-12C.  

Fairly dense landscaping (approximately 1 tree per 25-linear feet) is proposed in the perimeter buffer 

along the eastern boundary of the site adjacent to parking and industrial uses to the east. Staff 

recommends a mix of evergreen and deciduous trees, shrubs, lawn or other vegetative 

groundcover is provided in the buffer accord with the standards listed in UDC 11-3B-9C.1. 

Mitigation is required for any existing trees removed from the site per the standards listed in UDC 11-

3B-10C.5; the landscape plan in Section VII.D depicts the existing trees proposed for removal. Prior 

to removal of any trees from the site, coordinate with Matt Perkins, City Arborist, to determine 

mitigation requirements (208-371-1755). Calculations should be included on the plan 

demonstrating compliance with UDC mitigation standards.  

Pathways: A 10-foot wide multi-use pathway is proposed within the street buffer along N. Webb 

Way ang along the north side of the Jackson Drain, in accord with the Pathways Master Plan. 5. A 

public pedestrian easement is required to be submitted for the multi-use pathway along N. Webb Way 

prior to issuance of the first Certificate of Occupancy for the site. If the pathway is in the right-of-

way, it should be covered under a pedestrian easement with ACHD. 

Pedestrian connections should be provided between buildings in the form of pathways 

distinguished from vehicular driving surfaces through the use of pavers, colored or scored 

concrete, or bricks in accord with the Development Agreement (provision #5.1.4b). 

Pathway/sidewalk connections should also be provided to the main building entrances along N. 

Webb Way from the multi-use pathway along N. Webb Way. 

Fencing: All fencing is required to comply with the standards listed in UDC 11-3A-7. The Applicant 

states there is existing fencing along the project’s east boundary that consists of a combination of 

chain-link and barbed wire; no fencing is proposed. Because the garages have been removed from 

the plan that were previously proposed along the project’s eastern boundary, Staff recommends 

a 6-foot tall closed vision/solid fence is provided along the eastern boundary, with landscaping 

as depicted on the landscape plan (approximately one tree per 25-linear feet and a mix of 

evergreen & deciduous trees), as a buffer. 

83Item 3.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-5PASTALOTUSNOSP
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-27MUMIDE
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=140263&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=141950&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-7LABUALST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTGCOOPSPSIAMRE_11-3G-3ST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-8PALOLA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-12PALA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-10TRPR
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-10TRPR
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-7FE


 

 
Page 5 

 
  

Stormwater: An adequate storm drainage system shall be required in all developments in accord 

with the City’s adopted standards, specifications and ordinances. Design and construction shall follow 

Best Management Practice as adopted by the City. There are some above-ground retention areas 

proposed along the eastern and southern boundaries of the site for stormwater management as 

depicted on the landscape plan in Section VII.D. 

Waterways/Ditches: There is an existing irrigation ditch (Settler’s Canal) that runs east/west across 

this site that is proposed to be relocated and piped in alignment with the new entry driveway via N. 

Webb Way in accord with UDC 11-3A-6. Buildings and trees should not be located within the 

easement/piped area. 

Ownership & Maintenance: The first phase (i.e. Jasper Apartments) and proposed second phase of 

development will have shared ownership and amenities for the overall development. The clubhouse 

proposed in this phase is sized to accommodate users from both phases. A pedestrian bridge will link 

the projects internally. Staff recommends both phases are under the same management company 

for consistent maintenance of the overall development. 

Building Elevations: Conceptual building elevations and perspective drawings were submitted for 

the proposed 3-story multi-family structures and the single-story clubhouse as shown in Section 

VII.F. Building materials for the residential structures consist of a mix of horizontal & vertical fiber 

cement board/batten siding with gable roofs and asphalt shingles; three primary color schemes are 

proposed for variety. Building materials for the clubhouse consist of vertical metal siding with 

vertical wood cladding, glazing, dimensional wood slat accents, a gable roof and metal roofing.  

Prefabricated steel siding is only allowed to be used as an accent material per the development 

agreement (see definition on pg. E-5 of the Architectural Standards Manual and #R5.1E) – 

revisions should be made to comply. Additionally, per the DA, exterior building walls should 

demonstrate the appearance of high-quality materials of stone, brick, wood, or other native materials 

(acceptable materials include tinted or textured masonry block, textured masonry block, textured 

architectural coated concrete panels, or stucco or stucco-like synthetic materials – smooth faced 

concrete block, tilt-up concrete panels, or prefabricated steel panels are prohibited except as accent 

materials. The building design shall incorporate at least two (2) changes in one or a combination of 

the following: color, texture and materials. Rooflines shall demonstrate two (2) or more of the 

following: overhanging eaves, sloped roofs with two or more roof planes, flat roofs with varying 

parapet heights, or cornices.  

Administrative Design Review of the proposed structures is required. All structures shall 

comply with the design standards listed in the Architectural Standards Manual. The elevations 

submitted with this application are not approved and will likely require further modifications 

to comply with design standards. Per the Architectural Standards Manual (ASM), architectural 

elements should be provided to clearly distinguish between the ground level and upper stories (ASM 

Goal #R3.1E); visually heavier and more massive elements or materials should be provided at the 

base of buildings with lighter elements and materials above (#R3.1F); horizontal and vertical 

elements should be integrated into facades to break up monotonous wall planes (#R3.20); 25% or 

more of the non-roof surface area of the clubhouse (i.e. accessory structure) must utilize a like 

material of the primary structures (#R3.3B); locate focal points as key elements within the building 

design to enhance architectural character (#R4.20); incorporate a trim color and an accent color or 

unique material into the color scheme as integrated details of the building design (#R.5.2A); modulate 

and articulate roof form of the clubhouse to create building profile interest and to reduce the 

appearance of building mass and scale (#R3.4). 

The elevations in the first phase of the multi-family development lying directly to the southwest of 

this site (i.e. Jasper Apartments) are a different architectural style (flat roofs with parapets and more 

of a modern style – see Section VII.E) and color palette but the proposed structures incorporate 

84Item 3.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-6DILACADRCO


 

 
Page 6 

 
  

several orientations of fiber cement board siding which assist in unifying the structures. The 

Applicant anticipates the existing structures will be re-painted in the future to coincide with the 

proposed color scheme. While different architecturally, Staff feels the similar use of materials and 

colors will offer variety within the development.  

Wayfinding signage and clear addressing should be provided on buildings for emergency 

responders; coordinate with Joe Bongiorno, Fire Dept. and Terri Ricks, Land Development. 

The Applicant should coordinate with the Police Dept. on emergency access for the secured 

buildings.  

Certificate of Zoning Compliance/Design Review: A Certificate of Zoning Compliance and Design 

Review application(s) is required to be submitted for the proposed use prior to submittal of building 

permit applications to ensure consistency with the provisions in the development agreement, 

conditions in Section VIII, UDC standards and design standards in the Architectural Standards 

Manual. 

VI. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff finds the proposed changes result in more diversity in rental options, larger and more 

consolidated/usable common open space areas and a higher quality and more site amenities. 

Therefore, Staff recommends approval of the proposed conditional use permit modification with 

the conditions included in Section VIII per the Findings in Section IX.  

  

85Item 3.



 

 
Page 7 

 
  

VII. EXHIBITS  

A. Approved Site Plan (dated: 1/5/2018)  

 

86Item 3.



 

 
Page 8 

 
  

B. Proposed Site Plan (dated: 2/23/2021) 

  

87Item 3.



 

 
Page 9 

 
  

C. Approved Landscape Plan & Open Space Plan (dated: 1/5/2018) 

 

 

 

88Item 3.



 

 
Page 10 

 
  

 

  

89Item 3.



 

 
Page 11 

 
  

D. Proposed Landscape Plan, Open Space Plan (dated: 1/19/2021) & Amenity Detail 

 

90Item 3.



 

 
Page 12 

 
  

 

91Item 3.



 

 
Page 13 

 
  

 

92Item 3.



 

 
Page 14 

 
  

 

93Item 3.



 

 
Page 15 

 
  

 

94Item 3.



 

 
Page 16 

 
  

 

95Item 3.



 

 
Page 17 

 
  

 

96Item 3.



 

 
Page 18 

 
  

 

*Concept only – exact system to be determined in the future 

97Item 3.



 

 
Page 19 

 
  

E. Approved Conceptual Building Elevations (H-2018-0001) 

 

 

 

 

 

  

98Item 3.



 

 
Page 20 

 
  

 Elevations approved for construction in Phase 1: 

  

99Item 3.



 

 
Page 21 

 
  

F. Proposed Conceptual Building Elevations & Perspective Drawings for Multi-Family & Clubhouse 

Structures NOT APPROVED – SUBJECT TO DESIGN REVIEW APPROVAL 

 

 

100Item 3.



 

 
Page 22 

 
  

 

 

 

101Item 3.



 

 
Page 23 

 
  

 

 

 

102Item 3.



 

 
Page 24 

 
  

Potential Color Schemes: 

 

  

103Item 3.



 

 
Page 25 

 
  

VIII. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

A. PLANNING 

1. All future development shall comply with the provisions in the existing Development 

Agreement (Inst. #2018-000751), preliminary plat (H-2017-0058), final plat (FP-2021-0006) 

and the site/landscape plan, including amenities, submitted with this application and with the 

associated conditions of approval contained herein. 

2. The site/landscape plan submitted with the Certificate of Zoning Compliance application 

shall include the following: 

a. Demonstrate compliance with the specific use standards listed in UDC 11-4-3-27 Multi-

Family Development, as follows: 

 (1) All on-site service areas, outdoor storage areas, waste storage, disposal facilities, and 

transformer and utility vaults shall be depicted on the plan and be located in areas not 

visible from a public street, or shall be fully screened from view from a public street 

as set forth in UDC 11-4-3-27B.2. 

 (2)  Depict the location of the property management office, maintenance storage area, a 

central mailbox location (including provisions for parcel mail) that provide safe 

pedestrian and/or vehicle access, and a directory and map of the development at an 

entrance or convenient location for those entering the development. 

 (3) Depict landscaping along the foundations of all street facing elevations as set forth in 

UDC 11-4-3-27E.2, as follows: the landscaped area shall be at least 3-feet wide and 

have an evergreen shrub with a minimum mature height of 24 inches for every 3 

linear feet of foundation. The remainder of the area shall be landscaped with ground 

cover plants. 

b. Depict landscaping along the multi-use pathways along N. Webb Way and the Jackson 

Drain in accord with the standards listed in UDC 11-3B-12C. 

c. Depict pedestrian connections between buildings in the form of pathways distinguished 

from vehicular driving surfaces through the use of pavers, colored or scored concrete, or 

bricks in accord with the Development Agreement (provision #5.1.4b). 

d. Depict pathway/sidewalk connections to the main building entrances along N. Webb Way 

from the multi-use pathway along N. Webb Way. 

e. Include mitigation information for the existing trees being removed from the site in 

accord with the standards listed in UDC 11-3B-10C.5. Coordinate with Matt Perkins, 

City Arborist, to determine mitigation requirements (208-371-1755). 

f. Depict the boundary of the minimum 20-foot wide street buffer (future common lot) 

along N. Webb Way, measured from back of curb, to ensure compliance with building 

setback requirements. 

g. Include a calculations table that demonstrates compliance with the landscape standards 

listed in UDC 11-3B-7C (street buffer/parkway), 11-3B-8C (parking lot), 11-3B-12C 

(pathway), and 11-3G-3E (common open space). 

h. Parkways planted with Class II trees shall be a minimum of 8-feet wide (Class II trees are 

preferred) as set forth in UDC 11-3A-17E. If less than 8-feet wide, root barriers shall be 

constructed. 

i. Depict all stormwater retention areas on the plan. 

104Item 3.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-27MUMIDE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-10TRPR
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-7LABUALST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-8PALOLA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-12PALA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTGCOOPSPSIAMRE_11-3G-3ST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-17SIPA


 

 
Page 26 

 
  

j. Depict 6-foot tall closed vision/solid fencing along the project’s eastern boundary. 

k. Include details for the playground equipment, BBQ’s, covered seating area(s), 

community garden and dog wash facilities. 

l. Depict landscaping within the perimeter buffer along the eastern boundary of the site as 

proposed (i.e. a minimum density of one tree per 25-linear feet). A mix of evergreen and 

deciduous trees, shrubs, lawn or other vegetative groundcover shall be provided in accord 

with the standards listed in UDC 11-3B-9C. 

3. Submit floor plans for the units with the Certificate of Zoning Compliance application that 

demonstrate compliance with the private usable open space requirements in UDC 11-4-3-

27B.3 (a minimum of 80 square feet is required for each unit). 

4. The Settler’s Canal shall be piped as proposed in accord with UDC 11-3A-6B. 

5. Submit a public pedestrian easement to the Planning Division in accord with Park’s 

Department requirements for the multi-use pathway along N. Webb Way prior to issuance of 

the first Certificate of Occupancy for the site. If the pathway is in the right-of-way, it should 

be covered under a pedestrian easement with ACHD. 

6. The development is required to record legally binding documents that state the maintenance 

and ownership responsibilities for the management of the development, including, but not 

limited to, structures, parking, common areas, and other development features as set forth in 

UDC 11-4-3-27F; submit a copy of this recorded document to the Planning Division with the 

first Certificate of Zoning Compliance application.  

7. Compliance with the qualified open space and site amenity standards listed in UDC 11-3G-3 

and 11-4-3-27 is required. Plans submitted with the Certificate of Zoning Compliance 

application shall demonstrate compliance with these standards and be consistent with those 

proposed with this application. 

8. Phases I and II shall be managed by the same company to ensure consistent maintenance of 

the overall site. 

9. Wayfinding signage and clear addressing shall be provided on buildings for emergency 

responders. Coordinate with Joe Bongiorno, Fire Dept. and Terri Ricks, Land Development. 

10. Coordinate with the Police Dept. on emergency access to the secured buildings. 

11. The subject property shall be subdivided prior to submittal of any building permit applications 

for structures on this site. 

12. All future structures shall comply with the design standards in the Architectural Standards 

Manual and in the Development Agreement. Exterior building walls should demonstrate the 

appearance of high-quality materials of stone, brick, wood, or other native materials 

(acceptable materials include tinted or textured masonry block, textured masonry block, 

textured architectural coated concrete panels, or stucco or stucco-like synthetic materials – 

smooth faced concrete block, tilt-up concrete panels, or pre-fabricated steel panels are 

prohibited except as accent materials as set forth in the Development Agreement (provision 

#5.1.4h). See notes in Section V under Building Elevations. 

13. A Certificate of Zoning Compliance (CZC) application shall be submitted and approved for the 

proposed use prior to submittal of a building permit application. An Administrative Design 

Review application shall be submitted concurrently with the CZC application. 

105Item 3.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-9LABUADUS
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=141950&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


 

 
Page 27 

 
  

B. ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT (ACHD) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223662&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity   

C. NAMPA & MERIDIAN IRRIGATION DISTRICT (NMID) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224331&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity   

D. DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (DEQ) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224004&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity   

IX. FINDINGS 

Conditional Use (UDC 11-5B-6) 

Findings: The commission shall base its determination on the conditional use permit request upon the 

following: 

1. That the site is large enough to accommodate the proposed use and meet all the dimensional and 

development regulations in the district in which the use is located. 

Staff finds the site is large enough to accommodate the proposed development and meet all 

dimensional and development regulations of the R-40 zoning district. 

2. That the proposed use will be harmonious with the Meridian comprehensive plan and in accord 

with the requirements of this title. 

Staff finds the proposed use will be harmonious with the Comprehensive Plan and is consistent 

with applicable UDC standards with the conditions noted in Section VIII of this report. 

3. That the design, construction, operation and maintenance will be compatible with other uses in 

the general neighborhood and with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and 

that such use will not adversely change the essential character of the same area. 

Staff finds the design, construction, operation and maintenance of the proposed use should be 

compatible with other uses in the general neighborhood, with the existing and intended character 

of the vicinity and will not adversely change the essential character of the area. 

4. That the proposed use, if it complies with all conditions of the approval imposed, will not 

adversely affect other property in the vicinity. 

Staff finds the proposed use will not adversely affect other properties in the vicinity if it complies 

with the conditions in Section VIII of this report. 

5. That the proposed use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services such as 

highways, streets, schools, parks, police and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, 

water, and sewer. 

Staff finds the proposed use will be served by essential public facilities and services as required. 

6. That the proposed use will not create excessive additional costs for public facilities and services 

and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

Staff finds the proposed use will not create additional costs for public facilities and services and 

will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

106Item 3.

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223662&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223662&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224331&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224331&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224004&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224004&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


 

 
Page 28 

 
  

7. That the proposed use will not involve activities or processes, materials, equipment and 

conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare by 

reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

Staff finds the proposed use will not be detrimental to any persons, property or the general 

welfare by the reasons noted above. 

8. That the proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural, scenic or 

historic feature considered to be of major importance. (Ord. 05-1170, 8-30-2005, eff. 9-15-2005) 

 Staff finds the proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of any such features. 

9.  Additional findings for the alteration or extension of a nonconforming use: 

a.  That the proposed nonconforming use does not encourage or set a precedent for additional 

nonconforming uses within the area; and, 

 This finding is not applicable. 

b.  That the proposed nonconforming use is developed to a similar or greater level of conformity 

with the development standards as set forth in this title as compared to the level of 

development of the surrounding properties. 

 ` This finding is not applicable. 

107Item 3.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Public Hearing for Artemisia Subdivision (H-2021-0014) by Engineering 
Solutions, LLP, Located at 1690 W. Overland Rd.
A. Request: Annexation of 25.67-acres of land with a C-G (General Retail and Service 

Commercial) zoning district.

B. Request: Preliminary Plat consisting of 9 commercial buildable lots on 19.26-acres of land in 

the C-G zoning district.

108Item 4.



 

PUBLIC HEARING INFORMATION  
 

Staff Contact: Sonya Allen Meeting Date: April 15, 2021 

Topic: Public Hearing for Artemisia Subdivision (H-2021-0014) by Engineering Solutions, 
LLP, Located at 1690 W. Overland Rd. 

A. Request: Annexation of 25.67-acres of land with a C-G (General Retail and 
Service Commercial) zoning district. 

B. Request: Preliminary Plat consisting of 9 commercial buildable lots on 19.26-
acres of land in the C-G zoning district. 

 

Information Resources: 

Click Here for Application Materials 

 

Click Here to Sign Up to Testify at the Planning and Zoning Commission Public Hearing 

109Item 4.

http://bit.ly/H-2021-0014
https://apps.meridiancity.org/SIGNINPZ/


 
 

 
Page 1 

 
  

HEARING 

DATE: 
April 15, 2021 

 

TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

FROM: Sonya Allen, Associate Planner 

208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: H-2021-0014 

Artemisia Subdivision – AZ, PP 

LOCATION: 1690 W. Overland Rd., in the SE ¼ of 

Section 14, T.3N., R.1W. (Parcel 

#S1214449107) 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Annexation and zoning (AZ) of 25.67-acres of land with a C-G (General Retail and Service 

Commercial) zoning district; and, Preliminary Plat (PP) consisting of 9 commercial buildable lots on 

19.26-acres of land in the proposed C-G (General Retail and Service Commercial) zoning district. 

II. SUMMARY OF REPORT 

A. Project Summary 

Description Details Page 

Acreage 25.67-acres (AZ); 19.26-acres (PP)  

Existing/Proposed Zoning RUT in Ada County/C-G  

Future Land Use Designation Mixed Employment (ME) (13.4+/- acres) & Mixed-Use 

Commercial (MUC) (5.9+/- acres) 

 

Existing Land Use(s) Single-family rural residential/agricultural   

Proposed Land Use(s) Corporate office, parts sales, service, accessory center, RV 

maintenance 

 

Lots (# and type; bldg./common) 9 buildable lots/0 common lots  

Phasing Plan (# of phases) 1 phase  

Number of Residential Units (type 

of units) 

0  

Physical Features (waterways, 

hazards, flood plain, hillside) 

The Hardin Drain runs along the northeast corner of this 

site. 

 

Neighborhood meeting date; # of 

attendees: 

8/26/20; 3 attendees & 2/4/21; no attendees  

History (previous approvals) None  

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

110Item 4.



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

B. Community Metrics 

Description Details Pg 

Ada County Highway 

District 

  

• Staff report (yes/no) Yes  

• Requires ACHD 

Commission Action 

(yes/no) 

No 

A Traffic Impact Study (TIS) was not required. 

 

Access 

(Arterial/Collectors/State 

Hwy/Local)(Existing and 

Proposed) 

One access is proposed via W. Overland Rd., a 5-lane arterial 

street along the southern boundary of the site. 

 

 

Traffic Level of Service  Better than “D” (acceptable LOS is “E”)  

Stub 

Street/Interconnectivity/Cros

s Access 

One stub street (W. Tasa St.) is proposed at the west boundary of 

the site for future extension 

 

Existing Road Network W. Overland Rd. runs along the southern boundary of the site  

Existing Arterial Sidewalks / 

Buffers 

No sidewalks exist along W. Overland Rd. adjacent to this site.  

Proposed Road 

Improvements 

 

 

Fire Service   

• Distance to Fire Station 0.1 mile  

• Fire Response Time Falls within 5:00 minute response time area - nearest station is 

Fire Station #6 – can meet response time goals 

 

• Resource Reliability 87% - does meet the target goal of 80% or greater   

• Risk Identification 4 – current resources would not be adequate to supply service 

(large building with high fire loading) 

 

• Accessibility Project meets all required access, road widths and turnaround.  

• Special/resource needs Project will require an aerial device; can meet this need in the 

required timeframe if a truck company is required. 

 

• Water Supply Requires 2,500 gallons per minute for two hours, may be less if 

buildings are fully sprinklered. 

 

• Other Resources   

 
Wastewater   

• Distance to Sewer 

Services 

Directly adjacent  

• Sewer Shed South Black Cat Trunk Shed  

• Estimated Project Sewer 

ERU’s 

See application  

• WRRF Declining 

Balance 

14.08  

• Project Consistent with 

WW Master 

Plan/Facility Plan 

Yes  

• Impacts/concerns • Flow is committed 

• See Public Works Site Specific Conditions 

 

   

   

111Item 4.



 

 
Page 3 

 
  

Water   

• Distance to Water 

Services 

Directly adjacent   

• Pressure Zone 3  

• Estimated Project Water 

ERU’s 

See application  

• Water Quality Concerns None  

• Project Consistent with 

Water Master Plan 

Yes  

• Impacts/Concerns See Public Works Site Specific Conditions  

 

C. Project Area Maps 

 

Future Land Use Map 

 

Aerial Map 

 

Zoning Map 

 

Planned Development Map 

 

112Item 4.



 

 
Page 4 

 
  

A. Applicant: 

Engineering Solutions, LLP – 1029 N. Rosario St., Ste. 100, Meridian, ID 83642 

B. Owners: 

Idaho Auto Mall, LLC – 8854 W. Emerald St., Boise, ID 83704-4830 

C. Representative: 

Becky McKay, Engineering Solutions, LLP – 1029 N. Rosario St., Ste. 100, Meridian, ID 83642 

III.  NOTICING 

 Planning & Zoning 

Posting Date 

City Council 

Posting Date 

Notification published in 

newspaper 3/26/2021   

Notification mailed to property 

owners within 300 feet 3/24/2021   

Applicant posted public hearing 

notice on site 4/3/2021   

Nextdoor posting 3/24/2021   

IV. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ANALYSIS (Comprehensive Plan) 

Land Use: The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) contained in the Comprehensive Plan designates the 

northern and western 13.4+/- acres of this site as Mixed Employment (ME) and the 5.9 acres at the 

southeast corner of the site as Mixed-Use Commercial (MUC). This site is within the area governed 

by the Ten Mile Interchange Specific Area Plan (TMISAP). 

The purpose of ME designated areas is to encourage a diversity of compatible land uses that may 

include a mixture of office, research and specialized employment areas, light industrial including 

manufacturing and assembly, and other miscellaneous uses. These areas generally do not include 

retail and consumer service uses serving the wider community. However, a small amount of retail and 

service establishments, primarily serving employees and users of the ME areas or nearby industrial 

areas, are allowed.  

ME areas should provide a variety of flexible sites for small, local or start-up businesses, as well as 

sites for large national or regional enterprises. ME areas should be designed to encourage multimodal 

travel and convenient circulation to supporting uses located within the area. Buildings are anticipated 

to range in height from 1-4 stories, have total floor areas of 10,000-1,000,000 square feet, with a FAR 

that will exceed .75. 

The purpose of MUC designated areas is to encourage the development of a mixture of office, retail, 

recreational, employment and other miscellaneous uses, with supporting multi-family or single-family 

attached residential uses. This designation requires developments to integrate the three major use 

categories – residential, commercial and employment. Traditional neighborhood design concepts with 

a strong pedestrian-oriented focus are essential. Development within these areas exhibit quality 

building and site design and an attractive pedestrian environment with a strong street character.  

The northern portion of the site, designated ME, is proposed to develop first with two (2) single-story 

structures with a combined square footage of 92,307 for Kendall Ford Auto Center, a regional 

company; proposed uses include vehicle sales and service and retail sale of vehicle accessories. A 

113Item 4.

https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan
https://meridiancity.org/planning/files/10mile-191217-Full.pdf


 

 
Page 5 

 
  

variety of lot sizes are proposed on the MUC designated southern portion of the site for future retail 

and office uses adjacent to W. Overland Rd.  

Staff believes the proposed uses are generally consistent with the associated ME and MUC FLUM 

designations and will contribute to the variety of uses already in this area and with future uses. 

Existing uses consist of single-family and multi-family residential uses to the south and southwest, 

which provide the residential component of the mixed-use area although not an integrated part of the 

development; office to the south; recreational vehicle sales, retail parts/accessories sales and service 

to the east; and future mixed employment uses to the west. Future development along Overland 

Rd. and internal local streets should incorporate street-oriented design consistent with the 

TMISAP for commercial developments. 

Transportation: The Transportation System Map in the TMISAP depicts arterial streets along the 

south and east boundaries of the site – Overland Rd. exists along the south boundary as a 5-lane 

roadway and Linder Rd. is listed in the IFYWP to be constructed as a 5-lane roadway and a 4-lane 

overpass in the future along the east boundary of the site. A local street is depicted through the 

western portion of this site from Overland Rd. to the west boundary of this site consistent with that 

shown on the proposed preliminary plat. 

Mixed-Use Commercial areas must include an integrated system of sidewalks, walkways and 

pathways that provide access to all structures and spaces within a development. Sidewalks should not 

be located immediately adjacent to the curb – they should be separated from the curb by a minimum 

4-foot wide planting strip planted with street trees and other landscaping. A loop pathway is proposed 

on the landscape plan around the perimeter of this site as an amenity for employees and the public. 

Street furnishings such as seating, newspaper racks, bollards, trash receptacles, bicycle racks and 

other elements important to the functioning of an effective pedestrian environment should be 

provided as set forth in the TMISAP (Street Furniture, pgs. 3-28 – 3-29). 

Exterior lighting should be used to provide illumination for the security and safety of entry drives, 

parking, service and loading areas, pathways, courtyards and plazas, without intruding on adjacent 

properties. Site lighting should be architecturally compatible and consistent in design between sites. 

(See TMISAP, Lighting, pg. 3-30). 

Design: In commercial developments, building orientation and setbacks should be close to the street 

with the main entrance of buildings oriented to the street (Street-Oriented Design, pg. 3-33).  

For all new commercial and mixed-use buildings, a continuous unbroken frontage along required 

build-to lines to a minimum height of 30-feet should be constructed for at least 75% of the property 

frontage. Adjustments to this requirement may be allowed, such as modest setbacks to accommodate 

additional sidewalk space for café seating, or breaks in frontage for the creation of pocket parks. New 

Buildings at street intersections should “hold the corners” and avoid introducing additional building 

setbacks unless a new public space is specified. At least 40% of the linear dimension of the street 

level frontages shall be in windows or doorways; street level windows shall be clear or tinted visually 

permeable glass (mirrored or reflective glass is prohibited). Window sills shall be located no higher 

than 3’6” above adjacent exterior grade; headers shall be located no lower than 8’0” above adjacent 

exterior grade. No wall frontage shall continue uninterrupted by a window or a functional public 

access doorway for a linear distance of greater than 12’. The principal doorway for public entry into a 

building shall be from the fronting street. Corner entrances may be provided on corner lot buildings 

(Commercial and Mixed-Use Buildings, pg. 3-33). No parking should be placed between a building 

and the fronting primary or secondary street (Commercial Activity Centers, pg. 3-37). 

The space between a building façade and the adjacent sidewalk or walkway should be appropriately 

landscaped with a combination of lawn, groundcover, shrubs and appropriate trees (Building Facades, 

pg. 3-38). 

114Item 4.



 

 
Page 6 

 
  

Low-rise buildings of 2-4 stories over much of the area is desired (Building Heights, pg. 3-38).  

Buildings should be designed with clearly delineated bases, bodies and tops (Base, Body and Top, pg. 

3-39). 

Comply with the general recommendations for Activity Centers noted on pg. 3-40.  

Awnings shall be provided on building facades for climate protection for pedestrians and shall extend 

a minimum of 5-feet from the façade of the fronting structure – 8-feet is preferable in wider 

pedestrian environments (Awnings, pg. 3-45). 

Signs should be designed to contribute to the overall character, identity and way finding system. The 

colors, materials, sizes, shapes and lighting of signs should be compatible with the architecture of the 

buildings and the businesses they identify (Signs, pg. 3-46). 

High quality public art should be incorporated into the design of streetscapes, public buildings, parks, 

transit, infrastructure, and other public projects (Public Art, pg. 3-47). The Applicant proposes a focal 

point at the northwest corner of Linder & Overland Roads with a sculpture and masonry signage (see 

detail on Sheet L1.40 of the landscape plan in Section VII.C). 

Open civic spaces should be provided in commercial activity centers/mixed use environments and 

should be located adjacent to an accessible from at least one primary street (3-48). Linear open space 

with a pedestrian walkway is proposed around the perimeter of the development; additional 

common/gathering area(s) should be provided within the commercial/office portion of the 

development. 

Comprehensive Plan Policies: The following Comprehensive Plan Policies are applicable to this 

development: 

• “Permit new development only where it can be adequately served by critical public facilities 

and urban services at the time of final approval, and in accord with any adopted levels of 

service for public facilities and services.” (3.03.03F) 

 City water and sewer service is available and can be extended by the developer with 

development in accord with UDC 11-3A-21.   

• “Encourage compatible uses and site design to minimize conflicts and maximize use of land.” 

(3.07.00) 

 The proposed uses should be compatible with similar uses (Camping World & Bish’s RV) and 

zoning (I-L) to the east, future mixed employment uses to the west, and multi-family 

residential, office and future commercial uses to the south across Overland Rd. 

• “Encourage and support mixed-use areas that provide the benefits of being able to live, shop, 

dine, play, and work in close proximity, thereby reducing vehicle trips, and enhancing overall 

livability and sustainability.” (3.06.02B) 

The anticipated retail uses should provide shopping opportunities for area residents and 

employees of the proposed auto center and offices. The proposed auto center will provide 

jobs within close proximity of single-family and multi-family residential uses to the south 

across Overland Rd. 

• “Encourage the development of supportive commercial near employment areas.” (3.06.02C) 

The proposed retail uses should provide supportive uses for the auto center and office uses. 

• “Require pedestrian circulation plans to ensure safety and convenient access across large 

115Item 4.



 

 
Page 7 

 
  

commercial and mixed-use developments.” (3.07.02A) 

The landscape plan depicts a pedestrian walkway within the landscape buffers around the 

perimeter of the development and sidewalks along internal public streets. Additional internal 

pedestrian walkways should be provided between buildings within the site for pedestrian 

connectivity and from the perimeter sidewalks along Overland and Linder Roads to the 

main building entrances. 

• “Ensure development is connected to City of Meridian water and sanitary sewer systems and 

the extension to and through said developments are constructed in conformance with the City 

of Meridian Water and Sewer System Master Plans in effect at the time of development.” 

(3.03.03A) 

 The proposed development will connect to City water and sewer systems; services are 

required to be provided to and though this development in accord with current City plans. 

• “Permit new development only where it can be adequately served by critical public facilities 

and urban services at the time of final approval, and in accord with any adopted levels of 

service for public facilities and services.” (3.03.03F) 

 City water and sewer services are available to this site and can be extended by the developer 

with development in accord with UDC 11-3A-21. The emergency response times for Police 

Dept. and Fire Dept. meets the established goals.  

• “Require appropriate landscaping, buffers, and noise mitigation with new development along 

transportation corridors (setback, vegetation, low walls, berms, etc.).” (3.07.01C) 

 A 50-foot wide landscaped street buffer is required to be provided along the northern 

boundary of the site adjacent to I-84. The structures on Lot 1, Block 1 are proposed to be 

setback 315’+ from I-84. 

• “Require urban infrastructure be provided for all new developments, including curb and 

gutter, sidewalks, water and sewer utilities.” (3.03.03G) 

 Urban sewer and water infrastructure and curb, gutter and sidewalks are proposed as 

required with this development. 

In summary, Staff believes the proposed development plan is generally consistent with the vision 

of the Comprehensive Plan for this area per the analysis above. 

V. UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE ANALYSIS (UDC) 

A. Annexation: 

The proposed annexation is for 25.67-acres of land with a C-G (General Retail and Service 

Commercial) zoning district, which includes the ITD storm drainage area at the northeast corner 

of the site and the right-of-way to the section/center line of adjacent streets. The proposed C-G 

zoning is consistent with the associated ME and MUC FLUM designations as is the proposed 

uses. 

The proposed use of the property will include sales and service for commercial fleet operations 

for large commercial trucks and motorhomes; vehicle accessory sales; an installation facility for 

customizing vehicles; parts department; and reconditioning facility for used cars for Kendall Ford 

Auto Center. The Applicant anticipates the future uses on the six (6) lots located along W. 

Overland Rd. and adjacent to S. Spanish Sun Way to be retail and office space.  

Vehicle sales and service, minor vehicle repair, retail sales, and professional services (i.e. offices) 

are all listed as principal permitted uses in the C-G zoning district per UDC Table 11-2B-2, 

116Item 4.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH2DIRE_ARTBCODI_11-2B-2ALUS


 

 
Page 8 

 
  

subject to the specific use standards in UDC 11-4-3 as applicable. Note: Major vehicle repair is 

prohibited in the C-G zoning district. 

The property is contiguous to City annexed land and is within the City’s Area of City Impact 

boundary. A legal description and exhibit map of the overall annexation area is included in 

Section VIII.A.  

The City may require a development agreement (DA) in conjunction with an annexation pursuant 

to Idaho Code section 67-6511A. To ensure future development is consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and with the development plan proposed with this application, Staff 

recommends a DA is required with this application, containing the provisions noted in Section 

VIII.A, as discussed herein.  

B. Preliminary Plat:  

The proposed plat consists of 9 commercial buildable lots on 19.26-acres of land in the proposed 

C-G zoning district. Lots range in size from 22,305 square feet (s.f.) (0.51-acre) to 422,643 s.f. 

(9.7-acres) with an average lot size of 87,625 s.f. (2.01-acres). The subdivision is proposed to 

develop in one (1) phase. Note: The portion of the annexation area at the northeast corner of the 

site that is the ITD storm drainage area is not included in the proposed plat as it’s been 

dedicated as right-of-way. 

The Applicant requests approval to obtain building permits and develop the Kendall Auto site on 

Lot 1, Block 1, prior to recordation of the final plat. Staff is amenable to this request as the 

subject parcel is considered a legal parcel eligible for development; however, prior to issuance of 

building permits for any other lots within the subdivision, the final plat should be recorded. 

Existing Structures/Site Improvements: 

There are no existing structures on this site; the previous home and accessory structures have 

been removed.  

Proposed Use Analysis:  

A variety of uses are proposed on lots in the subdivision including vehicle sales and service and 

retail sale of vehicle accessories; retail; and office uses.  

Vehicle sales and service is listed as a principal permitted use in the C-G district and is subject to 

the specific use standards listed in UDC 11-4-3-38. Retail sales and professional services (i.e. 

offices) are also listed as a principal permitted use in the C-G district. Other uses are allowed as 

noted in the Allowed Uses in the Commercial Districts Table 11-2B-2. 

Dimensional Standards: 

Development of the proposed lots is required to comply with the dimensional standards of the C-

G zoning district in UDC Table 11-2B-3.  

Subdivision Design and Improvement Standards (UDC 11-6C-3):  

Development of the subdivision is required to comply with the subdivision design and 

improvement standards listed in UDC 11-6C-3. 

Access (UDC 11-3A-3) 

One (1) public street access (S. Spanish Sun Way) is proposed via W. Overland Rd. in alignment 

with that to the south. Direct lot access via W. Overland Rd. and S. Linder Rd. is prohibited.  

One (1) stub street (W. Tasa St.) is proposed to the west boundary for future extension in accord 

with the Transportation System Map in the TMISAP. A temporary cul-de-sac is required to be 

constructed at the terminus of Tasa St. until the street is extended in the future.  

117Item 4.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-38VESARESE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH2DIRE_ARTBCODI_11-2B-2ALUS
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH2DIRE_ARTBCODI_11-2B-3ST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH6SURE_ARTCSUDEIMST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-3ACST


 

 
Page 9 

 
  

Cross-access/ingress-egress easements are required to be granted between all lots in the 

subdivision in accord with UDC 11-3A-3A.2. 

Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)/Integrated Five Year Work Plan (IFYWP): Per the ACHD 

report, Linder Rd. is scheduled in the IFYWP to be constructed as a new 4-lane I-84 overpass and 

widened to 5-lanes on each side of I-84 with a level 3 bike facility from Franklin Rd. to Overland 

Rd. in the future. The intersection of Overland Rd. and Linder Rd. is listed in the CIP to be 

widened to 6-lanes on the north and south legs and 7-lanes on the east west legs and signalized 

between 2036 and 2040. 

A future traffic signal is planned in the CIP at the Linder/Overland Rd. intersection and scheduled 

for 2031-2035 but may be accelerated if the Linder Rd. overpass becomes a priority. For this 

reason, and because Overland Rd. is fully built-out, a Traffic Impact Study (TIS) was not required 

by ACHD with this application. 

Parking (UDC 11-3C): 

Off-street parking is required to be provided in accord with the standards listed in UDC 11-3C-

6B.1 for non-residential uses in commercial districts. Parking stalls and drive-aisles should 

comply with the dimensions in UDC Table 11-3C-5. 

Pathways (UDC 11-3A-8): 

A 10’ wide detached multi-use pathway is proposed as required within the street buffer along S. 

Linder Rd. in accord with the Pathways Master Plan. The pathway should be placed in a 14-

foot wide public use easement, which shall be submitted to the Planning Division prior to 

submittal for City Engineer signature on the final plat(s). If the pathway will be located 

entirely within the right-of-way, a public pedestrian easement is not needed.   

Sidewalks (UDC 11-3A-17): 

Sidewalks are required to be provided adjacent to all streets as set forth in UDC 11-3A-17; 

detached sidewalks/pathway are required along W. Overland Rd. and S. Linder Rd., both arterial 

streets. and per the guidelines in the TMISAP.  

In accord with the TMISAP and UDC 11-3A-17E, Staff recommends minimum 5-foot wide 

detached sidewalks are provided along all streets within the development. 

Sidewalks/pathways should include dedicated crosswalks at the intersection with all streets 

within commercial activity centers and should be distinguished from surrounding paving as 

set forth in the TMISAP (Crosswalks, pg. 3-28). 

Parkways (UDC 11-3A-17): 

Parkways are recommended along all streets within the development in accord with the 

TMISAP, planted with street trees and landscaping per the standards in UDC 11-3B-7C. 

The minimum width of parkways planted with Class II trees is 8-feet; the minimum with of 

parkway planters for Class I and III trees is 10-feet. Planter widths for Class II trees may be 

reduced to 6-feet if root barriers are installed per the standards listed in UDC 11-3A-17E.  

Landscaping (UDC 11-3B): 

A 50-foot wide street buffer is required adjacent to I-84; 25-foot wide buffers are required along 

W. Overland Rd. and S. Linder Rd., arterial streets; and a 10-foot wide buffers are required along 

S. Spanish Sun Way and W. Tasa St., local streets, per UDC Table 11-2B-3, landscaped per the 

standards listed in UDC 11-3B-7C. Street buffers with detached sidewalks are measured from 

back of curb. All street buffers are required to be maintained by the property owner or business 

owners’ association per UDC 11-3B-7C.2b. 

118Item 4.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-3ACST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-6RENUOREPASP
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-6RENUOREPASP
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-6RENUOREPASP
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-5PASTALOTUSNOSP
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-8PA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-17SIPA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-17SIPA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-17SIPA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CD_TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH2DIRE_ARTBCODI_11-2B-3ST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-7LABUALST


 

 
Page 10 

 
  

If residential uses abut any of the lots at the time of lot development, a minimum 25-foot wide 

street buffer shall be provided, landscaped per the standards in UDC 11-3B-9C. A residential use 

currently exists on the abutting property to the west. 

Landscaping is required adjacent to the pathway along S. Linder Rd. per the standards in UDC 

11-3B-12C. A 5’ wide landscape strip is required on both sides of the pathway planted with a mix 

of trees, shrubs, lawn and/or other vegetative ground cover.  

Landscaping is required within parkways per the standards listed in UDC 11-3A-17 and 11-3B-

7C.  

There were existing trees on this site around the home that have been removed – the Applicant 

states these trees were diseased and trash trees that did not require mitigation. If any other trees 

exist on the site, mitigation may be required per the standards listed in UDC 11-3B-10C.5. 

Contact the City Arborist, Matt Perkins, prior to removing any additional trees from the 

site to determine mitigation requirements.  

Storm Drainage: 

An adequate storm drainage system is required in all developments in accord with the City’s 

adopted standards, specifications and ordinances. Design and construction is required to follow 

Best Management Practices as adopted by the City. The Applicant submitted a Geotechnical 

Engineering Report for the subdivision. 

The preliminary plat depicts an existing ITD storm drainage facility at the northeast corner of the 

site that is proposed to remain.  

Pressure Irrigation (UDC 11-3A-15): 

Underground pressurized irrigation water is required to be provided for each and every lot in the 

subdivision as required in UDC 11-3A-15. This property lies within the boundary of Nampa-

Meridian Irrigation District; water delivery is from the Kennedy Lateral which is piped along 

Overland Rd. The Applicant proposes to install a pressure irrigation system along with a pump 

station adjacent to W. Overland Rd. 

Utilities (UDC 11-3A-21): 

Utilities are required to be provided to the subdivision as required in UDC 11-3A-21. An existing 

12-inch water main is located within Overland Rd. with a second 12-inch water main within the 

Linder Rd. right-of-way. An existing 30-inch sewer main line is located within Overland Rd. 

Waterways (UDC 11-3A-6): 

The Hardin Drain is a large open waterway that lies within a 40-foot wide easement across the 

northeast corner of the site that is proposed to be piped with a 36-inch reinforced concrete pipe in 

accord with UDC 11-3A-6B.3. This project is not within the flood plain. 

Fencing (UDC 11-3A-6 and 11-3A-7): 

All fencing is required to comply with the standards listed in UDC 11-3A-7. A 6-foot tall chain-

link fence exists around the ITD storm drainage facility which is proposed to remain. No fencing 

is depicted on the plan around the Kendall Ford; Staff recommends if fencing is proposed 

for security that it be of a higher quality than chain-link (i.e. wrought iron) – the Applicant 

should clarify at the hearing if fencing will be proposed and if so, what type of fencing is 

proposed. 

Building Elevations (UDC 11-3A-19 | Architectural Standards Manual): 

Conceptual building elevations were submitted for the Kendall Ford site as shown in Section 

VII.D. Two (2) single-story structures are proposed on Lot 1, Block 1 with building materials 

consisting of ACM panels (i.e. aluminum composite), corrugated horizontal metal panels, CMU 

in two (2) different colors; metal sunscreens and canopies are proposed over some windows. 

119Item 4.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-12PALA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-17SIPA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-7LABUALST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-7LABUALST
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223914&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223914&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-15PRIRSY
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-21UT
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CD_TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-6DILACADRCO
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CD_TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-6DILACADRCO
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CD_TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-7FE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CD_TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-19STSIDEST
https://meridiancity.org/planning/current/architectural-standards


 

 
Page 11 

 
  

Overhead doors are proposed on the north, east and west sides of the building. Final design must 

comply with the design guidelines in the TMISAP and the design standards in the 

Architectural Standards Manual.  

VI. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the requested annexation with the requirement of a development 

agreement and preliminary plat per the provisions noted in Section VIII, per the Findings in 

Section IX. 

120Item 4.



 

 
Page 12 

 
  

VII. EXHIBITS  

A. Annexation Legal Description & Exhibit Map 

 

 

121Item 4.



 

 
Page 13 

 
  

 

122Item 4.



 

 
Page 14 

 
  

B. Preliminary Plat & Phasing Plan (date: 1/27/2021) 

 

  

123Item 4.



 

 
Page 15 

 
  

C. Landscape Plan (date: 3/1/2021) 

 

 

124Item 4.



 

 
Page 16 

 
  

 

 

125Item 4.



 

 
Page 17 

 
  

 

 

126Item 4.



 

 
Page 18 

 
  

D. Conceptual Building Elevations (dated: 2/2/2021) 

    

 

 

127Item 4.



 

 
Page 19 

 
  

 

 

 

128Item 4.



 

 
Page 20 

 
  

 

 

 

129Item 4.



 

 
Page 21 

 
  

       

  

130Item 4.



 

 
Page 22 

 
  

VIII. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

A. PLANNING DIVISION 

1. A Development Agreement (DA) is required as a provision of annexation of this property. 

Prior to approval of the annexation ordinance, a DA shall be entered into between the City of 

Meridian and the property owner(s) at the time of annexation ordinance adoption.   

Currently, a fee of $303.00 shall be paid by the Applicant to the Planning Division prior to 

commencement of the DA. The DA shall be signed by the property owner and returned to the 

Planning Division within six (6) months of the City Council granting the annexation. The DA 

shall, at minimum, incorporate the following provisions:  

a. Development of the subject property shall be generally consistent with the preliminary 

plat, landscape plan and conceptual building elevations submitted with the annexation 

application contained herein. 

b. Prior to development of the commercial/office portion of the development, the 

development agreement shall be amended to include a conceptual development plan that 

demonstrates consistency with the land use, transportation and design elements of the 

Ten Mile Interchange Specific Area Plan (TMISAP), including but not limited to the 

following:  

(1) Provide minimum 6-foot wide parkways/planting strips and detached minimum 5-

foot wide sidewalks along all streets within the development (Pedestrian & Bicycle 

System, pg. 3-27). The minimum width of parkways planted with Class II trees is 8-

feet; the minimum with of parkway planters for Class I and III trees is 10-feet. 

Planter widths for Class II trees may be reduced to 6-feet if root barriers are 

installed per the standards listed in UDC 11-3A-17E. 

(2) Sidewalks/pathways shall include dedicated crosswalks at the intersection with all 

streets within commercial activity centers and shall be distinguished from 

surrounding paving (Crosswalks, pg. 3-28).  

(3) Street furnishings such as seating, newspaper racks, bollards, trash receptacles, 

bicycle racks and other elements important to the functioning of an effective 

pedestrian environment shall be provided (Street Furniture, pgs. 3-28 – 3-29). 

(4)  Exterior lighting should be used to provide illumination for the security and safety of 

entry drives, parking, service and loading areas, pathways, courtyards and plazas, 

without intruding on adjacent properties. Site lighting should be architecturally 

compatible and consistent in design between sites. (Lighting, pg. 3-30). 

(5) Future development along Overland Rd. and internal local streets should incorporate 

street-oriented design consistent with the TMISAP for commercial developments. 

(6) Building orientation and setbacks should be close to the street with the main entrance 

of buildings oriented to the street (Street-Oriented Design, pg. 3-33).  

(7) A continuous unbroken frontage along required build-to lines to a minimum height of 

30-feet should be constructed for at least 75% of the property frontage. Adjustments 

to this requirement may be allowed, such as modest setbacks to accommodate 

additional sidewalk space for café seating, or breaks in frontage for the creation of 

pocket parks.  

 New Buildings at street intersections should “hold the corners” and avoid introducing 

additional building setbacks unless a new public space is specified.  

131Item 4.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-17SIPA


 

 
Page 23 

 
  

 At least 40% of the linear dimension of the street level frontages shall be in windows 

or doorways; street level windows shall be clear or tinted visually permeable glass 

(mirrored or reflective glass is prohibited). Window sills shall be located no higher 

than 3’6” above adjacent exterior grade; headers shall be located no lower than 8’0” 

above adjacent exterior grade. No wall frontage shall continue uninterrupted by a 

window or a functional public access doorway for a linear distance of greater than 

12’.  

 The principal doorway for public entry into a building shall be from the fronting 

street. Corner entrances may be provided on corner lot buildings (Commercial and 

Mixed-Use Buildings, pg. 3-33). No parking should be placed between a building and 

the fronting primary or secondary street (Commercial Activity Centers, pg. 3-37). 

(8) The space between a building façade and the adjacent sidewalk or walkway should be 

appropriately landscaped with a combination of lawn, groundcover, shrubs and 

appropriate trees (Building Facades, pg. 3-38). 

(9) Low-rise buildings of 2-4 stories over much of the area is desired (Building Heights, 

pg. 3-38). 

(10) Buildings should be designed with clearly delineated bases, bodies and tops (Base, 

Body and Top, pg. 3-39). 

(11) Comply with the general recommendations for Activity Centers noted on pg. 3-40.  

(12) Awnings shall be provided on building facades for climate protection for pedestrians 

and shall extend a minimum of 5-feet from the façade of the fronting structure – 8-

feet is preferable in wider pedestrian environments (Awnings, pg. 3-45). 

(13) Signs should be designed to contribute to the overall character, identity and way 

finding system. The colors, materials, sizes, shapes and lighting of signs should be 

compatible with the architecture of the buildings and the businesses they identify 

(Signs, pg. 3-46). 

(14) High quality public art should be incorporated into the design of streetscapes, public 

buildings, parks, transit, infrastructure, and other public projects (Public Art, pg. 3-

47). 

(15) Open civic spaces should be provided in commercial activity centers/mixed use 

environments and should be located adjacent to an accessible from at least one 

primary street (3-48). 

c. Minimum 5-foot wide pedestrian walkways shall be provided from the perimeter 

sidewalks along Overland and Linder Roads to the main building entrances in accord 

with UDC 11-3A-19B.4a. 

d. Internal pedestrian walkways shall be provided between buildings within the site for 

pedestrian connectivity. Internal walkways shall be distinguished from the vehicular 

driving surfaces through the use of pavers, colored or scored concrete, or bricks in accord 

with UDC 11-3A-19B.4b.  

e. All future structures constructed on this site shall comply with the design guidelines in 

the TMISAP and the design standards in the Architectural Standards Manual. 

f. The final plat shall be recorded prior to issuance of building permits for any structures 

beyond those on the Kendall Ford site (i.e. Lot 1, Block 1). The Kendall Ford site is 

allowed to develop and obtain building permits prior to recordation of the plat. 

132Item 4.



 

 
Page 24 

 
  

g. Compliance with the specific use standards listed in UDC 11-4-3-38: Vehicle Sales or 

Rental and Service is required. 

h. If fencing is proposed for security around the Kendall Ford site, it shall be of a higher 

quality than chain-link (i.e. wrought iron). 

2. The final plat shall include the following revisions: 

a. Include a note prohibiting direct lot access via W. Overland Rd. and S. Linder Rd. 

b. Include a note granting cross-access/ingress-egress easements between all lots in the 

subdivision in accord with UDC 11-3A-3A.2. 

3. The landscape plan submitted with the final plat shall be revised as follows:  

a. Include a calculations table on the plan that demonstrate compliance with the standards 

for street buffer (11-3B-7C), pathway (11-3B-12C) and parkway (11-3B-7C) landscaping; 

include required vs. provided number of trees. 

b. Include mitigation information for any existing trees that are removed from the site in 

accord with the standards listed in UDC 11-3B-10C.5. Contact the City Arborist, Matt 

Perkins, prior to removing any trees from the site to determine mitigation requirements. 

 4. Future development shall be consistent with the minimum dimensional standards listed in 

UDC Table 11-2B-3 for the C-G zoning district.  

 5. All waterways on this site shall be piped as set forth in UDC 11-3A-6B unless otherwise 

waived by City Council.  

 6. A 14-foot wide public use easement for the multi-use pathway along S. Linder Rd. shall be 

submitted to the Planning Division prior to submittal for City Engineer signature on the final 

plat(s). If the pathway will be located entirely within the right-of-way, a public pedestrian 

easement is not needed.   

 

B. PUBLIC WORKS 

1. Site Specific Conditions of Approval  

1.1 This project has been granted permission to sewer the northern portion of the property outside 

of its designated sewer shed. 

1.1.2 The applicant shall provide a deposit for the future construction of an 8-inch sewer main 

along the North portion of property. The deposit shall be 125% of the construction bid. The 

deposit must be provided to the City prior to signature of the final plat.  

1.1.3 The applicant shall provide a sewer utility easement for the future construction of an 8-inch 

sewer main along the North portion of the property. The easement shall be 20-foot-wide and 

free from any permanent structure including buildings, fences, trees, bushes, etc. There must 

also be a point of access provided for future access to the main.  

1.1.4 Provide a valve to the North and West side of the water tee located in the future Linder Road 

overpass.  

 2. General Conditions of Approval  

2.1 Applicant shall coordinate water and sewer main size and routing with the Public Works 

Department, and execute standard forms of easements for any mains that are required to 

provide service outside of a public right-of-way.  Minimum cover over sewer mains is three 

133Item 4.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-38VESARESE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-3ACST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-7LABUALST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-12PALA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-7LABUALST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH2DIRE_ARTBCODI_11-2B-3ST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-6DILACADRCO


 

 
Page 25 

 
  

feet, if cover from top of pipe to sub-grade is less than three feet than alternate materials shall 

be used in conformance of City of Meridian Public Works Departments Standard 

Specifications. 

2.2 Per Meridian City Code (MCC), the applicant shall be responsible to install sewer and water 

mains to and through this development.  Applicant may be eligible for a reimbursement 

agreement for infrastructure enhancement per MCC 8-6-5.  

2.3 The applicant shall provide easement(s) for all public water/sewer mains outside of public 

right of way (include all water services and hydrants).  The easement widths shall be 20-feet 

wide for a single utility, or 30-feet wide for two.  The easements shall not be dedicated via 

the plat, but rather dedicated outside the plat process using the City of Meridian’s standard 

forms. The easement shall be graphically depicted on the plat for reference purposes. Submit 

an executed easement (on the form available from Public Works), a legal description 

prepared by an Idaho Licensed Professional Land Surveyor, which must include the area of 

the easement (marked EXHIBIT A) and an 81/2” x 11” map with bearings and distances 

(marked EXHIBIT B) for review. Both exhibits must be sealed, signed and dated by a 

Professional Land Surveyor. DO NOT RECORD.  Add a note to the plat referencing this 

document.  All easements must be submitted, reviewed, and approved prior to development 

plan approval.  

2.4 The City of Meridian requires that pressurized irrigation systems be supplied by a year-round 

source of water (MCC 12-13-8.3). The applicant should be required to use any existing 

surface or well water for the primary source.  If a surface or well source is not available, a 

single-point connection to the culinary water system shall be required. If a single-point 

connection is utilized, the developer will be responsible for the payment of assessments for 

the common areas prior to prior to receiving development plan approval.  

2.5 All existing structures that are required to be removed shall be prior to signature on the final 

plat by the City Engineer.  Any structures that are allowed to remain shall be subject to 

evaluation and possible reassignment of street addressing to be in compliance with MCC. 

2.6 All irrigation ditches, canals, laterals, or drains, exclusive of natural waterways, intersecting, 

crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall be addressed 

per UDC 11-3A-6.  In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with Idaho Code 42-

1207 and any other applicable law or regulation. 

2.7 Any wells that will not continue to be used must be properly abandoned according to Idaho 

Well Construction Standards Rules administered by the Idaho Department of Water 

Resources.  The Developer’s Engineer shall provide a statement addressing whether there are 

any existing wells in the development, and if so, how they will continue to be used, or 

provide record of their abandonment.   

2.8 Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City 

Ordinance Section 9-1-4 and 9 4 8.  Contact Central District Health for abandonment 

procedures and inspections (208)375-5211.  

2.9 Street signs are to be in place, sanitary sewer and water system shall be approved and 

activated, road base approved by the Ada County Highway District and the Final Plat for this 

subdivision shall be recorded, prior to applying for building permits. 

2.10 A letter of credit or cash surety in the amount of 110% will be required for all uncompleted 

fencing, landscaping, amenities, etc., prior to signature on the final plat. 

2.11 All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to 

occupancy of the structures. Where approved by the City Engineer, an owner may post a 

134Item 4.



 

 
Page 26 

 
  

performance surety for such improvements in order to obtain City Engineer signature on the 

final plat as set forth in UDC 11-5C-3B. 

2.12 Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review, and construction 

inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the issuance of a plan 

approval letter.  

2.13 It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features comply 

with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act. 

2.14 Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404 

Permitting that may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers. 

2.15 Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office. 

2.16 All grading of the site shall be performed in conformance with MCC 11-12-3H. 

2.17 Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all 

building pads receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material. 

2.18 The design engineer shall be required to certify that the street centerline elevations are set a 

minimum of 3-feet above the highest established peak groundwater elevation.  This is to 

ensure that the bottom elevation of the crawl spaces of homes is at least 1-foot above. 

2.19 The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/or    

drainage facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation 

district or ACHD. The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have been 

installed in accordance with the approved design plans. This certification will be required 

before a certificate of occupancy is issued for any structures within the project.  

2.20 At the completion of the project, the applicant shall be responsible to submit record drawings 

per the City of Meridian AutoCAD standards.  These record drawings must be received and 

approved prior to the issuance of a certification of occupancy for any structures within the 

project.  

2.21 A street light plan will need to be included in the civil construction plans. Street light plan 

requirements are listed in section 6-5 of the Improvement Standards for Street Lighting. A 

copy of the standards can be found at 

http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272. 

2.22 The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a performance surety in the 

amount of 125% of the total construction cost for all incomplete sewer, water and reuse 

infrastructure prior to final plat signature. This surety will be verified by a line item cost 

estimate provided by the owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an 

irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, 

which can be found on the Community Development Department website.  Please contact 

Land Development Service for more information at 887-2211. 

2.23 The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a warranty surety in the amount 

of 20% of the total construction cost for all completed sewer, water and reuse infrastructure 

for duration of two years. This surety will be verified by a line item cost estimate provided by 

the owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit, 

cash deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be found on the 

Community Development Department website.  Please contact Land Development Service 

for more information at 887-2211. 

 

C.  FIRE DEPARTMENT 

135Item 4.



 

 
Page 27 

 
  

 https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224777&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity  

D. CENTRAL DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=225351&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity   

E. DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (DEQ) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=225372&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity   

F. NAMPA & MERIDIAN IRRIGATION DISTRICT (NMID) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226077&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity   

G. ADA COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224816&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity   

H. ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT (ACHD)  

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=225900&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity   

IX. FINDINGS 

A. Annexation and/or Rezone (UDC 11-5B-3E) 

Required Findings: Upon recommendation from the commission, the council shall make a full 

investigation and shall, at the public hearing, review the application. In order to grant an 

annexation and/or rezone, the council shall make the following findings: 

1. The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the comprehensive plan; 

Staff finds the proposed zoning map amendment to C-G and subsequent development is 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

2. The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed district, 

specifically the purpose statement; 

Staff finds the proposed map amendment will allow for the development of a mix of 

commercial/office uses which will provide for the retail and service needs of the community 

consistent with the purpose statement of the commercial districts in accord with the 

Comprehensive Plan. 

3. The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and 

welfare; 

Staff finds the proposed zoning map amendment should not be detrimental to the public 

health, safety and welfare. 

4. The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services by 

any political subdivision providing public services within the city including, but not limited 

to, school districts; and 

136Item 4.

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224777&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224777&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=225351&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=225351&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=225372&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=225372&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226077&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226077&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224816&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224816&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=225900&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=225900&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


 

 
Page 28 

 
  

Staff finds the proposed zoning map amendment will not result in an adverse impact on the 

delivery of services by any political subdivision providing public services within the City. 

5. The annexation (as applicable) is in the best interest of city. 

Staff finds the proposed annexation is in the best interest of the City. 

 

B.  Preliminary Plat Findings:  

In consideration of a preliminary plat, combined preliminary and final plat, or short plat, the 

decision-making body shall make the following findings: 

1. The plat is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan; 

Staff finds that the proposed plat is in substantial compliance with the adopted Comprehensive 

Plan in regard to land use and transportation. (Please see Comprehensive Plan Policies in, 

Section V of this report for more information.) 

2. Public services are available or can be made available and are adequate to accommodate the 

proposed development; 

Staff finds that public services will be provided to the subject property with development. (See 

Exhibit B of the Staff Report for more details from public service providers.) 

3. The plat is in conformance with scheduled public improvements in accord with the City’s 

capital improvement program;  

 Because City water and sewer and any other utilities will be provided by the development at 

their own cost, Staff finds that the subdivision will not require the expenditure of capital 

improvement funds. 

4. There is public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed development; 

 Staff finds there is public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed 

development based upon comments from the public service providers (i.e., Police, Fire, ACHD, 

etc.). (See Section VIII for more information.)   

5. The development will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare; and, 

Staff is not aware of any health, safety, or environmental problems associated with the platting 

of this property.  ACHD considers road safety issues in their analysis.   

6. The development preserves significant natural, scenic or historic features. 

Staff is unaware of any significant natural, scenic or historic features that exist on this site that 

require preserving.  

137Item 4.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Public Hearing for Roberts Annexation (H-2021-0013) by Rodney Evans + 
Partners, PLLC, Located at 1630 E. Paradise Ln.
A. Request: Annexation of 2.15 acres of land with the R-2 zoning district.

138Item 5.



 

PUBLIC HEARING INFORMATION  
 

Staff Contact: Alan Tiefenbach Meeting Date: April 15, 2021 

Topic: Public Hearing for Roberts Annexation (H-2021-0013) by Rodney Evans + 
Partners, PLLC, Located at 1630 E. Paradise Ln. 

A. Request: Annexation of 2.15 acres of land with the R-2 zoning district. 
 

Information Resources: 

Click Here for Application Materials 

 

Click Here to Sign Up to Testify at the Planning and Zoning Commission Public Hearing 

139Item 5.

http://bit.ly/H-2021-0013
https://apps.meridiancity.org/SIGNINPZ/


 
 

 Page 1  
  

HEARING 
DATE: 

4/15/2021 

 

TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

FROM: Alan Tiefenbach, Associate Planner 
208-884-5533 
Bruce Freckleton, Development 
Services Manager  
208-887-2211 

SUBJECT: H-2021-0013 
Roberts Annexation  

LOCATION: 1630 E. Paradise Ln 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

This is a proposal to annex 1.77 acres of land from the R-1 zone in Ada County to R-2 zone to 
construct a new single-family residence.  

II. SUMMARY OF REPORT  

A. Project Summary 
Description Details Page 
Acreage 1.77 acres  
Future Land Use Designation Low Density Residential  
Existing Land Use(s) Vacant  
Proposed Land Use(s) Single Family Residence  
Lots (# and type; bldg./common) 2 (to be consolidated into parcel with a future PBA 

application) 
 

Phasing Plan (# of phases) 1  
Number of Residential Units (type 
of units) 

1 house with detached shop and RV garage  

Density (gross & net) 0.56 du / acre  
Open Space (acres, total 
[%]/buffer/qualified) 

N/A  

Amenities N/A  
   
Physical Features (waterways, 
hazards, flood plain, hillside) 

None  

Neighborhood meeting date; # of 
attendees: 

February 9, 2021, 2 attendees.   

History (previous approvals) Heritage Subdivision No 2  
 

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

140Item 5.



 

 Page 2  
  

A. Community Metrics 
Description Details Page 
Ada County Highway District No comments  
Access (Arterial/Collectors/State 
Hwy/Local)(Existing and Proposed) 

Property will be accessed from E Paradise Lane (local).   

Traffic Level of Service  N/A  
Stub Street/Interconnectivity/Cross 
Access 

N/A  

Existing Road Network E. Paradise Ln  
Existing Arterial Sidewalks / 
Buffers 

There is existing curb and gutter on east side of N. Locust 
Grove Rd. E. Paradise Ln is a rural local road with no 
sidewalk on either side.   

 

Proposed Road Improvements None required   
Distance to nearest City Park (+ 
size) 

1 mile to Champion Park  

Distance to other key services    
Fire Service No comments  
Police Service No comments  
Wastewater   

• Distance to Sewer 
Services 

1,400 feet +/-  

• Sewer Shed North Slough Trunkshed  
• Estimated Project Sewer 

ERU’s 
See application  

• WRRF Declining Balance 14.08  
• Project Consistent with 

WW Master Plan/Facility 
Plan 

No. Property will be on septic until utilities are 
available in the area.  

 

• Comments • Flow is committed 
• Sewer is currently in N. Locust Road about 1,400 

feet away from property. City Engineer has 
approved a waiver to allow septic service until 
the sewer line is extended.  

 

Water   
• Distance to Water Services 0  
• Pressure Zone 3  
• Estimated Project Water 

ERU’s 
See application  

• Water Quality No concerns  
• Project Consistent with 

Water Master Plan 
Yes  

• Impacts/Concerns • Water is located in N Locust Grove Road. Water 
main must be extended into Paradise Ln to the 
east property line. Applicant requested a waiver 
to only have to connect service line rather than 
extending the water main. City Engineer 
denied this waiver.  

 

 
  

141Item 5.



 

 Page 3  
  

 
C.  Project Area Maps 
 

Future Land Use Map 
 

Aerial Map 

 
 

Zoning Map 

 
 

Planned Development Map 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

142Item 5.



 

 Page 4  
  

III. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A.  Applicant / Representative: 

Benjamin Semple, Rodney Evans and Partners – 1014 S. La Pointe St., Ste 3, Boise ID 83706 

B.  Owner 

Denton Roberts – 4461 N. Diamond Creek Ave, Meridian, ID, 83646 

 

IV. NOTICING 

 Planning & Zoning 
Posting Date 

City Council 
Posting Date 

Newspaper Notification 
published in newspaper 3/26/2021   

Radius notification mailed to 
properties within 500 feet 3/24/2021   

Public hearing notice sign posted 
on site 4/2/2021   

Nextdoor posting 3/24/2021   
 

V. STAFF ANALYSIS 

The property is comprised of two lots presently zoned R-1 in unincorporated Ada County, of which 
the southern lot until recently had contained a 4,000 sq. ft. residence. The applicant demolished this 
single-family residence in anticipation of building a newer 6,000 sf ft +/- house with detached shop / 
RV garage. The applicant contacted Ada County to merge the lots together and construct the larger 
house and was told because the property directly abutted City limits, it would need to be annexed.  

There is a 5-foot drainage, utility construction and maintenance easement platted between the subject 
lots (Lots 2&3, Block 1 of the Heritage Subdivision No 2). Following this annexation and prior to 
building permit, the easement will need to be vacated as part of the consolidation of lots.  

The nearest available sewer main is located in N. Locust Grove Rd., approximately 1,400 feet north 
of the subject property. The applicant has received City Engineer and Public Works Director approval 
for a utilities waiver from UDC 11-3A-21 to not connect to City sewer at this time. Staff finds that 
making a singular property owner pay for extending a sewer main 1,400 feet for one residence is 
neither fair nor necessary. However, the development agreement will require connecting to City 
sewer if and when a sewer main is extended in the future. The applicant will need to apply to Central 
District Health (CDH) for a temporary septic system. 

The applicant will be required to extend a water main from the intersection of N. Locust Grove Rd 
and E. Paradise Ln along Paradise Lane to the eastern property line to serve adjacent properties in the 
future. The applicant has also requested a waiver from this requirement, stating it would be cost 
prohibitive and not necessary as adjacent properties to the east and south are remaining in 
Unincorporated Ada County and already have wells providing water. Instead, the applicant prefers to 
only be required to connect a service line from the main to the new home.  The City Engineer denied 
this waiver request.  

 

 

143Item 5.



 

 Page 5  
  

A. Annexation: 

The proposed annexation area is contiguous to City annexed property and is within the Area of 
City Impact Boundary. As mentioned above, all development is to be connected to the City of 
Meridian water and sewer system, unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer. The City 
Engineer has approved the waiver for the new house to be served by individual septic system 
until a sewer line is extended south down N. Locust Grove Rd. To ensure the site develops as 
proposed by the applicant, staff is recommending a development agreement as part of the 
annexation approval.  

B. Future Land Use Map Designation (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan) 

The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designates the property for Low Density Residential (LDR). 
This designation allows for the development of single-family homes on large and estate lots at 
gross densities of three dwelling units or less per acre. With one existing home proposed on 1.77 
acres, the requested R-2 zone  is consistent with the FLUM.  

C. Comprehensive Plan Policies (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan): 

The applicable Comprehensive Plan policies are cited below with Staff analysis in italics. 

• “Avoid the concentration of any one housing type or lot size in any geographical area; 
provide for diverse housing types throughout the City" (2. 01. 01 G).  

The purpose of the proposed development is to annex and zone the property to R-2 to 
consolidate two lots into one and build a single- family residence.  Ada County directed the 
applicant to annex because the property is directly adjacent to the City limits. The property is 
surrounded by single family detached homes on greater than one acre lots.  This annexation 
will not change the existing character of the surrounding development and will add an 
additional single-family home for the City of Meridian. 

• Establish and maintain levels of service for public facilities and services, including water, 
sewer, police, transportation, schools, fire, and parks" (3.02.01G). 

Staff finds that the existing conditions in this area create conditions that do not allow for this 
property owner to connect to City sewer services as required by code at the present. Public 
Works, Meridian Police Department and Meridian Fire have no objections to this one house 
residential project. No other services should be affected as the existing access is to remain. 

• Annex lands into the corporate boundaries of the City only when the annexation proposal 
conforms to the City's vision and the necessary extension of public services and infrastructure 
is provided. (3.03.0) 

The property can be provided fire and police service. Neither agency expressed any 
comments on this proposal. As mentioned above, the applicant was granted a waiver from the 
requirement to hook to sewer until the sewer main is extended. The applicant’s request to not 
have to extend the water main all the way up E. Paradise Ln to the east property line was 
denied.  

D. Existing Structures/Site Improvements: 

The property is presently vacant. 

E.  Proposed Use Analysis (UDC 11-2A-2) 

Single family residences are a principally permitted use in the R-2 zone district.  

144Item 5.

https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan
https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan


 

 Page 6  
  

F. Specific Use Standards (UDC 11-4-3): 

UDC 11-4-3-13 allows only one single family residence per property. No future subdivision may 
occur until this property is connected to both water and sewer.  

G.  Dimensional Standards (UDC 11-2): 

The R-2 zone requires a minimum lot size of 12,000 sq. ft., 80’ of street frontage, street setbacks 
of 20 from a local street, 25’ from an arterial, side setbacks of 7.5 per story, and rear setbacks of 
15’. The concept plan as submitted indicates the proposed home meets these requirements.  

H Access (UDC 11-3A-3, 11-3H-4): 

Existing access occurs from E. Paradise Ln, a rural local street with no curb, gutter or sidewalk. 
Future access will continue from E. Paradise Ln. ACHD noted they had no comments on this 
proposal. 

I. Parking (UDC 11-3C): 

UDC 11-3C-6 requires at least 2 parking spaces per single family dwelling unit, with additional 
parking spaces required for residences with more than 2 bedrooms. Parking will be ascertained at 
time of building permit.  

J. Sidewalks (UDC 11-3A-17): 

There is existing sidewalk on the east side of N. Locust Grove Rd. Otherwise, the Heritage 
Subdivision Filing One and Two reflects rural character and it does not appear any of the right of 
way within this subdivision contains sidewalks (E. Paradise Ln., E Star Ln., N. Spangle Dr., E. 
Freedom Ln). However, UDC  11-3A-17 does require sidewalks along both sides of the street, or 
only one side of the street when the average lot frontage is more than 150’. ACHD has not 
commented on this application regarding any additional improvements. The Planning 
Commission and City Council should determine whether requiring sidewalk along the property 
frontage should be required with the development agreement.  

K. Landscaping (UDC 11-3B): 

Per UDC 11-3B-2, a landscape plan shall be required for all development, redevelopment, 
additions, or site modifications except detached single-family and secondary dwellings. 
Therefore, a landscape plan is not required.  

L. Waterways (UDC 11-3A-6): 

No ditches or waterways traverse the property. This application was referred to both Nampa-
Meridian Irrigation District and Parkins-Nourse Irrigation Association. Neither expressed 
concerns with this application.  

M. Fencing (UDC 11-3A-6, 11-3A-7): 

Any new fencing will be required to meet the standards of UDC 11-3A-7. 

N. Utilities (UDC 11-3A-21): 

Water is located along N. Locust Road to the N. Locust Grove Rd / E Paradise Ln intersection. 
The applicant is required to extend the water main along Paradise Ln to the east property line to 
serve future properties. The applicant has requested a waiver from this requirement with the 
explanation that this would be cost-prohibitive, and not serve any other properties in the vicinity, 
as the remaining adjacent properties to the east and south are remaining in Ada County and 
already have wells. The applicant requests to connect only their property to the main via a service 
line. The City Engineer denied this waiver.  

145Item 5.

https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?chapter_id=6513#1230415_id=6513
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?chapter_id=6499#183704
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=20923&keywords=#1165290
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=734279#734279
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=20924&keywords=#20924
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=20923&keywords=#1165304
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=6506&keywords=#6506
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165293#1165293
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165293#1165293
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165294#1165294
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165308#1165308


 

 Page 7  
  

Sewer is currently in N. Locust Road about 1,400 feet north of the property. The applicant has 
requested a waiver from UDC 11-3A-21 to not connect to City sewer at this time. The City 
Engineer has approved this waiver request. Staff recommends the development agreement require 
connection to public sewer when a main is extended along N. Locust Grove Rd near the adjacent 
to the subject property. 

O. Building Elevations (UDC 11-3A-19 | Architectural Standards Manual): 

Staff has not requested architectural elevations with this application. The applicant proposes one 
single family residence.  

VI. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the requested annexation with the comments noted in Section VIII. 
and per the Findings in Section IX.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
   
    
    
    
    
    
    
   
    
   
    
   
    

146Item 5.

https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165306#1165306
https://meridiancity.org/designreview


 

 Page 8  
  

 

VII. EXHIBITS 

A. Site Plan (date: 2/26/2021) 

 

   

147Item 5.



 

 Page 9  
  

B. Annexation Legal Description and Exhibit (date: 2/3/2021) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

148Item 5.



 

 Page 10  
  

 

 

 

 

 

  

149Item 5.



 

 Page 11  
  

VIII. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS 

A.  PLANNING DIVISION 

1. A Development Agreement (DA) is required as a provision of annexation of this property. 
Prior to approval of the annexation ordinance, a DA shall be entered into between the City of 
Meridian, the property owner(s) at the time of annexation ordinance adoption, and the 
developer.   

Currently, a fee of $303.00 shall be paid by the Applicant to the Planning Division prior to 
commencement of the DA. The DA shall be signed by the property owner and returned to the 
Planning Division within six (6) months of the City Council granting the annexation. The DA 
shall, at minimum, incorporate the following provisions:  

a.  Future development of this site shall be generally consistent with the conceptual site plan 
for the single-family dwelling included in Section VII and the provisions contained 
herein. 

b. When the sewer line is extended to the N. Locust Grove Rd / E. Paradise Lane 
intersection, the existing septic system shall be abandoned and the applicant shall connect 
the new residence to City sewer and pay any applicable sewer assessment fees at the time 
of connection. 

c.  The existing well shall be abandoned, unless used to irrigate the property. The new 
residence shall connect to City water and pay any applicable water assessment fees with 
the building permit.  

d.  The applicant shall extend an 8-inch water main from the intersection of Locust Grove 
and Paradise Lane along Paradise Lane to the eastern property line. 

f.   Prior to building permit, the applicant shall vacate the 5-foot drainage, utility 
construction and maintenance easement platted between the subject lots (Lots 
2&3, Block 1 of the Heritage Subdivision No 2) and merge Lots 1 &2, Block 1 
through a parcel boundary adjustment.  

B. PUBLIC WORKS 

2.1 Site Specific Conditions of Approval  

2.1.1 Sewer is approximately 1,400 feet North on Locust Grove, it is a requirement of annexation 
to connect to both City sewer and water. Any deferral or waiver to this requirement must be 
provided in writing from the City Engineer. 

2.1.2  Water must be extended into Paradise Lane to the East property line.  

2.2 General Conditions of Approval  

2.2.1 Applicant shall coordinate water and sewer main size and routing with the Public Works 
Department, and execute standard forms of easements for any mains that are required to 
provide service outside of a public right-of-way.  Minimum cover over sewer mains is three 
feet, if cover from top of pipe to sub-grade is less than three feet than alternate materials shall 
be used in conformance of City of Meridian Public Works Departments Standard 
Specifications. 

2.2.2 Per Meridian City Code (MCC), the applicant shall be responsible to install sewer and water 
mains to and through this development.  Applicant may be eligible for a reimbursement 
agreement for infrastructure enhancement per MCC 8-6-5.  

150Item 5.



 

 Page 12  
  

2.2.3 The applicant shall provide easement(s) for all public water/sewer mains outside of public 
right of way (include all water services and hydrants).  The easement widths shall be 20-
feet wide for a single utility, or 30-feet wide for two.  The easements shall not be dedicated 
via the plat, but rather dedicated outside the plat process using the City of Meridian’s 
standard forms. The easement shall be graphically depicted on the plat for reference 
purposes. Submit an executed easement (on the form available from Public Works), a legal 
description prepared by an Idaho Licensed Professional Land Surveyor, which must include 
the area of the easement (marked EXHIBIT A) and an 81/2” x 11” map with bearings and 
distances (marked EXHIBIT B) for review. Both exhibits must be sealed, signed and dated 
by a Professional Land Surveyor. DO NOT RECORD.  Add a note to the plat referencing 
this document.  All easements must be submitted, reviewed, and approved prior to 
development plan approval.  

2.2.4 The City of Meridian requires that pressurized irrigation systems be supplied by a year-
round source of water (MCC 12-13-8.3). The applicant should be required to use any 
existing surface or well water for the primary source.  If a surface or well source is not 
available, a single-point connection to the culinary water system shall be required. If a 
single-point connection is utilized, the developer will be responsible for the payment of 
assessments for the common areas prior to prior to receiving development plan approval.  

2.2.5 All existing structures that are required to be removed shall be prior to signature on the 
final plat by the City Engineer.  Any structures that are allowed to remain shall be subject 
to evaluation and possible reassignment of street addressing to be in compliance with 
MCC. 

2.2.6 All irrigation ditches, canals, laterals, or drains, exclusive of natural waterways, 
intersecting, crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall 
be addressed per UDC 11-3A-6.  In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with 
Idaho Code 42-1207 and any other applicable law or regulation. 

2.2.7 Any wells that will not continue to be used must be properly abandoned according to Idaho 
Well Construction Standards Rules administered by the Idaho Department of Water 
Resources.  The Developer’s Engineer shall provide a statement addressing whether there 
are any existing wells in the development, and if so, how they will continue to be used, or 
provide record of their abandonment.   

2.2.8 Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City 
Ordinance Section 9-1-4 and 9 4 8.  Contact Central District Health for abandonment 
procedures and inspections (208)375-5211.  

2.2.9 Street signs are to be in place, sanitary sewer and water system shall be approved and 
activated, road base approved by the Ada County Highway District and the Final Plat for 
this subdivision shall be recorded, prior to applying for building permits. 

2.2.10 A letter of credit or cash surety in the amount of 110% will be required for all uncompleted 
fencing, landscaping, amenities, etc., prior to signature on the final plat. 

2.2.11 All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to 
occupancy of the structures. Where approved by the City Engineer, an owner may post a 
performance surety for such improvements in order to obtain City Engineer signature on 
the final plat as set forth in UDC 11-5C-3B. 

151Item 5.



 

 Page 13  
  

2.2.12 Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review, and construction 
inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the issuance of a 
plan approval letter.  

2.2.13 It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features comply 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act. 

2.2.14 Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404 
Permitting that may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers. 

2.2.15 Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office. 

2.2.16 All grading of the site shall be performed in conformance with MCC 11-12-3H. 

2.2.17 Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all 
building pads receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material. 

2.2.18 The design engineer shall be required to certify that the street centerline elevations are set a 
minimum of 3-feet above the highest established peak groundwater elevation.  This is to 
ensure that the bottom elevation of the crawl spaces of homes is at least 1-foot above. 

2.2.19 The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/or    
drainage facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation 
district or ACHD. The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have 
been installed in accordance with the approved design plans. This certification will be 
required before a certificate of occupancy is issued for any structures within the project.  

2.2.20 At the completion of the project, the applicant shall be responsible to submit record 
drawings per the City of Meridian AutoCAD standards.  These record drawings must be 
received and approved prior to the issuance of a certification of occupancy for any 
structures within the project.  

2.2.21 A street light plan will need to be included in the civil construction plans. Street light plan 
requirements are listed in section 6-5 of the Improvement Standards for Street Lighting. A 
copy of the standards can be found at 
http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272. 

2.2.22 The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a performance surety in the 
amount of 125% of the total construction cost for all incomplete sewer, water and reuse 
infrastructure prior to final plat signature. This surety will be verified by a line item cost 
estimate provided by the owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an 
irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for 
surety, which can be found on the Community Development Department website.  Please 
contact Land Development Service for more information at 887-2211. 

2.2.23 The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a warranty surety in the 
amount of 20% of the total construction cost for all completed sewer, water and reuse 
infrastructure for duration of two years. This surety will be verified by a line item cost 
estimate provided by the owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an 
irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for 
surety, which can be found on the Community Development Department website.  Please 
contact Land Development Service for more information at 887-2211. 

 

152Item 5.



 

 Page 14  
  

C.  ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT (ACHD) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224605&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity&cr=1 

D.  ADA COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223933&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity 

E.  NAMPA MERIDIAN IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224834&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity 

F.  PARKINS NOURSE IRRIGATION ASSOCATION 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224834&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity 

IX. FINDINGS 

A. Annexation and/or Rezone (UDC 11-5B-3E) 

Required Findings: Upon recommendation from the commission, the council shall make a full 
investigation and shall, at the public hearing, review the application. In order to grant an annexation 
and/or rezone, the council shall make the following findings: 

1. The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the comprehensive plan; 

If the applicant extends City utilities as recommended by the Public Works Department, Staff 
finds annexation of the subject site with an R-2 zoning designation is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan LDR FLUM designation for this property. 

2. The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed district, specifically 
the purpose statement; 

Staff finds the size of the proposed house and lot will be consistent with the purpose statement of 
the residential districts will be compatible with the low-density rural character.  

3. The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and welfare; 

Staff finds that the proposed zoning map amendment should not be detrimental to the public 
health, safety, or welfare. Staff recommends the Commission consider any oral or written 
testimony that may be provided when determining this finding. 

4. The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services by any 
political subdivision providing public services within the city including, but not limited to, school 
districts; and 

Staff finds that the proposed zoning amendment will not result in any adverse impact upon the 
delivery of services by any political subdivision providing services to this site. 

5. The annexation (as applicable) is in the best interest of city 

Staff finds the proposed annexation is in the best interest of the City if the property is developed 
in accord with City/Agency comments and recommended development agreement provisions in 
Section VIII 

153Item 5.

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224605&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity&cr=1
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224605&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity&cr=1
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223933&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223933&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224834&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224834&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224834&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=224834&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Public Hearing for UDC Text Amendment (H-2021-0001) by City of Meridian 
Planning Division, Located at 33 E. Broadway Ave.
A. Request: UDC Text Amendment to update certain sections of the City’s Unified Development 

Code (UDC) pertaining to Standards in the Old Town District in Chapter 2; Ditches, Laterals, 

Canals or Drainage Courses in Chapter 3; Comprehensive Plan Amendments in Chapter 5; and 

Common Driveways Standards in Chapter 6.

154Item 6.



 

PUBLIC HEARING INFORMATION  
 

Staff Contact: Bill Parsons Meeting Date: April 15, 2021 

Topic: Public Hearing for UDC Text Amendment (H-2021-0001) by City of Meridian 
Planning Division, Located at 33 E. Broadway Ave. 

A. Request: UDC Text Amendment to update certain sections of the City’s 
Unified Development Code (UDC) pertaining to Standards in the Old Town 
District in Chapter 2; Ditches, Laterals, Canals or Drainage Courses in Chapter 
3; Comprehensive Plan Amendments in Chapter 5; and Common Driveways 
Standards in Chapter 6. 

 

Information Resources: 

Click Here for Application Materials 

 

Click Here to Sign Up to Testify at the Planning and Zoning Commission Public Hearing 

155Item 6.

http://bit.ly/ZOA-2021-0001
https://apps.meridiancity.org/SIGNINPZ/


 
 

 
Page 1 

 
  

HEARING 

DATE: 
4/15/2021 

 

TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

FROM: Bill Parsons, Current Planning 

Supervisor 

208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: ZOA-2021-0001 

UDC Text Amendment 

LOCATION: City wide 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The Meridian Planning Division has applied for a Unified Development Code (UDC) text amendment to 

update certain sections of the City’s code as follows: 

• Standards in the Old Town District (O-T) in Chapter 2;  

• Ditches, Laterals, Canals or Drainage Courses in Chapter 3;  

• Comprehensive Map Amendments in Chapter 5; and  

• Common Driveway Standards in Chapter 6. 

II. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant: 

City of Meridian Planning Division 

33 E. Broadway Ave, Suite #102 

Meridian, ID 83642 

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

156Item 6.



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

III. NOTICING 

 Planning & Zoning 

Posting Date 

City Council 

Posting Date 

Notification published in 

newspaper 3/26/2021   

Notification mailed to property 

owners within 300’ NA   

Public Service Announcement 3/26/2021   

Nextdoor posting 3/26/2021   

IV. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ANALYSIS (Comprehensive Plan) 

A. Comprehensive Plan Text (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan): 

3.01.01B - Update the Comprehensive Plan and Unified Development Code as needed to 

accommodate the community's needs and growth trends. 

Many of the requested code changes below reflect the desire of the Community and maintain the 

integrity of the plan.  

3.04.01B – Maintain and update the Unified Development Code and Future Land Use Map to 

implement the provisions of the Comprehensive Plan. 

This round of code changes is being expedited to implement the vison of the Comprehensive Plan. In 

general, the proposed changes support the redevelopment of downtown, minimize conflicts with other 

agencies, limit CPAMs to twice a year and improve the design standards of common driveways.  

V. UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE ANALYSIS (UDC) 

In accord with Meridian City Code 11-5, the Planning Division has applied to amend the text of the 

Unified Development Code (UDC). The text amendment includes updates to multiple sections that 

pertain to the following: 

• Standards in the Old Town District (O-T) in Chapter 2;  

• Ditches, Laterals, Canals or Drainage Courses in Chapter 3;  

• Comprehensive Map Amendments in Chapter 5; and  

• Common Driveway Standards in Chapter 6. 

The Planning Division is expediting these few changes at the request of the Mayor and City Council 

in order to support redevelopment in downtown; eliminate code conflicts with the applicable 

irrigation districts; limit the submittal dates of CPAM applications to twice a year to maintain the 

integrity of the plan and further improve on the design standards for common driveways. Staff has 

received comments from some members of the UDC Focus Group regarding the proposed changes 

(see public record). 

Exhibit VII below includes a table of the requested changes/additions and supporting commentary 

explaining the purpose of the change to the UDC. Many of these changes have been vetted with City 

Council before the application submittal and the draft changes were shared with the UDC Focus 

Group and others to solicit feedback. As of the print date of the staff report, Planning staff has not 

presented the proposed changes to the BCA however, the changes will be shared with the BCA at 

their April 13th meeting. 

157Item 6.

https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan
https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-5506


 

 
Page 3 

 
  

In summary, Staff believes the changes proposed with this application supports the provisions of the 

Comprehensive Plan. 

VI. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed text amendment to the UDC based on the analysis provided 

in Section IV and V, modifications in Section VII and the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law 

listed in Section VIII. 

 

B. Commission: 

Enter Summary of Commission Decision. 

C. City Council: 

Enter Summary of City Council Decision. 

  

158Item 6.



 

 
Page 4 

 
  

VII. EXHIBITS 

A. Table of Proposed Text Changes 

 

 

159Item 6.



 

 
Page 5 

 
  

 

VIII. FINDINGS 

1.  UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE TEXT AMENDMENTS: (UDC 11-5B-3E)  

Upon recommendation from the Commission, the Council shall make a full investigation 

and shall, at the public hearing, review the application. In order to grant a text amendment 

to the Unified Development Code, the Council shall make the following findings: 
 

A. The text amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the comprehensive plan; 
 

Staff finds that the proposed UDC text amendment complies with the applicable provisions of 

the Comprehensive Plan. Please see Comprehensive Plan Policies and Goals, Section IV, of 

the Staff Report for more information. 

 

B. The text amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and 

welfare; and 
 

Staff finds that the proposed zoning ordinance amendment will not be detrimental to the 

public health, safety or welfare if the changes to the text of the UDC are approved as submitted. 

It is the intent of the text amendment to further the health, safety and welfare of the public. 
 

C. The text amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services 

by any political subdivision providing public services within the City including, but not 

limited to, school districts. 
 

Staff finds that the proposed zoning ordinance amendment does not propose any 

significant changes to how public utilities and services are provided to 

developments. All City departments, public agencies and service providers that 

currently review applications will continue to do so. Please refer to any written or 

oral testimony provided by any public service provider(s) when making this finding. 

 

160Item 6.



 

DATE: 03/23/2021 

 

 

Proposed UDC Text Amendments 

UDC Section Topic Reason for Change Proposed Change 

11-2D-4 Increase OT height 
maximum 

Allow for taller buildings in city core area of the Old 
Town District 

The standards for development in the Old Town District are set forth in this section as follows: 
 
A. Building Height: Maximum building height is seventy-five feet (75'). Minimum building height for new 

construction in the city core as defined in Chapter 1, is thirty-five feet (35’) with a maximum height 
not to exceed one hundred feet (100’). 

B.   Number of stories. Minimum number of stories for new construction is two (2) and/or as set forth in 
the "City of Meridian Architectural Standards Manual".  

 

 

 

161Item 6.



 

DATE: 03/23/2021 

 

11-3A-6 Ditches, laterals, canals 
or drainage courses 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recently came to the City’s attention that fencing may 
not always be desired along open waterways by the 
irrigation district, specifically as it relates to 
maintenance of their facility. Staff is amending this 
section of code to ensure the UDC does not conflict with 
irrigation district standards as requested by the City 
Council. 
 
Surrounding property owners don’t need to be noticed 
as the easement on the building lot(s) doesn’t affect 
them – a Council waiver is sufficient. This would allow 
the applicant to request a waiver during the final plat 
process and not require a public hearing. 

A. Purpose. The purpose of this section is to limit the tiling and piping of natural and man-made 
waterways, including but not limited to, ditches, canals, laterals, sloughs and drains where public safety is 
not a concern as well as improve, protect and incorporate creek corridors (Five Mile, Eight Mile, Nine 
Mile, Ten Mile, South Slough and Jackson and Evan Drains) as an amenity in all residential, commercial 
and industrial designs. When piping and fencing is proposed, the following standards shall apply.  
 
B. Piping.  

1. Natural waterways intersecting, crossing, or lying within the area being developed shall remain as a 
natural amenity and shall not be piped or otherwise covered. See also subsection (C)(1) of this section.  

2. Irrigation ditches, laterals, canals, sloughs and drains may be left open when used as a water amenity 
or linear open space, as defined in section 11-1A-1 of this title. See also subsection (C)(2) of this section.  

3. Except as allowed above, all other irrigation ditches, laterals, sloughs or canals, intersecting, crossing 
or lying within the area being developed, shall be piped, or otherwise covered. This requirement does not 
apply to property with only an irrigation easement where the actual drainage facility is located on an 
adjoining property.  

a. The decision-making body may waive the requirement for covering such ditch, lateral, canal, slough 
or drain, if it finds that the public purpose requiring such will not be served and public safety can be 
preserved.  

 
C. Fencing.  

1. Fencing along all natural waterways shall not prevent access to the waterway. In limited circumstances 
and in the interest of public safety, larger open water systems may require fencing as determined by the 
City Council, Director and/or Public Works Director.  

2. Ditches, laterals, canals, sloughs and drains do not require fencing if it can be demonstrated by the 
applicant to the satisfaction of the Director that said ditch, lateral, canal, sloughs or drain serves as or will 
be improved as a part of the development, to be a water amenity or linear open space. If designed as a 
water amenity, cConstruction drawings and relevant calculations prepared by a qualified licensed 
professional registered in the State of Idaho shall be submitted to both the Director and the authorized 
representative of the water facility for approval.  

3. Except as allowed above, all other open irrigation ditches, laterals, canals, sloughs and drains shall be 
fenced with an open vision fence at least six (6) feet in height and having an 11-gauge, two (2) inch mesh 
or other construction, equivalent in ability to deter access to said ditch, lateral, canal, slough or drain, 
which fence shall be securely fastened at its base at all places where any part of said lands or areas being 
subdivided touches either or both sides of said ditch, lateral, canal, slough or drain.  
 
D. Improvements. Improvements related to piping, fencing or any encroachment as outlined in 
subsections(A), (B), and (C) of this section requires written approval from the appropriate irrigation or 
drainage entity.  
 
E. Easements. In Residential Districts, irrigation easements wider than ten feet (10') shall be included in a 
common lot that is a minimum of twenty feet (20') wide and outside of a fenced area, unless modified 
otherwise waived by City Council at a public hearing with notice to surrounding property owners. 

162Item 6.



 

DATE: 03/23/2021 

 

11-5B-7C.3 
 
 

CPAM amendments With adoption of a new Comprehensive Plan, limit the 
frequency to which it can be amended. Make it clear that 
Map amendments will be processed no more than every 
6 months – cut-offs.  

The City Council shall not consider amendments to the land use map of the adopted comprehensive plan 
more than twice per calendar year. The application deadlines for amendments to the land use map 
component of the comprehensive plan shall be June 15 and December 15 of every year. 

11-6C-3D Common driveways Commission, Council and PW is having concerns with the 
number of units taking access from a common driveway. 
This impacts the extension of services, parking and trash 
service. Staff is not proposing to reduce the number 
dwellings served, but to expand on the requirements 
when a greater number of units take access from a 
common driveway. This will allow the City Engineer to 
require a wider common driveway, if an applicant is 
required to extend City mains underneath the driveway, 
consistent with other easement requirements of the City. 

D.   Common Driveways: 
 

1. Maximum Dwelling Units Served: Common driveways shall serve a maximum of six (6) dwelling 
units. 
 

2. Width standards: Common driveways shall be a minimum of twenty (20) feet in width., unless a 
greater width is required by the City Engineer. All common driveways shall be on a common lot.  
 

3. Maximum length. Common driveways shall be a maximum of one hundred fifty (150) feet in length 
or less, unless otherwise approved by the Meridian City Fire Department.  
 

4.  Improvement standards. Common driveways shall be paved with a surface with the capability of 
supporting fire vehicles and equipment.  
 

5. Abutting properties. All properties that abut a common driveway shall take access from the 
driveway; however, if an abutting property has the required minimum street frontage, that 
property is not required to take access from the common driveway. In this situation, the abutting 
property's driveway shall be on the opposite side of the shared property line; away from the 
common driveway. Solid fencing adjacent to common driveways shall be prohibited, unless 
separated by a minimum five-foot wide landscaped buffer planted with shrubs, lawn or other 
vegetative groundcover.  
 

6. Turning radius. Common driveways shall be straight or provide a twenty-eight-foot inside and 
forty-eight-foot outside turning radius.  
 

7. Depictions. For any plats using a common driveway, the setbacks, fencing, building envelope, 
landscaping and orientation of the lots and structures shall be shown on the preliminary plat 
and/or as an exhibit with the final plat application. 

 

 

 

 

163Item 6.


	Top
	Item 1.	MIN 2021-04-01 Planning and Zoning Commission
	Minutes

	Item 2.	PHPZ Cont'd from 4/1 H-2021-0012 Jaker's Drive-Through
	Memo
	Staff Report and Recommendation to Commission

	Item 3.	PHPZ MCU-2021-0002 Pine 43 Apartments
	Memo
	Staff Report and Recommendation to Commission

	Item 4.	PHPZ H-2021-0014 Artemisia Subdivision
	Memo
	Staff Report and Recommendation to Commission

	Item 5.	PHPZ H-2021-0013 Roberts Annexation
	Memo
	Staff Report and Recommendation to Commission

	Item 6.	PHPZ ZOA-2021-0001 UDC Text Amendment
	Memo
	Staff Report
	Text Amendments

	Bottom

